# Oracle® Banking Branch Loan Service User Guide



Release 14.7.2.0.0 F88938-01 November 2023

ORACLE

Oracle Banking Branch Loan Service User Guide, Release 14.7.2.0.0

F88938-01

Copyright © 2021, 2023, Oracle and/or its affiliates.

This software and related documentation are provided under a license agreement containing restrictions on use and disclosure and are protected by intellectual property laws. Except as expressly permitted in your license agreement or allowed by law, you may not use, copy, reproduce, translate, broadcast, modify, license, transmit, distribute, exhibit, perform, publish, or display any part, in any form, or by any means. Reverse engineering, disassembly, or decompilation of this software, unless required by law for interoperability, is prohibited.

The information contained herein is subject to change without notice and is not warranted to be error-free. If you find any errors, please report them to us in writing.

If this is software, software documentation, data (as defined in the Federal Acquisition Regulation), or related documentation that is delivered to the U.S. Government or anyone licensing it on behalf of the U.S. Government, then the following notice is applicable:

U.S. GOVERNMENT END USERS: Oracle programs (including any operating system, integrated software, any programs embedded, installed, or activated on delivered hardware, and modifications of such programs) and Oracle computer documentation or other Oracle data delivered to or accessed by U.S. Government end users are "commercial computer software," "commercial computer software documentation," or "limited rights data" pursuant to the applicable Federal Acquisition Regulation and agency-specific supplemental regulations. As such, the use, reproduction, duplication, release, display, disclosure, modification, preparation of derivative works, and/or adaptation of i) Oracle programs (including any operating system, integrated software, any programs embedded, installed, or activated on delivered hardware, and modifications of such programs), ii) Oracle computer documentation and/or iii) other Oracle data, is subject to the rights and limitations specified in the license contained in the applicable contract. The terms governing the U.S. Government's use of Oracle cloud services are defined by the applicable contract for such services. No other rights are granted to the U.S. Government.

This software or hardware is developed for general use in a variety of information management applications. It is not developed or intended for use in any inherently dangerous applications, including applications that may create a risk of personal injury. If you use this software or hardware in dangerous applications, then you shall be responsible to take all appropriate fail-safe, backup, redundancy, and other measures to ensure its safe use. Oracle Corporation and its affiliates disclaim any liability for any damages caused by use of this software or hardware in dangerous applications.

Oracle®, Java, MySQL and NetSuite are registered trademarks of Oracle and/or its affiliates. Other names may be trademarks of their respective owners.

Intel and Intel Inside are trademarks or registered trademarks of Intel Corporation. All SPARC trademarks are used under license and are trademarks or registered trademarks of SPARC International, Inc. AMD, Epyc, and the AMD logo are trademarks or registered trademarks of Advanced Micro Devices. UNIX is a registered trademark of The Open Group.

This software or hardware and documentation may provide access to or information about content, products, and services from third parties. Oracle Corporation and its affiliates are not responsible for and expressly disclaim all warranties of any kind with respect to third-party content, products, and services unless otherwise set forth in an applicable agreement between you and Oracle. Oracle Corporation and its affiliates will not be responsible for any loss, costs, or damages incurred due to your access to or use of third-party content, products, or services, except as set forth in an applicable agreement between you and Oracle.

## Contents

## Preface

Purpose	vi
Audience	vi
Documentation Accessibility	vi
Diversity and Inclusion	vi
Conventions	vii
Related Resources	vii
Acronyms and Abbreviations	vii
Screenshot Disclaimer	vii
Basic Actions	vii
Symbols and Icons	ix

## 1 Overview of Loan Service

1.1 Pre	erequisites	1-1
1.2 Ma	in Menus	1-1
1.3 Co	mmon Action	1-3
1.3.1	Fetch Account Number	1-3
1.3.2	Fetch Ledger Code	1-4
1.3.3	Fetch Customer ID	1-5
1.3.4	Audit Details	1-6
1.3.5	Remarks	1-7
1.3.6	Save & Close	1-8
1.4 Ora	acle Digital Assistance	1-8

## 2 Accounts

2.1 Con	solidated Rollover	2-1
2.1.1	Consolidation Tab	2-4
2.1.2	Schedule Tab	2-8
2.1.3	Interest & Fees Tab	2-11
2.1.4	Settlement Tab	2-15
2.1.5	Consolidated Account Details Tab	2-17



2	2.2 Loan	Activation	2-18
2	2.3 Loan	n Adhoc Charges	2-21
	2.3.1	Settlement through CASA	2-23
	2.3.2	Settlement through Ledger	2-28
2	2.4 Loan	n Adhoc Refund	2-31
	2.4.1	Payout through CASA	2-33
	2.4.2	Payout through Ledger	2-36
2	2.5 Loan	Disbursement	2-38
	2.5.1	Navigating and Fetching Account	2-39
	2.5.2	Settling Disbursement Amount	2-40
	2.5.3	Viewing Disbursement History	2-42
	2.5.4	Viewing Simulation Details	2-42
	2.5.5	Viewing the Schedule	2-45
	2.5.6	Settling Disbursement by CASA	2-46
	2.5.7	Settling Disbursement by Ledger	2-50
	2.5.8	Paying by Multi Mode Settlement	2-51
2	2.6 Loan	n Write-Off	2-52
	2.6.1	Simulation Details	2-56
2	2.7 Loan	n 360	2-57
2	2.8 Tran	saction Inquiry	2-62
2	2.9 Tran	saction View & Reversal	2-66
	2.9.1	View Transaction Details	2-66
	2.9.2	Perform Reversal of Transaction	2-68

## 3 Balances

3.1	Account Statement	3-1
3.2	Outstanding Balance Inquiry	3-3

## 4 Instruction Preferences

4.1	Payment Preferences	4-1
4.2	Loan Preferences	4-7

## 5 Repayment

5.1 Loar	Payment and Closure	5-1
5.1.1	Navigating and Fetching Account	5-2
5.1.2	Paying by Pay Due Option	5-4
5.1.3	Viewing Breakup of Amount Due	5-8
5.1.4	Viewing Simulation Details	5-9
5.1.5	Paying by Pay Advance Option	5-10



5.1.6	Paying by Partially Pay Off Option	5-12
5.1.7	Paying by Close Account Option	5-13
5.1.8	Viewing, Modifying, or Waiving Fees	5-15
5.1.9	Performing Settlement through CASA	5-16
5.1.10	Performing Settlement through Ledger	5-19
5.1.11	Performing Multi Mode Settlement	5-20

## 6 Schedule

6.1 Lo	an Payment Holiday	6-1
6.1.1	Navigating and Fetching Account	6-2
6.1.2	Applying Repayment Holiday for Upcoming Payments	6-3
6.1.3	Applying Repayment Holiday for a Date Range	6-6
6.1.4	Applying Repayment Holiday for Other Period	6-10
6.1.5	Viewing and Managing Fees	6-13
6.1.6	Viewing Revised Schedule	6-14
6.2 Lo	an Renegotiation	6-15
6.2.1	Navigating and Fetching Account	6-16
6.2.2	Modifying Loan Details	6-17
6.2.3	3 Treating Outstanding	6-20
6.2.4	Modifying Schedule Details	6-21
6.2.5	Modifying Rollover Details	6-24
6.2.6	Modifying Interest or Fees	6-27
6.2.7	Viewing Simulation Details	6-32
6.2.8	Viewing Revised Schedule	6-36
6.2.9	Viewing Fee Charged	6-37
6.3 Lo	an Schedule Inquiry	6-38
6.4 Re	payment Date Change	6-40

## A Functional Activity Codes

## Index

## Preface

- Purpose
- Audience
- Documentation Accessibility
- Diversity and Inclusion
- Conventions
- Related Resources
- Acronyms and Abbreviations
- Screenshot Disclaimer
- Basic Actions
- Symbols and Icons

## Purpose

This user guide provides you detailed information about the Loan Service module of Oracle Banking Branch.

## Audience

This guide is intended for the Loan Servicing Officers, Branch Tellers, and Branch Supervisors to provide quick and efficient services to the customers of the bank.

## **Documentation Accessibility**

For information about Oracle's commitment to accessibility, visit the Oracle Accessibility Program website at http://www.oracle.com/pls/topic/lookup? ctx=acc&id=docacc.

#### Access to Oracle Support

Oracle customers that have purchased support have access to electronic support through My Oracle Support. For information, visit http://www.oracle.com/pls/topic/lookup?ctx=acc&id=info or visit http://www.oracle.com/pls/topic/lookup?ctx=acc&id=trs if you are hearing impaired.

## **Diversity and Inclusion**

Oracle is fully committed to diversity and inclusion. Oracle respects and values having a diverse workforce that increases thought leadership and innovation. As part of our



initiative to build a more inclusive culture that positively impacts our employees, customers, and partners, we are working to remove insensitive terms from our products and documentation. We are also mindful of the necessity to maintain compatibility with our customers' existing technologies and the need to ensure continuity of service as Oracle's offerings and industry standards evolve. Because of these technical constraints, our effort to remove insensitive terms is ongoing and will take time and external cooperation.

## Conventions

The following text conventions are used in this document:

Convention	Meaning
boldface	Boldface type indicates graphical user interface elements associated with an action, or terms defined in text or the glossary.
italic	Italic type indicates book titles, emphasis, or placeholder variables for which you supply particular values.
monospace	Monospace type indicates commands within a paragraph, URLs, code in examples, text that appears on the screen, or text that you enter.

## **Related Resources**

For more information, see these Oracle resources:

- Getting Started User Guide
- Teller User Guide

## Acronyms and Abbreviations

The list of the acronyms and abbreviations used in this guide are as follows:

Fable 1         List of Acron	yms and Abbreviations
-------------------------------	-----------------------

Abbreviation	Description
CASA	Current Account Savings Account
GL	General Ledger
LCY	Local Currency
FCY	Foreign Currency

## Screenshot Disclaimer

Personal information used in the interface or documents is dummy and does not exist in the real world. It is only for reference purposes.

## **Basic Actions**

Most of the screens contain buttons to perform all or few of the basic actions.



Table 2Basic Actions

Action	Applicable Stages	Description
Next	Initiation, Approval and Hand off Retry	On completion of input of all parameters for a particular stage, you can click <b>Next</b> to navigate to the next tab.
Back	Initiation, Approval and Hand off Retry	In case you missed to specify or need to modify the details in the previous tab, click to navigate to the previous tab.
Save & Close	Initiation	On click of <b>Save &amp; Close</b> , the input details are saved, and the transaction screen is closed. In case a transaction must be closed midway due to a lack of sufficient information, the maker of the transaction can choose this option. The saved transaction details will be available in <b>My Task</b> . You can select the transaction from <b>My Task</b> and proceed with the transaction or delete it.
Cancel	Initiation, Approval and Hand off Retry	On click of <b>Cancel</b> , the transaction input is cancelled midway without saving any data. You are alerted that the input data would be lost before confirming the cancellation.
Submit	Initiation	After submitting the initiation stage, the system validates the transaction with the host and displays the errors or overrides if any. In case of an error, you can modify and resubmit or cancel the transaction. In case of an override, you can modify and resubmit or proceed with the transaction by accepting the overrides.
Approve	Approval	The system displays a section where approval remarks if any can be input. Click <b>OK</b> to submit. The transaction is sent to the Host system through OBRH. The Host system validates the transaction again and the transaction is created if all the validations are successful. If the transaction fails, the system displays an error message, and the transaction is moved to Hand-off retry stage. In this stage, the authorizer can retry or reject the transaction. On reject, the transaction is sent back to the maker to modify or delete it.
Reject	Approval and Hand off Retry	On click of <b>Reject</b> , a transaction is rejected is by the authorizer. The system displays a pop-up screen to capture the Rejection remarks if any. Click <b>OK</b> for the transaction to be routed back to the initiation stage. Subsequently, the maker can modify or delete the transaction details.
Minimize	Initiation, Approval and Hand- off Retry	On click of <b>Minimize</b> , the transaction input screen is minimized. When the screen is minimized, it appears as to a separate tab within the same web page.
Maximize	Initiation, Approval and Hand off Retry	On click of <b>Maximize</b> , the transaction input screen is maximized. You can proceed with the required action on the screen.
Reset	Hand off Retry	The <b>Reset</b> button clears all the details previously modified by you and populates the fields with default values.



Action	Applicable Stages	Description
Remarks	Initiation, Approval and Hand- off Retry	<b>Remarks</b> can be used either by the maker or the authorizer of the transaction to optionally capture useful information about the transaction.
Host Error	Hand Off Retry	<b>Hand off Retry</b> comes into use whenever a transaction input from the mid-office system fails authorization due to Host System rejection. The authorizer of the transaction can view the reason for Host rejection and take appropriate action.
Overrides	Initiation, Approval and Hand- off Retry	If override messages had appeared during initiation stage and they were accepted by the maker during submission, the <b>Overrides</b> button appears in the Initiation screen if the transaction is subsequently rejected by the authorizer. On the <b>Override Details</b> section, click <b>Decline</b> to go back to the transaction screen to modify or cancel it, or click <b>Accept</b> to complete the initiation stage and move the transaction to the approval stage. The <b>Overrides</b> button is displayed in the Approval and Hand-off retry stage if there were any override messages generated during initiation and accepted by the maker. When the <b>Overrides</b> button is clicked, the system displays the overrides accepted by the maker. After verifying the transaction and override details, the authorizer can either approve or reject the transaction.
		The existing Approve Transaction section is modified to display the overrides, if any overrides are raised during the initiation submits.
Document	Initiation, Approval and Hand- off Retry	The maker of the transaction can click <b>Document</b> to upload documents that are relevant to the transaction. Once uploaded, the documents are available for viewing during authorization or by the maker.
Change Log	Approval	When the authorizer clicks <b>Change Log</b> button, the system displays the changes made to the transaction in a pop-up window. By default, the change log is set to display only modified values. The Change Log button has two options, they are, All and Updated. The All button displays both modified and non-modified fields and the Updated button displays only the modified fields. The old and new values are displayed so that the authorizer can compare or verify the values and decide on further action. Also, the new values appear is red for easy recognition.
Delete	Initiation	The <b>Delete</b> button is applicable only for the Maker screen and that too when the screen is opened from the Task list. In other words, only saved tasks opened in editable mode have delete functionality.
Advices	Initiation	The <b>Advices</b> button helps the Maker to generate a pre-advice or acknowledgement to get a confirmation from his customer.

Table 2 (Cont.) Basic Actions

## Symbols and Icons

The lists of symbols, buttons and shortcut key that are used in the application to perform various tasks are covered in this topic.

## Symbols and Icons

Table 3	Symbols	and Icons
Table 3	Symbols	and icons

Symbols and Icons	Description
G	Click to refresh details in a screen.
J L 7 F	Click to minimize a screen.
г ¬ ∟ J	Click to maximize a screen.
×	Click to close a screen.
<	Click to navigate to first page.
•	Click to navigate to next page.
4	Click to navigate to previous page.
>	Click to navigate to last page.
Q	Click to perform a search.
P	Click to edit a record.
団	Click to delete a record.
B	Click to save the details specified in a row.
Ē	Click to select a date, month and year from a calendar.
ОК	Click to confirm the details specified.
Back	Click to navigate to the previous tab.
Next	Click to navigate to the next tab.
Save and Close	Click to save the details specified and exist from the screen. The task appears in my pending task, from where you can take the task ahead on your next login.
Cancel	Click to cancel the action performed and exist the screen.
Submit	Click to submit the transaction for approval.
Audit	Click to view the audit details of a particular screen.
Remarks	Click to add or view remarks related to a screen.

# 1 Overview of Loan Service

The **Loan Service** module of **Oracle Banking Branch** facilitates various operations of a loan account.

This topic contains the following subtopics:

• Prerequisites

Before you begin performing the transaction, you need to log in to **Oracle Banking Branch** homepage.

- Main Menus The main menu of the Loan Service module is a mega menu that displays all the menu items visible at once.
- Common Action
   The common actions for Loan Service screens are covered in this topic.
- Oracle Digital Assistance

You can reduce the time taken to access the transaction screens through automatic text or voice processing using the Oracle Digital Assistant (ODA).

## **1.1 Prerequisites**

Before you begin performing the transaction, you need to log in to **Oracle Banking Branch** homepage.

For information on how to log in, refer to the Getting Started User Guide.

## 1.2 Main Menus

The main menu of the **Loan Service** module is a mega menu that displays all the menu items visible at once.

It is a large panel divided into groups of menu items, which simplifies the navigation. The menu items are grouped based on the type of operation to be performed. In addition, the **Menu Item Search** helps to search and select a specific screen to navigate to any screen from the main menu items. The main menus are listed below:

- Accounts
- Balances
- Instruction Preferences
- Repayment
- Schedule

The main menus are further categorized into specific functions that are represented by menu items in the Mega Menu.



#### Figure 1-1 Mega Menu – Loan Service

#### Accounts

Consolidate Rollover Loan Activation Loan Adhoc Charges Loan Adhoc Refund Loan Disbursement Loan Write-Off Loan 360 Transaction Inquiry Transaction View & Reversal

#### Balances

Account Statement Outstanding Balance Inquiry

## Instruction Preferences Payment Preferences Loan Preferences

**Repayment** Loan Payment and Closure

#### Schedule

Loan Payment Holiday Loan Renegotiation Loan Schedule Inquiry Repayment Date Change

For more information on menu, refer to field description table below:

#### Table 1-1 Menu Item – Field Description

Field	Description
Accounts	Provides the screen using which you can perform various vital transactions on a loan account.
Balances	Provides the screen using which you can view the outstanding balances or arrears of a loan account.
Instruction Preferences	Provides the screen using which you can view and modify the account preferences.
Repayment	Provides the screen using which you can make payment and close your loan account.



Table 1-1	(Cont.)	Menu Item	– Field	Description
-----------	---------	-----------	---------	-------------

Field	Description
Schedule	Provides the screen using which you can view the schedule of a loan account.

## 1.3 Common Action

The common actions for Loan Service screens are covered in this topic.

This topic contains the following subtopics:

- Fetch Account Number The steps to fetch an account number is covered in this topic.
- Fetch Ledger Code The steps to fetch a ledger code is covered in this topic.
- Fetch Customer ID The steps to fetch the customer ID is covered in this topic.
- Audit Details The steps to view the audit details of a screen is covered in this topic.
- Remarks

Maintaining comments or remarks related to the screen and posting the same if required, is covered in this topic. The system saves the post and displays them along with the date, time, and name of the user who has posted.

#### • Save & Close

The steps to save the details specified or selected in the screen and close the screen are covered in this topic.

## 1.3.1 Fetch Account Number

The steps to fetch an account number is covered in this topic.

#### To fetch an account number:

**1.** From the screen, click the  $\bigcirc$  icon from the **Account Number** field.

The Account Number section is displayed.



Account Numbe	r		
Customer ID	Account Number		
ccount Description			
Fetch			
Customer ID	Account Number	Account Description	Branch
008475	001CONM180890004	RONY THOMAS	001
008475	000CONM180890036	RONY THOMAS	000
008475	000ABS3180890238	RONY THOMAS	000
Page 1	of 6 (1 - 10 of 52 items	s)  <	الا ا

#### Figure 1-2 Account Search

- 2. In the Account Number section, specify the details to perform the search.
- 3. Click Fetch.

The account number is fetched and displayed in the table. For more information on fields, refer to field description table below:

Table 1-2	<b>Account Search - Field Description</b>
	recount ocaron i leia besonption

Field	Description
Customer ID	Specify the unique ID of the customer.
Account Number	Specify the account number of the customer.
Account Description	Specify the description for the account.
Customer ID	Displays the unique ID of the customer.
Account Number	Displays the account number of the customer.
Account Description	Displays the description for the account.
Branch	Displays the branch of customer's account.

4. Select the entry from the list displayed in the table.

## 1.3.2 Fetch Ledger Code

The steps to fetch a ledger code is covered in this topic.

#### To fetch a ledger code:

 From the screen, click the cicon from theLedger Code field. The Ledger Code section is displayed.

Ledger Code		×
GL Account	GL Account Name	
Fetch		
GL Account	GL Account Name	
10000089	Dr GL for SI	
10000090	Dr GL for SI	
111100001	Cash in Hand - LCY	
111100002	Cash in Vault - LCY	
111100003	Cash in Transit - LCY	
111100004	Cash in Till	
Page 1 of 116 (1-10 of 1	1153 items)  < ( 1 2 3 4 5 116 )	

Figure 1-3 Fetch Ledger Code

- 2. In the Ledger Code section, specify the GL account or name in the GL Account or GL Account Name field.
- 3. Click Fetch.

The ledger account or name is fetched and displayed in the table.

4. Select the required GL number or name from the **GL Account** or **GL Account Name** list displayed in the table.

## 1.3.3 Fetch Customer ID

The steps to fetch the customer ID is covered in this topic.

To fetch customer ID:

**1.** From the screen, click the *icon* from the **Customer ID** field.

The **Customer ID** section is displayed.



Customer ID		
Customer ID		
Fetch		
Customer ID	Customer Name	
001671	XXXXXXX X XXXXX	
001673	XXXXXXX X XXXXX	
001675	XXXXXXX X XXXXX	
001677	XXXXXXX X XXXXX	
001679	XXXXXXX X XXXXX	
Page 1	of 261 (1 - 10 of 2607 items)  < (1 2 3 4 5 261	► >

#### Figure 1-4 Customer ID

2. In the Customer ID section, specify the ID in the Customer ID field.

#### 3. Click Fetch.

The customer ID is fetched and displayed in the table.

4. Select the required customer ID from the **Customer ID** or **Customer Name** list displayed in the table.

## 1.3.4 Audit Details

The steps to view the audit details of a screen is covered in this topic.

#### To view the audit details:

1. From the screen, click Audit.

The Audit Trial Details section is displayed.



# Audit Trail Details Serial Number Stage Name Date and Time User ID Status No data to display.

Close

2. View the required details. For more information on fields, refer to field description table below:



Field	Description
S.No	Displays the serial number.
Stage Name	Displays the stage name.
Date & Time	Displays the stamped date and time.
User ID	Displays the user ID.
Status	Displays the status of the stage.

Table 1-3 Audit Trail Details - Field Description

3. Click Close.

## 1.3.5 Remarks

Maintaining comments or remarks related to the screen and posting the same if required, is covered in this topic. The system saves the post and displays them along with the date, time, and name of the user who has posted.

#### To post a remark:

**1.** From the screen, click **Remarks**, on the top right.

A section to specify remarks is displayed.



#### Figure 1-6 Remarks



- 2. Specify the remarks as required.
- 3. Click Post.

The remarks you posted as displayed in the section below.

## 1.3.6 Save & Close

The steps to save the details specified or selected in the screen and close the screen are covered in this topic.

As you click **Save & Close**, the details are saved and the screen is closed. The next time you launch the screen with the same user ID, the saved details are displayed.

#### To save and close:

- 1. Launch any screen, select or specify the details.
- 2. Click Save & Close.

A Save & Close confirmation message is displayed.

#### Figure 1-7 Save and Close Confirmation Message

Save & Close		×
You are trying to save and close. Please confirm.		I
Remarks		
	Confirm Cancel	

#### 3. Click Confirm.

The details are saved successfully and screen is closed.

## 1.4 Oracle Digital Assistance

You can reduce the time taken to access the transaction screens through automatic text or voice processing using the Oracle Digital Assistant (ODA).

#### To enable and access the virtual assistant:

1. From the user menu list, to enable the virtual assistant, switch to **Virtual Assistant** field.

A Virtual Assistant icon is displayed on the screen.



Menu Item Search	Q	Dashboard	About
Menu			Change Password
			Virtual Assistant
	ĺ.		Log Out
	>		
	>		
	>		

## Figure 1-8 Virtual Assistant

2. Click

The chat window is displayed.



💬 Chat with us	<u>2%</u>	—
Hi there, my name is Artie. I'm your Branch Assistant Bot. How can i help you?		
Type a message		Ŷ

Figure 1-9 Virtual Assistant Chat Window

- 3. Specify the query, for which you need assistant.
- 4. Specify the account number for the account type selected and click  $\checkmark$  .

# 2 Accounts

Under the **Accounts** menu, you can perform various vital transactions on a loan account.

This topic contains the following subtopics:

Consolidated Rollover

You can consolidate the loan accounts having the same currency using the **Consolidated Rollover** screen. Once the accounts are consolidated, you can define the driving factors for various aspects for the new consolidated loan account.

- Loan Activation
   You can initiate activation of the loan account, which are not yet initiated using the Loan
   Activation screen.
- Loan Adhoc Charges

You can initiate a transaction to collect adhoc charges for a loan account using the **Loan Adhoc Charges** screen.

- Loan Adhoc Refund You can initiate a loan adhoc refund for a loan account using the Loan Adhoc Refundscreen.
- Loan Disbursement
   You can initiate a disbursement for the loan account using the Loan Disbursement
   screen. The disbursement can be a partial or full disbursement.
- Loan Write-Off

You can write-off the loan amount of the customer that is not coverable from the customer using the **Loan Write-Off**screen.

• Loan 360

The **Loan 360** screen is the dashboard for loans service, which gives a consolidated view of all the details related to a loan account and helps you to perform various transactions on the account.

Transaction Inquiry

You can access the details of a particular transaction and provide clarifications to customers with the help of available features in the **Transaction Inquiry**screen.

Transaction View & Reversal

You can view the loan transactions related to an account. If required, you can also initiate reversal of the transaction after due diligence using the **Transaction View & Reversal** screen.

## 2.1 Consolidated Rollover

You can consolidate the loan accounts having the same currency using the **Consolidated Rollover** screen. Once the accounts are consolidated, you can define the driving factors for various aspects for the new consolidated loan account.

#### To consoldiate loan accounts:

ORACLE

✓ Note: The fields marked as Required are mandatory.

1. On the Homepage, from Loan Service mega menu, under Accounts, click Consolidated Rollover. You can also open the screen by specifying Consolidated Rollover in the search icon bar and selecting the screen.

The **Consolidated Rollover** screen is displayed.

## Figure 2-1 Consolidated Rollover

Consolidate Rollover		Remarks Documents
Consolidation	Consolidation	Screen(1/5
Schedule	Customer ID	
Interest & Fees	Required	
Settlement		
Consolidated Account D		

2. On the **Consolidated Rollover** screen, click the *icon* or specify the customer ID in the **Customer** field, and press **Tab** or **Enter**.

In the **Consolidation** tab, the **Accounts** section with basic account details are displayed.



Consolidate Rollov	er					Remarks
Consolidation	Consolidation					Screen(1/
Schedule	Customer ID 008575	0				
Interest & Fees		~				
Settlement	✓ Accounts					
Consolidated Account D						
	AB01 - RETAIL		LCT1 - CORPORATE		AMRV - CORPORATE	
	Account Total Outstanding	LN2AB01180890012 GBP 15,069.94	Account Total Outstanding	LN2LCT1180890003 GBP 24,115.62	Account Total Outstanding	LN2AMRV180890019 GBP 15,069.25
	Principal Outstanding	GBP 15,000.00	Principal Outstanding	GBP 24,000.00	Principal Outstanding	GBP 15,000.00
	Other Outstanding	GBP 69.94	Other Outstanding	GBP 115.62	Other Outstanding	GBP 69.25
	Tenure	1 Year 5 Months 5 Days 775% EIXED	Tenure	1 Year 2 Months 14 Days 785% EIXED	Tenure	1 Year 4 Months 14 Days 75% EIXED
	interest nate	7.75% FIXED	interest tate	7.65% FIXED	inclust fute	7.5% FIXED
	AB01 - RETAIL		LRT3 - RETAIL		ABS3 - RETAIL	
	Account Total Outstanding	LN2AB01180890016 GBP 34,865.93	Account Total Outstanding	LN2LRT3180890010 GBP 13,000.00	Account Total Outstanding	LN2ABS3180890152 GBP 85,667.04
	Principal Outstanding	GBP 34,754.93	Principal Outstanding	GBP 13,000.00	Principal Outstanding	GBP 85,000.00
	Other Outstanding	GBP 111.00	Other Outstanding	GBP 0.00	Other Outstanding	GBP 667.04
	Tenure Interest Rate	2 Years 19 Days 6.5% FIXED	Tenure	1 Year 4 Months 14 Days 774% EIXED	Tenure	1 Year 4 Months 14 Days
			interest fute	7.74% FIXED	interest nate	12.75% FIXED
	CR01 - RETAIL		ABS3 - RETAIL		CR01 - RETAIL	
	Account	LN2CR01180890009	Account	LN2ABS3180890103	Account	LN2CR01180890010

Figure 2-2 Consolidated Rollover – Account Details

- 3. In the **Consolidation** tab, maintain the required details. For more information, refer Consolidation Tab.
- 4. Click Next.

The **Schedule** tab is displayed. For more information, refer Schedule Tab.

5. Click Next.

The Interest & Fees tab is displayed. For more information, refer Interest & Fees Tab.

6. Click Next.

The **Settlement** tab is displayed. For more information, refer Settlement Tab.

7. Click Next.

The **Consolidated Account Details** tab is displayed. For more information, refer Consolidated Account Details Tab.

8. Click Submit.

The screen is successfully submitted for authorization.

Consolidation Tab

Using this tab, you can select the accounts to be consolidated.

Schedule Tab
Using this tab, you can view or define the schedule based on the product or account, for
the newly consolidated loan account.



Interest & Fees Tab
 Using this tab, you can view or define the interest or fees based on the product or account for the newly consolidated loan account.

- Settlement Tab Using this tab, you can define the settlement accounts for the newly consolidated loan account.
- Consolidated Account Details Tab Using this tab, you can view the basic details for the newly consolidated loan account.

## 2.1.1 Consolidation Tab

Using this tab, you can select the accounts to be consolidated.

An error message is displayed for the specified loan account, if:

- There are no active accounts.
- Only one active account is available.
- Currency of more than one active account is not the same.

#### To consolidate accounts:

- 1. In the **Consolidation** tab, select the accounts to be consolidated, in the **Accounts** section.
- 2. Click Consolidate.

The Accounts section is minimized, and other related fields are displayed.

#### Figure 2-3 Consolidated Rollover – Consolidation tab

Consolidate Rollov	/er				Remarks
Consolidation	Consolidation				Screen(1/5
Schedule	Customer ID 008155 0	XXXX XXXXXXX XXX			
Interest & Fees					
Settlement	> Accounts				
Consolidated Account D	Rollover Amount		Rollover Product		
	GBP 58,417.51 Modify Driver Account		ABS3	Q, Home Loans	
	LN2ABS3180890004 -				
Audit				Cancel	Save & Close Next
💉 Note	:				
Click	the 🎽 icon in the Ac	counts section	on, to view th	e account o	details.
1					

3. In the **Consolidate** tab, maintain other required details. For more information on fields, refer to the field description table below:



	Description
Customer ID	Click the clicon and select the customer number for initiating the activation of the customer's loan account.
	Note: For more information on fetching the customer ID, refer Fetch Customer ID.
Accounts	This section displays the basic account details of the customer.
<loan type=""></loan>	Displays the type of loan applied by the customer.
Account	Displays the account number of the loan product.
Total Outstanding	Displays the total outstanding amount of the loan product.
Principal Outstanding	Displays the principal outstanding amount of the loan product.
Other Outstanding	Displays the other outstanding amount of the loan product.
Tenure	Displays the tenure for the loan.
Interest Rate	Displays the interest rate applicable for the loan.
Rollover Amount	Insplays the sum of the <b>Total Outstanding</b> of all the loan accounts that are selected for consolidation.     Note:     This field is displayed if you click <b>Consolidate</b> .
Rollover Product	Select the rollover product.  Note:  This field is displayed if you click Consolidate. The list displays product code and description. For more information, refer Fetch Rollover Product.
Driver Account	Select the driver's account.  Note:  This field is displayed if you click Consolidate and the loan accounts you have selected for consolidation are of same product.

## Table 2-1 Consolidation tab – Field Description

• To fetch rollover product:



a. Click  $\bigcirc$  icon from the **Rollover Product** field.

The Rollover Product section is displayed.

Figure 2-4 Rollover Product

Rollover Product		×
Product Fetch		
Product	Product Description	
AB01	Home Loans	
ABS3	Home Loans	
AMR5	Home Loan	
AMRV	Home Loan	
CN10	Home Loans	
CN11	Home Loan	
Page 1 of 5 (1-10 of 47	7 items)  < ( 1 2 3 4 5 )	

- **b.** In the **Rollover Product** section, specify the product name in the **Product** field.
- c. Click Fetch.

The product is fetched and displayed in the table.

- d. Select the product from the **Product** or **Product Description** list displayed in the table.
- To modify the rollover amount:
  - a. From the Rollover Amount field, click Modify.

The **Rollover Amount Breakup** section is displayed. The amount breakup is displayed for the loan accounts selected for consolidation.



Rollover Amount Breakup	×
<b>RETAIL</b> (LN2ABS3180890004) Principal Outstanding	34,910.27
Other Outstanding Remove	206.58
RETAIL (LN2ABS3180890006) Principal Outstanding Other Outstanding Remove	23,187.28 113.38
Additional Principal Amount Total Rollover Amount Total Other Outstanding Settled	0.00 58,417.51 0.00
	Close Ok

#### Figure 2-5 Rollover Amount Breakup

**b.** In the **Rollover Amount Breakup** section, perform the required action.For more information on fields, refer to the field description table below:

 Table 2-2
 Rollover Amount Breakup – Field Description

Field	Description
<loan and<br="" product="">Loan Account Number&gt;</loan>	Displays the loan product selected for consolidation along with the loan account number.
Principal Outstanding	Displays the total principal outstanding amount for the specific loan account.



Field	Description		
Other Outstanding	<ul> <li>Displays the other outstanding amount including unbilled, for the specific loan account.</li> <li>Note: <ul> <li>You can click the Remove link from the specific loan account, to settle outstanding amount from the respective account's settlement account.</li> <li>As you remove the other outstanding amount, an indicator that the other outstanding amount will be debited from the loan's settlement account along with account balance is displayed below this field.</li> <li>On click of Remove, if the balance is insufficient, then a message with an indicator is displayed below this field. To add the amount back, click the Add Back link.</li> </ul> </li> </ul>		
Additional Principal Amount	Specify the additional principal amount.		
Total Rollover Amount	Displays the total rollover amount of all loan accounts, including Additional Principal Amount (if captured).		
Total Other Outstanding Settled	Displays the total outstanding settled amount.		

#### Table 2-2 (Cont.) Rollover Amount Breakup – Field Description

c. Click OK.

#### Note:

If you have combined two loan accounts having the same settlement account and click **OK**, then system validates if the settlement account have sufficient balance to pay off the two loan account's total amount. In case of insufficient balance, an error message is displayed that settlement account of the two accounts do have sufficient balance to pay off the **Other Outstanding**. Here, you need to click the **Add Back** link displayed next to **Other Oustanding** to proceed.

4. Click Next.

The **Schedule** tab is displayed.

## 2.1.2 Schedule Tab

Using this tab, you can view or define the schedule based on the product or account, for the newly consolidated loan account.

The prerequisites are as follows:



• Select accounts for consolidation. For more information, refer Consolidation Tab.

#### To define schedule:

1. In the **Schedule** tab, maintain the schedule for the consolidated account.

Consolidate Rollov	er						Remarks	:: ×
Consolidation	Schedule							Screen(2/5
Schedule	Customer ID 008155 XXXX							
Interest & Fees	Driver Basis							
Settlement	Product-ABS3-Home Loans	s 👻 🗹 Customize						
Consolidated Account D	Start Date			Tenure				
	Apr 30, 2018			1 Years	0	▼ Months 0	Days	
	Frequency			Installment Amo	unt			
	Monthly -					0.00		
	Maturity Date Mar 30, 2019							
	First Due Date \Rightarrow	Stage		Component		No. of Schedules	Frequency	
	Apr 30, 2018	Equated Principal Installment	Ŧ	MAIN_INT	~	11	Monthly	Ŧ
	Mar 30, 2019	Equated Principal Installment	Ŧ	MAIN_INT	Ŧ	1	Bullet	~
Audit						Cancel Back	Save & Close	Next

Figure 2-6 Schedule tab

For more information on fields, refer to field description table below:

 Table 2-3
 Schedule tab – Field Description

Field	Description
Customer ID	Displays the customer ID specified in the <b>Consolidation</b> tab.
Driver Basis	Select the account or product for the driver basis.
	<ul> <li>Note:</li> <li>This field is enabled if the Driver Account field is displayed in the Consolidation tab.</li> <li>If the Driver Account field is not displayed in the Consolidation tab, then the value defined in the Rollover Product field in the Consolidation tab is displayed in this field. In this case, the field is not enabled.</li> <li>If the product of the selected Driver Account and Rollover Product fields are different in the Consolidation tab, then the field displays the product selected in the Rollover Product fields are different in the Consolidation tab, then the field displays the product selected in the Rollover Product field is not enabled for editing.</li> <li>Only after you select an option from this field, other fields are displayed in this tab.</li> </ul>



Field	Description
Customize	Select the option to enable the fields and edit the required details
Customize Stort Data	Select the option to enable the neully senselidated lash associated
Start Date	Specify the start date for the newly consolidated loan account.
Tenure	<ul> <li>Specify the tenure to be maintained.</li> <li>Note: <ul> <li>By default, this field is not enabled. To enable the field, select the Customize option, displayed next to the Driver Basis field.</li> <li>If you specify a new value in this field, then the Show Revised Schedule button is displayed. As you click this button, the revised schedule is displayed based on the new number of schedules mentioned.</li> </ul> </li> </ul>
Frequency	Select the frequency for the new consolidated loan account.
	Note: By default, this field is not enabled. To enable the field, select the Customize option, displayed next to the Driver Basis field.
Installment Amount	Specify the total installment amount.
	Note: By default, this field is not enabled. To enable the field, select the Customize option, displayed next to the Driver Basis field.
Maturity Date	Displays the maturity date for the new consolidated loan account.
First Due Date	Displays the first due date for the new consolidated loan account.
Stage	Displays the schedule stage for the new consolidated loan account.
Component	Displays the component for the new consolidated loan account.
No. of Schedules	Displays the number of schedules for the new consolidated loan account.
Frequency	Displays the frequency for the new consolidated loan account.

## Table 2-3 (Cont.) Schedule tab – Field Description

2. Click Next.

The Interest & Fees section is displayed



## 2.1.3 Interest & Fees Tab

Using this tab, you can view or define the interest or fees based on the product or account for the newly consolidated loan account.

The prerequisites are as follows:

- Select accounts for consolidation. For more information, refer Consolidation Tab.
- View or define schedule. For more information, refer Schedule Tab.

#### To define interest or fees:

1. In the Interest & Fees tab, maintain the required details for the consolidated account.

## Note:

- If the **Driver Basis** field displays the product selected in the **Rollover Product** field in the **Consolidation** tab, then the **Customize** field will not be displayed. The fields will be available for modification, that is, you can **Add**, **Edit**, and **Delete** the required details.
- If the **Driver Basis** field is account based, then **Customize** field is displayed. Only on selection of the **Customize** field, you will be able to **Add**, **Edit**, and **Delete** the details.

Consolidate Rollov	er						Remarks
Consolidation	Interest & Fees		Screen(3/5)				
Schedule	Customer ID 008155 XX	xx xxxxxxx xxx					
Interest & Fees	Driver Basis						
Settlement	Product-ABS3-Home Loa						
Consolidated Account D							
							+
	Effective Date 🗘	Component	Rate Type	Rate Code	Code Usage	Final Value	Action
	March 30, 2018	Collection interest rat	Fixed			0%	1
	March 30, 2018	Handling Charge				0	1
	March 30, 2018	Interest Rate	Fixed			0%	1
	March 30, 2018	Maximum Processing				0	1
	March 30, 2018	Minimum Processing				0	1
	March 30, 2018	Overdue Penalty Rate	Fixed			0%	1
Audit					Cano	el Back Save	e & Close Next

Figure 2-7 Interest & Fees tab

For more information on fields, refer to field description table below:



Field	Description
Customer ID	Displays the customer ID specified in the <b>Consolidation</b> tab.
Driver Basis	Select the account or product for the driver basis.
	<ul> <li>Note:</li> <li>This field is enabled if the product of the Driver Account and Rollover Product is same in the Consolidation tab.</li> <li>If the product of the selected Driver Account and Rollover Product fields are different in the Consolidation tab, then the field displays the product selected in the Rollover Product field. Also, the Driver Basis field is not enabled for editing.</li> </ul>
Customize	Select the option to enable the fields and edit the required details.
	Note: This field is displayed if you select the Driver Account (selected in Consolidation tab) as Driver Basis.
Effective Date	Displays the date from which the interest and fees are applicable.
Component	Displays the interest and fees component.
Rate Type	Displays the type of rate.
Rate Code	Displays the rate code.
Code Usage	Displays the code usage.
Final Value	Displays the final value.
Action	<ul> <li>Displays the actions you can perform on the interest and fees details. The following icons are displayed:</li> <li>You can click this icon, to edit the details in a row. For more information, refer Edit Details.</li> <li>You can click this icon, to delete the row.</li> </ul>
	Note: This field is displayed if you select the Customize option, displayed next to the Driver Basis field.

## Table 2-4 Interest & Fees tab – Field Description



- You can add a new component for the product or account, by performing the following actions:
  - a. From the Driver Basis field, select an option.
  - b. Select the Customize option, displayed next to the Driver Basis field.
  - c. Click Add.

The Modify Interest/Fees section is displayed.

#### Figure 2-8 Modify Interest and Fees

-	-	
Effective Date		
	Requ	uired
Component		•
	Regi	uired

Cancel Ok

For more information on fields, refer to field description table below:

	Table 2-5	Add Component -	Field Description
--	-----------	-----------------	-------------------

Field	Description
Effective Date	Select or specify the date from which the interest and fees are applicable.
Component	Select the interest and fees component.
Rate Type	Select the type of rate. The options are: - Fixed - Variable



Field	Description
	Description
Rate Code	Select the rate code.
	Note: This field is displayed if you select the Variable option from the Rate Type field.
Code Usage	Select the code usage. The options are: – Automatic – Periodic
	Note: This field is displayed if you select the Variable option from the Rate Type field.
Value	Displays the value based on the option selected from the <b>Rate Code</b> field.
Variance	Specify the variance.
	Note: This field is displayed if you select the Variable option from the Rate Type field.
Final Value	Displays the final value.
	Note: This field is displayed if you select the Variable option from the Rate Type field.

#### Table 2-5 (Cont.) Add Component – Field Description

- d. Click OK.
- You can edit the component for the product or account, by performing the following actions:
  - a. Select the product from the **Driver Basis** field.
  - b. Select the Customize option, displayed next to the Driver Basis field.
  - c. From the Action field, click the *c* icon.

×

The **Modify Interest/Fees** section is displayed with values defined earlier.

Figure 2-9	Modify	Interest	and Fee	es
------------	--------	----------	---------	----

#### **Modify Interest/Fees**

Effective Date	March 30	Ē	
Component	Collecti	•	
Rate Type	Fixed	Variable	
Value	0		

Cancel Ok

For more information on fields, refer Table 2-5.

- d. You can edit the required details and click OK.
- 2. Click Next.

The **Settlement** tab is displayed.

## 2.1.4 Settlement Tab

Using this tab, you can define the settlement accounts for the newly consolidated loan account.

The prerequisites are as follows:

- Select accounts for consolidation. For more information, refer Consolidation Tab.
- View or define schedule. For more information, refer Schedule Tab.
- View or define interest and fees. For more information, refer Interest & Fees Tab.

#### To define settlement accounts:

1. In the **Settlement** tab, maintain the required details for the consolidated account.



Consolidate Ro	llover						Remarks Documer	nts 1, X		
Consolidation	Settlement	Settlement					Scree			
Schedule	Customer ID 0	Customer ID 008475 XXXX XXXXXX								
) Interest & Fees	Driver Basis									
Settlement	Account-LN2AE	353180890249-RETAIL	Customize							
Consolidated Account	D									
	Transaction	Туре	Account/Ledger	Branch	Currency					
	Debit	Account 👻	0000084754( Q	000	GBP					
	Credit	Account 👻	0000084754( Q	000	GBP					
						Cancel	Back Save & Clo	ose Next		

Figure 2-10 Settlement tab

For more information on fields, refer to field description table below:

 Table 2-6
 Settlement Tab – Field Description

Field	Description
Customer ID	Displays the customer ID specified in the <b>Consolidation</b> tab.
Driver Basis	<ul> <li>Displays the account for the driver basis.</li> <li>Note: <ul> <li>This field is displayed if the Driver Account field is displayed in the Consolidation tab.</li> <li>By default, the field displays the account selected in the Driver Account field in the Consolidation tab.</li> </ul> </li> </ul>
Customize	Select the option to enable the fields and edit the required details.
Transaction	Displays the type of transaction.
Туре	Displays the account type.
Account/Ledger	<ul> <li>Specify the account or ledger for settlement.</li> <li>Note:         <ul> <li>By default, a value is displayed in this field. To edit, select the Customize option, displayed next to the Driver Basis field.</li> <li>For more information on fetching the account or ledger number, refer Fetch Account or Ledger.</li> </ul> </li> </ul>
Branch	Displays the branch of the account or ledger account.
Currency	Displays the currency of the amount.
- To fetch account or ledger account:
  - a. Click <sup>Q</sup> icon from the **Account/Ledger** field.

### Figure 2-11 Account Number

Account Number			:
Account Number	Customer Name	Branch	
Account Number	Customer Name	Currency	Branch
000000004	John Gilbert Ben	GBP	NM1
00000007076	CORP1	GBP	000
00000007087	CORP1	GBP	000
00000007167	CORP1	GBP	000
00000007189	CORP1	GBP	000
00000007291	CORP1	GBP	000
Page 1 of 160 (1-10)	of 1598 items) 🛛 🤟 📢 🗍	2 3 4 5 160 <b>≻ &gt;</b>	

- b. In the Account Number section, specify the details in the Account Number, Customer Name, or Branch field.
- c. Click Fetch.

The required information is fetched and displayed in the table.

d. Select the required entry from the Account Number, Customer Name, Currency, or Branch list displayed in the table.

### Note:

If the **Driver Account** field is not displayed in the **Consolidation** tab, then by default the fields are enabled.

2. Click Next.

The Consolidated Account Details tab is displayed.

### 2.1.5 Consolidated Account Details Tab

Using this tab, you can view the basic details for the newly consolidated loan account.

The prerequisites are as follows:

- Select accounts for consolidation. For more information, refer Consolidation Tab.
- View or define the schedule. For more information, refer Schedule Tab.
- View or define interest and fees. For more information, refer Interest & Fees Tab.



• Define settlement accounts. For more information, refer Settlement Tab.

To view consolidated account details:

**1.** In the **Consolidated Account Details** tab, view the details or summary of consolidation.

Consolidate Rollov	ver		Remarks	Documents	::×
Consolidation	Consolidated Account Details				Screen(5/5
Schedule	Customer ID 008475 XXXX XXXXXX				
Interest & Fees	Value Date	Total Rollover Amount			
Settlement	March 30, 2018	GBP 64,606.60			
Consolidated Account D	Interest Rate	Installment Amount			
	0% FIXED	GBP 5,383.88			
	Number of Installments	Maturity Date			
	12	March 30, 2019			
	Tenure				
	1 Year				
			Cancel Back	Save & Close	Submit

Figure 2-12 Consolidated Account Details tab

For more information on fields, refer to field description table below:

<b>Field Description</b>

Field	Description
Customer ID	Displays the customer ID specified in the <b>Consolidation</b> tab.
Value Date	Displays the current system date as the value date.
Total Rollover Amount	Displays the total amount of rollover.
Interest Rate	Displays the rate of interest applicable for the new consolidated account.
Installment Amount	Displays the installment amount for the new consolidated account.
Number of Installments	Displays the number of installments for the new consolidated account.
Maturity Date	Displays the maturity date for the new consolidated account.
Tenure	Displays the tenure in terms of years, months, and days for the new consolidated account.

2. Click Submit.

The screen is successfully submitted for authorization.

# 2.2 Loan Activation

You can initiate activation of the loan account, which are not yet initiated using the **Loan Activation** screen.

To initiate loan account activation:



Note: The fields marked as Required are mandatory.

1. On the Homepage, from Loan Service mega menu, under Accounts, click Loan Activation. You can also open the screen by specifying Loan Activation in the search icon bar and selecting the screen.

The Loan Activation screen is displayed.

Figure 2-13 Loan Activation

Loan Activation		Remarks	Documents	];; ×
Customer ID	Required			
Audit			Cancel	Submit

2. On the Loan Activation screen, click the customer number in the Customer field, and press Tab or Enter.

The Accounts section with basic account details are displayed.





Loan Activation				R	emarks Documents 1 r
ustomer ID 008575	Q XXXXX				
Accounts					
ABS3 - Home Loans		ABS3 - Home Loans		HLL1 - Home Loan-Ind	ividual
Account Number	LN2ABS3180890172	Account Number	LN2ABS3180890173	Account Number	LN2HLL1180890003
Booking Date	Mar 30, 2018	Booking Date	Mar 30, 2018	Booking Date	Mar 30, 2018
Value Date	Mar 30, 2018	Value Date	Mar 30, 2018	Value Date	Mar 27, 2018
Sanctioned	GBP 45,000.00	Sanctioned	GBP 36,000.00	Sanctioned	GBP 75,000.00
Term	2 Years 11 Months 4 Days	Term	3 Years 11 Months 12 Days	Term	2 Years 11 Months 5 Da
Rate of Interest	7.75% FIXED	Rate of Interest	4.5% FIXED	Rate of Interest	4% VARIABLE
Number of Installments	36	Number of Installments	48	Number of Installments	36
1		)		]	
Audit					Cancel Su

Figure 2-14 Loan Activation - Account Details

3. On the Loan Activation screen, in the Accounts section, select the check box in the tile, to initiate the activation of the loan account. For more information on fields, refer to field description table below:

 Table 2-8
 Loan Activation – Field Description

Field	Description
Customer ID	Click the clicon and select the customer number for initiating the activation of the customer's loan account.
	Note: For more information on fetching the customer ID, refer Fetch Customer ID.
Accounts	This section displays the basic account details of the customer.
<loan type=""></loan>	Displays the type of loan applied by the customer.
Account Number	Displays the loan account number to be initiated for activation.
Booking Date	Displays the account booking date.
Value Date	Displays the value date on which the loan account was booked.
Sanctioned	Displays the sanctioned loan amount with currency.
Term	Displays the term for the loan.
Rate of Interest	Displays the rate of interest to be applied on the loan account.
Number of Installment	Displays the total number of loan installments.

### Note:

You can select only a single account from the **Accounts** section, for initiating the activation.

4. Click Submit.

The transaction is submitted for authorization.

# 2.3 Loan Adhoc Charges

You can initiate a transaction to collect adhoc charges for a loan account using the **Loan** Adhoc Charges screen.

To initiate loan adhoc charges:



 On the Homepage, from Loan Service mega menu, under Accounts, click Loan Adhoc Charges. You can also open the screen by specifying Loan Adhoc Charges in the search icon bar and selecting the screen.

The Loan Adhoc Charges screen is displayed.

Figure 2-15 Loan Adhoc Charges

Loan Adhoc Cha	irges		Remark	s 1 5 ×
• Charge Details	Charge Details			Screen(1/2
Settlement Details	Account Number	Q		
		Required		
Audit			Cancel Save & Close	e Next

2. On the Loan Adhoc Charges screen, click the cicon or specify the account number in the Account Number field, and press Tab or Enter. For more information on search, refer Fetch Account Number.

The details are displayed in the Charge Details tab.

### Note:

If the product of the active loan account number does not have a component defined with Component Type as Adhoc Charge, then the system will display a message that adhoc charge component is not maintained for the loan product.



Charge Details	Charge Details		Screen(1/2
Settlement Details	Account Number	00ABS3180890086 Q RONY THOMAS	
	Value Date	March 30, 2018	
	Component	ADHOC CHARGE 1	
	Charge Type	ADCH	
	Amount	GBP ¥ 10.00	

### Figure 2-16 Charge Details tab

3. On the **Charges Details** tab, perform the action for initiating the loan adhoc charges. For more information on fields, refer to field description table below:

Table 2-9 Charge Details tab – Field Description

Field	Description
Account Number	Click the con and select the account number or specify the account number for performing loan adhoc charges.
	Note: As you specify the account number, the name of the account holder appears next to the account number.
Value Date	Select or specify the value for performing the transaction.
	Note: You can specify a future date that is within the maturity date.
Component	Select the loan component type.
Charge Type	Select the charge type for the loan account that is maintained at host.
Amount	Specify the amount to pay for adhoc charges.
	Note: The amount currency is displayed in this field and it is not enabled.



4. Click Next.

The **Settlement Details** tab is displayed. For more information on this tab, refer Settlement through CASA and Settlement through Ledger.

5. Click Submit.

The transaction is submitted for authorization.

- Settlement through CASA You can perform settlement towards the adhoc charges through your CASA accounts.
- Settlement through Ledger
   You can perform settlement towards the adhoc charges through your Ledger accounts.

### 2.3.1 Settlement through CASA

You can perform settlement towards the adhoc charges through your CASA accounts.

#### To settle charges by CASA:

1. In the Charge Details tab, maintain the required details, and click Next.

The Settlement Details tab is displayed.

### Figure 2-17 Settlement Details tab

Loan Adhoc Cha	rges	Remarks J - X
Charge Details	Settlement Details	Screen(2/2
Settlement Details	Account Number 000ABS3180890086 RONY THOMAS	
	Pay Now Later	
	Pay Through CASA Ledger	
	Credit Account 313300011 Q	

- 2. From the Pay Through field, select the CASA option.
- 3. You can perform settlement through CASA using any of the following actions:
  - For CASA account in local currency:



Loan Adhoc Cha	arges		Remarks
O Charge Details	Settlement De	tails	Screen(2/2)
Settlement Details	Account Number	00ABS3180890086 RONY THOMAS	
	Pay	Now Later	
	Pay Through	CASA Ledger	
	Account	Account RONY THOMAS~000008475	
	Credit Account	313300011 Q	

Figure 2-18 Settlement Details - CASA Account in Local Currency

For more information on fields, refer to field description table below:

Table 2-10	Settlement Details - CASA Account in Local Currency -
<b>Field Descr</b>	iption

Field	Description		
Pay	Select the <b>Now</b> option to pay the adhoc charges.  Note:  If you select Later option, then a message is displayed that the settlement will be done in the next payment transaction.		
Pay Through	Select the <b>CASA</b> option to perform the settlement.    Note:  For information on Ledger, refer Settlement through Ledger.		
Account	Select the CASA account in local currency.  Note:  For information if you select CASA in foreign currency from the list, refer CASA in Foreign Currency.  For information if you select the Other CASA option from the list, refer CASA within the Bank.		

# Table 2-10(Cont.) Settlement Details – CASA Account in LocalCurrency – Field Description

Field	Description
Credit Account	Displays the credit account where by default all the adhoc charges income are credited.
	Note: If required, you can select other credit number by clicking the con. For more information, refer Fetch Credit Account.

• For CASA account in foreign currency:

### Figure 2-19 Settlement Details - CASA Account in Foreign Currency

Loan Adhoc Cha	rges		Remarks 🚽 🖕 🗙
Ocharge Details	Settlement De	tails	Screen(2/2)
Settlement Details	Account Number	00ABS3180890086 RONY THOMAS	
	Pay Pay Through Account Account Amount Exchange Rate Credit Account	Now Later CASA Ledger Account RONY THOMAS-000008475 ZAR 0.00 1 Edit 313300011 Q	
Audit			Cancel Back Save & Close Next Submit

For more information on fields, refer to field description table below:

# Table 2-11Settlement Details - CASA Account in Foreign Currency – FieldDescription

Field	Description	
Рау	Select the <b>Now</b> option to pay the adhoc charges.	
	Note: If you select the Later option, then a message is displayed that the settlement will be done in the next payment transaction.	



Field	Description		
Pay Through	Select the <b>CASA</b> option to perform the settlement.		
	Note: For information on Ledger, refer Settlement through Ledger.		
Account	Select the CASA account in foreign currency.		
	Note: For information if you select CASA in local currency from the list, refer CASA in Local Currency. For information if you select the Other CASA option from the list, refer CASA within the Bank.		
Credit Account	Displays the credit account where, by default all the adhoc charges income are credited.		
	Note: If required, you can select other credit number by clicking the clicking th		

# Table 2-11 (Cont.) Settlement Details - CASA Account in Foreign Currency – Field Description

• For CASA accounts within the bank:

### Figure 2-20 Settlement Details - CASA within the Bank

Loan Adhoc Ch	arges		Remarks
O Charge Details	Settlement De	tails	Screen(2/2
Settlement Details	Account Number	000ABS3180890086 RONY THOMAS	
	Pay	Now Later	
	Pay Through	CASA Ledger	
	Account	Account Others	
	Туре	CASA Within the Bank	
	Account Number	LN2LCT1180890003	
	Credit Account	313300011 Q	



For more information on fields, refer to field description table below:

Field	Description
Рау	Select the <b>Now</b> option to pay the adhoc charges.
	Note: If you select Later option, then a message is displayed that the settlement will be done in the next payment transaction.
Pay Through	Select the <b>CASA</b> option to perform the settlement.
	Note: For information on Ledger, refer Settlement through Ledger.
Account	Select the account from which the adhoc charges is to be settled.
	Note: For information if you select the CASA in local currency from the list, refer CASA in Local Currency. For information if you select CASA in foreign currency from the list, refer CASA in Foreign Currency.
Tune	Displays the type of CASA Within the Benk
Account Amount	Displays the type as CASA within the bank.
Credit Account	Displays the credit account where by default all the adhoc charges income are credited.
	Note: If required, you can select other credit number by clicking the clicking th

Table 2-12	Settlement Details - CASA Within the Bank - Field Description	on

- To fetch the credit account:
  - **a.** From the **Credit Account** field, click the  $\bigcirc$  icon.



The **Credit Account** section is displayed.

Credit Account	×
Account Number	
Account Number	
10000089	
10000090	
111100001	
111100002	
111100003	
111100004	
Page 1 of 116 (1-10 of 1153 items)  < (1 2 3 4 5 116 )	

- **b.** In the **Credit Account** section, specify the credit account number in the **Account Number** field and click **Fetch**.
- **c.** Select the required number from the **Account Number** list displayed in the table.
- 4. Click Submit.

The screen is successfully submitted for authorization.

### 2.3.2 Settlement through Ledger

You can perform settlement towards the adhoc charges through your Ledger accounts.

### To pay adhoc charges by Ledger:

 In the Charge Details tab, maintain the required details, and click Next. The Settlement Details tab is displayed.



Loan Adhoc Cha	irges		Rem	arks
Charge Details	Settlement De	ails		Screen(2/2
Settlement Details	Account Number C	DOABS3180890086 RONY THOMAS		
	Pay	Now Later		
	Pay Through	CASA Ledger		
	Credit Account	313300011 Q		
Audit			Cancel Back Save & Close Ne	Submit

### Figure 2-22 Settlement Details tab

From the Pay Through field, select the Ledger option.
 The fields related to ledger are displayed.

### Figure 2-23 Settlement through Ledger Account

Loan Adhoc Cha	arges				Remarks	:: ×
O Charge Details	Settlement D	etails				Screen(2/2
Settlement Details	Account Number	000ABS3180890086 RONY TH	MAS			
	Pay	Now Later				
	Pay Through	CASA Ledger				
	Ledger Code	111100005	Q Cash in Vault			
	Currency	GBP				
	Credit Account	313300011	۹			

3. Specify the details in the required fields. For more information on fields, refer to field description table below:

Field	Description
Рау	Select the <b>Now</b> option to pay the adhoc charges.
	Note: If you select Later option, then a message is displayed that the settlement will be done in the next payment transaction.
Pov Through	Select the Ladrage ention to perform the settlement
Pay Through	Select the Ledger option to perform the settlement.
	<b>Note:</b> For information on <b>CASA</b> , refer Settlement through CASA.
	<u></u>
Ledger Code	Click the <sup>C</sup> icon and select the ledger code for performing the adhoc charges settlement.
	Note: For more information in fetching the ledger code, refer Fetch Ledger Code.
Currency	Select the currency for the ledger amount.
Credit Account	charges income are credited.
	Note: If required, you can select other credit number by clicking the clicking th

### Table 2-13 Settlement Details – Ledger – Field Description

### 4. Click Submit.

The screen is successfully submitted for authorization.



# 2.4 Loan Adhoc Refund

You can initiate a loan adhoc refund for a loan account using the **Loan Adhoc Refund**screen.

An adhoc refund is performed when there is an erroneous error done by the system or some error done by you. You can do adhoc refund only for the accounts for which disbursement is performed.

To initiate loan adhoc refund:



 On the Homepage, from Loan Service mega menu, under Accounts, click Loan Adhoc Refund. You can also open the screen by specifying Loan Adhoc Refund in the search icon bar and selecting the screen.

The Loan Adhoc Refund screen is displayed.

Figure 2-24 Loan Adhoc Refund

Loan Adhoc Re	fund			Remarks	::×
Refund Details	Refund Details				Screen(1/2)
Payout	Account Number	Q Required			
Audit			Can	cel Save & Close	Next

2. On the Loan Adhoc Refund screen, click the icon or specify the account number in the Account Number field, and press Tab or Enter. For more information on search, refer Fetch Account Number.

The details are displayed in the Loan Adhoc Refund tab.



Refund Details	Refund Details		Screen(1/2
Payout	Account Number LN2AMRV180890	0065 Q RONY THOMAS	
	Value Date March 30, 20 Refund Type Adhoc Refur	18 mil	
	Refund Nature	Refund Amount	
	Covid Relief Interest Credit	20.00	
	Total	20.00	

Figure 2-25 Loan Adhoc Refund tab

3. On the Loan Adhoc Refund tab, perform the action for initiating the loan adhoc refund. For more information on fields, refer to field description table below:

Table 2-14 Loan Adhoc Refund tab – Field Description

Field	Description
Account Number	Click the con and select the account number or specify the account number for initiating the adhoc refund.
	Note: As you specify the account number, the name of the account holder appears next to the account number.
Value Date	Specify the value date for performing the transaction.
	Note: By default, the current posting date is displayed in this field. If required, you can specify a back or future date.
Refund Type	Select the type of adhoc refund to be performed
Refund Nature	Displays the nature of refund present for the loan account.
Refund Amount	Specify the refund amount corresponding to the refund nature.
Total	Displays the total of the <b>Refund Amount</b> field.

#### 4. Click Next.

The **Payout** tab is displayed. For more information on this tab, refer Payout through CASA and Payout through Ledger.

5. Click Submit.

The transaction is submitted for authorization.



- Payout through CASA You can perform settlement towards the adhoc refund through your CASA accounts.
- Payout through Ledger You can perform settlement towards the adhoc refund through your Ledger accounts.

## 2.4.1 Payout through CASA

You can perform settlement towards the adhoc refund through your CASA accounts.

### To pay by CASA:

1. In the **Payout** tab, maintain the required details, and click **Next**.

The **Payout** tab is displayed.

### Figure 2-26 Payout tab

Loan Adhoc Re	fund		Remarks 1 ×
Refund Details	Payout		Screen(2/2)
Payout	Account Numbe	000AMRV180890018 John Gilbert Ben	
	Settle	CASA Ledger	
Audit			Cancel Back Save & Close Next Submit

2. From the Settle field, select the CASA option.

The fields related to CASA are displayed.

- 3. You can perform settlement through CASA using any of the following actions:
  - For CASA account in local currency:

### Figure 2-27 Payout - CASA Account in Local Currency

Loan Adhoc Re	fund		Remarks	::×
Refund Details	Payout			Screen(2/2)
Payout	Account Numbe	000AMRV180890018 John Gilbert Ben		
	Settle Account	CASA Ledger Account John Gilbert Ben~0000000		
Audit			Cancel Back Save & Close Next	Submit



For more information on fields, refer to field description table below:

Field	Description
Settle	Select the <b>CASA</b> option to perform the settlement.
	<b>Note:</b> For information on <b>Ledger</b> , refer Payout through Ledger.
Account	Select the CASA account in local currency.
	Note: For information if you select CASA in foreign currency, refer CASA in Forgein Currency. For information if you select the Other CASA option from the list, refer CASA within the Bank.

Table 2-15 Payout - CASA in Local Currency – Field Description

• For CASA account in foreign currency:

### Figure 2-28 Payout - CASA Account in Foreign Currency

Loan Adhoc Re	efund		Remarks 🚽 🐂 🗙
⊘ Refund Details ↓ ● Payout	Payout Account Number 0	00AMRV180890018 John Gilbert Ben	Screen(2/2)
	Settle Account Account Amount Exchange Rate	CASA Ledger Account John Gilbert Ben-SSS008155 ZAR 0.00 1 Edit	
Audit			Cancel Back Save & Close Next Submit

For more information on fields, refer to field description table below:



Field	Description	
Settle	Select the <b>CASA</b> option to perform the settlement.	
	<b>Note:</b> For information on <b>Ledger</b> , refer Payout through Ledger.	
Account	Select the CASA account in foreign currency.	
	<ul> <li>Note:</li> <li>For information if you select CASA in local currency, refer CASA in Local Currency.</li> <li>For information if you select the Other CASA option from the list, refer CASA within the Bank.</li> </ul>	
Account Amount	Displays the foreign currency specified in the <b>Refund Amount</b> field in the <b>Loan Adhoc Refund</b> tab.	
Exchange Rate is <currency and="" rate=""></currency>	Displays the current exchange rate of the amount.	
	<b>Note:</b> To modify the rate, you can click the <b>Edit</b> link.	

 Table 2-16
 Payout - CASA in Foreign Currency – Field Description

• For CASA account within the bank:

|--|

Loan Adhoc Re	fund			Remarks	:: ×
Refund Details	Payout				Screen(2/2
Payout	Account Number	000AMRV180890018 John Gilbert Ben			
	Settle	CASA Ledger			
	Account	Account Others			
	Туре	CASA Within the Bank			
	Account Number	LN2LCT1180890003			
Audit			Cancel Back Save & C	ose Next	Submit



For more information on fields, refer to field description table below:

Field	Description
Settle	Select the <b>CASA</b> option to perform the settlement.
	Note: For information on Ledger, refer Payout through Ledger.
Account	Select the <b>Other CASA</b> option.
	Note: For information if you select CASA in local currency, refer CASA in Local Currency. For information if you select CASA in foreign currency, refer CASA in Foreign Currency.
Туре	Displays the type as CASA Within the Bank
Туре	
Account Number	Specify the CASA account number for performing the adhoc refund.

Table 2-17 Payout - CASA Within the Bank – Field Description

4. Click Submit.

The screen is successfully submitted for authorization.

## 2.4.2 Payout through Ledger

You can perform settlement towards the adhoc refund through your Ledger accounts.

### To pay by Ledger:

 In the Loan Adhoc Refund tab, maintain the required details, and click Next. The Payout tab is displayed.



Loan Adhoc Re	fund	Remark	s i X
Refund Details	Payout		Screen(2/2)
• Payout	Account Number 000AMRV180890018 John Gilbert Ben		
	Settle CASA Ledger		
Audit	Cai	ncel Back Save & Close Next	Submit

Figure 2-30 Payout tab

From the Settle field, select the Ledger option.
 The fields related to ledger are displayed.

Figure 2-31 Payout - Ledger Account

Loan Adhoc Re	fund		Remarks 🚽 🖕 🗙
Refund Details	Payout		Screen(2/2)
<ul> <li>Payout</li> </ul>	Account Number	N2AMRV180890065 RONY THOMAS	
	Settle	CASA Ledger	
	Ledger Code	100000089 Q Dr GL for SI	
	Currency	GBP	
			Cancel Back Save & Close Submit

3. From the **Payout** tab, perform the required settlement action through Ledger. For more information on fields, refer to field description table below:

Table 2-18	Payout - Ledger – Field Description

Field	Description
Settle	Select the <b>Ledger</b> option to perform the settlement.
	<b>Note:</b> For information on <b>CASA</b> , refer Payout through CASA.



Field	Description
Ledger Code	Click the con and select the ledger code for performing the adhoc charges settlement.
	Note: For more information in fetching the ledger code, refer Fetch Ledger Code.
Currency	Select the currency for the ledger amount.

### Table 2-18 (Cont.) Payout - Ledger – Field Description

4. Click Submit.

The screen is successfully submitted for authorization.

# 2.5 Loan Disbursement

You can initiate a disbursement for the loan account using the **Loan Disbursement** screen. The disbursement can be a partial or full disbursement.

This topic contains the following subtopics:

- Navigating and Fetching Account The steps to navigate and fetch the account number is covered in this topic.
- Settling Disbursement Amount You can pay the pending disbursement amount, if any for the loan account.
- Viewing Disbursement History You can view the disbursement previously performed on the account.
- Viewing Simulation Details
   Based on your actions performed on Disbursement Amount field from the
   Disbursement tab, on the right widget, the system updates and displays the
   updated value in the New field.
- Viewing the Schedule You can view the revised schedule details based on the actions performed on the **Disbursement** tab.
- Settling Disbursement by CASA You can pay your disbursement using your CASA account.
- Settling Disbursement by Ledger You can perform the settlement using ledger.
- Paying by Multi Mode Settlement You can disbursement through multi mode option, that is, disbursement can done through CASA and Ledger at once.



### 2.5.1 Navigating and Fetching Account

The steps to navigate and fetch the account number is covered in this topic.

To navigate and fetch account number:



 On the Homepage, from Loan Service mega menu, under Accounts, click Loan Disbursement. You can also open the screen by specifying Loan Disbursement in the search icon bar and selecting the screen.

The Loan Disbursement screen is displayed.

Figure 2-32 Loan Disbursement

Loan Disburseme	ent		Advices	Documents
Disbursement	Disbursement			Screen(1/3)
Schedule	Account Number	Q		
Disbursement Payout		Required		
			Cancel	Save & Close Next

2. On the Loan Disbursement screen, click the cicon or specify the account number in the Account Number field, and press Tab or Enter. For more information on search, refer Fetch Account Number.

The details in the **Disbursement** tab and the stimulation details on the right widget are displayed.



Disbursement	Disbursement				Screen(1/
Schedule	Account Number				
Disbursement Payout				All ar	mounts in GBF
	Value Date	View Disbursement History Mar 30, 2018	Disbursement Amount 0.00		
	Disbursement Amount	0.00 13,077.13 Required		Existing	New
			Sanctioned	32,654.00	
			Disbursed	19,576.87	
			Installment Amount	575.00	-
			Interest Rate	4.75 %	-
			Next Installment Date	April 21, 2018	-

### Figure 2-33 Disbursement tab

### Note:

After specifying the loan account number, the screen will displays details only if there are pending disbursements amount for the loan account.

### 2.5.2 Settling Disbursement Amount

You can pay the pending disbursement amount, if any for the loan account.

### To pay disbursement amount:

1. Navigate to the screen and fetch the account. For more information, refer Navigating and Fetching Account.

Loan Disburseme	ent	Advices Remarks Documents
Disbursement	Disbursement	Screen(1/3)
Schedule	Account Number LN2CONM180890028 Q Jacob	
Disbursement Payout		All amounts in GBP
	View Disbursement History Value Date March 30, 2018	Disbursement Amount 1,480.17
	Disbursement Amount         1,479,77           0.00         9,960.42	Existing New
	Total Fees 63.00 View Details/Modify	Sanctioned 45,750.00 No Change
	Waive Fees	Disbursed 35,789.58 37,269.75
		Installment Amount 819.13 853.70
		Interest Rate 4.85 % No Change
		Next Installment Date April 12, 2018 No Change

Figure 2-34 Disbursement tab

2. On the Loan Disbursement Initiation screen, specify the disbursement amount. For more information on fields, refer to field description table below:



Field	Description
Account Number	Click the <i>concerned concerned in the second concerned in the concerned is bursement.</i>
	Note: As you specify the account number, the name of the account holder appears next to the account number.
Value Date	Select or specify the value date for making the payment.
Disbursement Amount	Specify the disbursement amount for making the payment.  Note:  You can increase or decrease the amount by dragging the slider to right or left. If you have specified the amount, then accordingly the slider is adjusted automatically. The account currency is also displayed adjacent to this field
Fees	<ul> <li>Displays the fees amount for the account.</li> <li>Note: <ul> <li>This field is displayed if you specify the amount or drag the slider of the Disbursement Amount field.</li> <li>Waiving and modification of fees are not applicable for this release.</li> </ul> </li> </ul>

#### Table 2-19 Disbursement tab – Field Description

- 3. Based on the disbursement amount specified, the updated amounts are displayed in the **New** field in the right widget. You can compare the **Existing** and **New** values and decide accordingly about proceeding ahead.
  - You can also view the disbursement history of the account by clicking the View Disbursement History link. For more information, refer Viewing Disbursement History.
- 4. Click Next.

The **Schedule** tab is displayed. For more information on this tab, refer Viewing the Schedule.

5. Click Next.

The **Disbursement Payout** tab is displayed. For more information on this tab, refer Settling Disbursement by CASA, Settling Disbursement by Ledger, and Paying by Multi Mode Settlement.

6. Click Submit.



The screen is successfully submitted for authorization.

# 2.5.3 Viewing Disbursement History

You can view the disbursement previously performed on the account.

### To view disbursement history:

- 1. Navigate to the screen and fetch the account. For more information, refer Navigating and Fetching Account.
- 2. From the Disbursement tab, click View Disbursement History link.

The fields are displayed in a section.

Disbursement	Disbursement					Screen(1/3
Schedule	Account Number		Jacob			
Disbursement Payout		EN2CONN180890024			A	ll amounts in GBI
	Date	Amount	Account	Disbursement Amou	unt	
	Mar 7, 2018		Jacob - LN2008575018	1,552.96		
				ok	Existing	New
				Sanctioned	32,654.00	No Change
				Disbursed	19,576.87	21,129.83
				Installment Amount	575.00	No Change
				Interest Rate	4.75 %	No Change
				Next Installment Date	April 21, 2018	No Change

Figure 2-35 View Disbursement

**3.** You can view the disbursement details previously performed on the account. For more information on fields, refer to field description table below:

Table 2-20 Disbursement History – Field Description

Field	Description
Date	Displays the date on which the disbursement was performed.
Amount	Displays the disbursement amount paid.
Account	Displays the account details from which the disbursement was performed.

4. Click OK.

The **Disbursement** tab is displayed again.

### 2.5.4 Viewing Simulation Details

Based on your actions performed on **Disbursement Amount** field from the **Disbursement** tab, on the right widget, the system updates and displays the updated value in the **New** field.

To view the simulation details:



- 1. Navigate to the screen and fetch the account. For more information, refer Navigating and Fetching Account.
- From the **Disbursement** tab, update the disbursement value as required The system displays the updated value in the **New** field in the right widget.

		All amounts in GBP
<b>Disbursement Amount</b> 1,552.96		
	Existing	New
Sanctioned	32,654.00	No Change
Disbursed	19,576.87	21,129.83
Installment Amount	575.00	No Change
Interest Rate	4.75 %	No Change
Next Installment Date	April 21, 2018	No Change

Figure 2-36 Simulation Details (Right widget)

3. You can view and compare the existing and new values. For more information on fields, refer to field description table below:

Field	Description	
Disbursement Amount	Displays the total disbursement amount of the loan account.	
Sanctioned	Displays the existing and new loan sanctioned amount.	
Rolled Over	Displays the amount for which new loan account has been created.	
	Note: This field is displayed if in the Loan Disbursement screen, when a loan account of manul disbursement product is created through consolidated rollover with additional principal is retrieved.	

 Table 2-21
 Simulation Details (Right widget) - Field Description



Field	Description
Additional Principal	Displays the additional principal amount captured during the consolidated rollover for initial disbursement.
	Note: This field is displayed if in the Loan Disbursement screen, when a loan account of manul disbursement product is created through consolidated rollover with additional principal is retrieved.
Disbursed	Displays the existing (total of previously disbursed amount) and new (total disbursed amount including current disbursement) disbursed amount.
	Note: The new disbursed amount is displayed if you update the value in the <b>Disbursement Amount</b> field.
Installment Amount	Displays the existing and new current installment amount.
	Note: The new disbursed amount is displayed if you update the value in the <b>Disbursement Amount</b> field.
Interest Rate	Displays the existing and new current interest rate.
	Note: The new disbursed amount is displayed if you update the value in the <b>Disbursement Amount</b> field.
Installment Date	Displays the existing and new current installment date.
	Note: The new disbursed amount is displayed if you update the value in the <b>Disbursement Amount</b> field.

### Table 2-21 (Cont.) Simulation Details (Right widget) - Field Description



### 2.5.5 Viewing the Schedule

You can view the revised schedule details based on the actions performed on the **Disbursement** tab.

The revised schedule details are displayed year wise. To view schedule details for a

particular year, you need to click the **b** icon.

### To view schedule details:

- 1. Navigate to the screen and fetch the account. For more information, refer Navigating and Fetching Account.
- 2. In the **Disbursement** tab, perform the required action. For more information, refer Settling Disbursement Amount.
- 3. Click Next.

The **Schedule** tab section is displayed.

Loan Disburseme	nt							Advices	Remarks Docu	ments
) Disbursement	Schedule									Screen(2/
• Schedule	Account Number	LN2CONM180	890024 Jacob	,						
Disbursement Payout									Ļ	All amounts in GBF
	Date	Rate	Principal	Interest	Fee	Due	Balance	Disbursement Amount		
	EPI - Fixed ( M	ar 7, 2018 to D	ec 21, 2021 )					1,552.96		
	▶ 2018	4.75	4,284.83	709.12	0.00	4,993.95	19,576.87		Evision -	Marris
	▶ 2019	4.75	5,351.03	684.49	0.00	6,035.52	15,554.61	Constituted	22.45.4.00	New Ne Change
	▶ 2020	4.75	5,610.54	424.98	0.00	6,035.52	10,613.48	Disbursed	10 576 97	1120.9Z
	> 2021	475	5 883 /3	152.20	0.00	6.035.72	5 432 73	Installment Amount	575.00	No Change
	¥ 2021	4.75	5,005.45	152.27	0.00	0,035.72	5,452.75	Interest Pate	475%	No Change
								Next Installment Date	4.75 %	No Change
								Next instailment Date	April 21, 2018	No change

Figure 2-37 Schedule tab

4. You can view the revised schedule for amortized or non-amortized accounts. For more information on fields, refer to field description table below:



Field	Description	
Date	Displays the year and the dates in a year when the arrear is raised.	
	Note: This column lists the years for which the schedule is generated. If you click the icon corresponding to a particular year, the monthly date schedule list for a year displays.	
Rate	Displays the rate of interest.	
Principal	Displays the amount of principal arrears.	
Interest	Displays the amount of interest.	
Fees	Displays the amount of fees.	
Due	Displays the amount due.	
Balance	Displays the balance amount after every installment.	

Table 2-22 Schedule - Field Description

### 5. Click Submit.

The screen is successfully submitted for authorization.

### 2.5.6 Settling Disbursement by CASA

You can pay your disbursement using your CASA account.

### To pay disbursement by CASA:

- 1. Navigate to the screen and fetch the account. For more information, refer Navigating and Fetching Account.
- 2. From the Loan Disbursement Initiation tab, click Next.

The **Schedule** tab is displayed.

3. From the **Schedule** tab, click **Next**.

The **Disbursement Payout** tab is displayed.

4. From the Settle field, select the CASA option.

The fields related to CASA are displayed.

- 5. You can perform settlement through CASA using any of the following actions:
  - For CASA account in local currency:



Disbursement	Disbursemen	t Payout				Screen(3/3
Schedule	Account Number	000LRT3180890040 RONY THOMAS				
Disbursement Payout						All amounts in GBP
	Settle	CASA Ledger	Multi Mode Settlement Options	Disbursement Amount 1,006.80		
		RONT THOMAS~000008475			Existing	New
				Sanctioned	32,750.00	No Change
				Disbursed	30,000.00	31,006.80
				Installment Amount	969.20	1,001.73
				Interest Rate	8.75 %	No Change
				Next Installment Date	April 7, 2018	No Change

Figure 2-38 CASA Account in Local Currency

For more information on fields, refer to field description table below:

Table 2-23 CASA - Local Currency – Field Description

Field	Description
Settle	Select the <b>CASA</b> option to perform the settlement.   Note:  For information on Ledger, refer Settling Disbursement by Ledger.
Account	Select the CASA account in local currency.
	<ul> <li>Note:</li> <li>For information if you select CASA in foreign currency, refer CASA in Foreign Currency.</li> <li>For information if you select the Others option from the list, refer CASA Within the Bank.</li> </ul>

• For CASA account in foreign currency:



Loan Disburseme	nt		Advices Remarks	Documents	;; ×
O Disbursement	Disbursement Payout			S	Screen(3/3
Schedule	Account Number 000LRT3180890040 RONY THOMAS				
Disbursement Payout				All amour	nts in GBP
	Multi Mode Settlement Optio	Disbursement Am 1,006.80	ount		
	Exchange Rate 2 Edit		Existing		New
		Sanctioned	32,750.00	No C	Change
		Disbursed	30,000.00	31,0	006.80
		Installment Amount	969.20	) 1	1,001.73
		Interest Rate	8.75 %	No C	Change
		Next Installment Dat	e April 7, 2018	No C	Change
			Cancel Back Se	we & Close	Submit

Figure 2-39 CASA Account in Foreign Currency

For more information on fields, refer to field description table below:

 Table 2-24
 CASA - Foreign Currency – Field Description

Field	Description
Settle	Select the <b>CASA</b> option to perform the settlement.
	Note: For information on Ledger, refer Settling Disbursement by Ledger.
Account	Select the CASA account in foreign currency.
	Note: For information if you select CASA in local currency, refer CASA in Local Currency. For information if you select the Others option from the list, refer CASA Within the Bank.
Account Amount	Displays the selected CASA account's currency and amount equivalent of the value specified in the <b>Disbursement Amount</b> field in the <b>Disbursement</b> tab.
Exchange Rate	Displays the current exchange rate of the amount.
	<b>Note:</b> To modify the rate, you can click the <b>Edit</b> link.

• For CASA account within the bank:

Disbursement	Disbursement Payout			Screen(
Schedule Disbursement Payout	Account Number 000LRT3180890040 RONY THOMAS		۵	ll amounts in (
	Multi Mode Settlement Options Settle CASA Ledger Account Account Others	Disbursement Amount 1,006.80		
Type Account Number Exchange Rate	Type CASA Within the Bank		Existing	New
	Exchange Rate 2 Edit	Disbursed	30,000.00	31,006.8
		Installment Amount	969.20	1,001.7
		Interest Rate	8.75 %	No Chang
		Next Installment Date	April 7, 2018	No Chang

### Figure 2-40 CASA Within the Bank

For more information on fields, refer to field description table below:

 Table 2-25
 CASA Within the Bank – Field Description

Field	Description
Settle	Select the <b>CASA</b> option to perform the settlement.
	For information on <b>Ledger</b> , refer Settling Disbursement by Ledger.
Account	Select the <b>Others</b> option.
	Note: For information if you select CASA in local currency, refer CASA in Local Currency. For information if you select CASA in foreign currency, refer CASA in Foreign Currency.
Туре	Select the CASA Within the Bank type.
Account Number	Specify the CASA account within the bank for settling the disbursement.



Field	Description
Exchange Rate	Displays the current exchange rate of the amount.
	<b>Note:</b> To modify the rate, you can click the <b>Edit</b> link.

### Table 2-25 (Cont.) CASA Within the Bank – Field Description

### 6. Click Submit.

The screen is successfully submitted for authorization.

### 2.5.7 Settling Disbursement by Ledger

You can perform the settlement using ledger.

### To perform settlement through ledger:

- 1. Navigate to the screen and fetch the account. For more information, refer Navigating and Fetching Account.
- 2. From the Loan Disbursement Initiation tab, click Next.

The **Schedule** tab is displayed.

3. From the **Schedule** tab, click **Next**.

The **Disbursement Payout** tab is displayed.

4. From the **Settle** field, select the **Ledger** option.

The fields related to ledger option are displayed.

### Figure 2-41 Ledger

	Learning and the second second						
Disbursement	Disbursemen	nt Payout					Screen(3,
Schedule	Account Number	000LRT3180890040 RONY T	HOMAS				
Disbursement Payout						,	All amounts in GB
	Settle CASA Ledger Ledger Code 313300010 Q	Multi M Q Charge In	Multi Mode Settlement Options	Disbursement Amount 1,006.80			
	Currency	y GBP		Existing	New		
					Sanctioned	32,750.00	No Change
					Disbursed	30,000.00	31,006.80
					Installment Amount	969.20	1,001.73
					Interest Rate	8.75 %	No Change
					Next Installment Date	April 7, 2018	No Change

5. Specify the details in the required fields. For more information on fields, refer to field description table below:



Field	Description
Settle	Select the Ledger option to perform the settlement.
	Note: For information on Ledger, refer Settling Disbursement by Ledger.
Ledger Code	Click the icon and select the ledger code for performing the adhoc charges settlement.
	Note: For more information in fetching the ledger code, refer Fetch Ledger Code.
Curreney	Salast the surrange for the ledger amount
Currency	

Table 2-26 Ledger – Field Description

### 6. Click Submit.

The screen is successfully submitted for authorization.

## 2.5.8 Paying by Multi Mode Settlement

You can disbursement through multi mode option, that is, disbursement can done through CASA and Ledger at once.

### To perform multi mode settlement:

- 1. Navigate to the screen and fetch the account. For more information, refer Navigating and Fetching Account.
- 2. From the Loan Disbursement Initiation tab, click Next.

The **Schedule** tab is displayed.

3. From the **Schedule** tab, click **Next**.

The **Disbursement Payout** tab is displayed.

- 4. Click the Multi Mode Settlement Options link.
- 5. Click the + icon, to add settlement modes.

The **Add Settlement** section is displayed. For more information on the **Add Settlement** section, refer Settling Disbursement by CASA and Settling Disbursement by Ledger.



Disbursement	Disbursement Payout Scree				Screen		
Schedule	Account Nu						
Disbursement Payout						4	All amounts in
	Single Mode Settlement Options				Disbursement Amount		
	Mode	Description	Amount	Action 0			
	No data to	display.				Existing	New
					Sanctioned	32,750.00	No Chan
	Add Se	ttlement			Disbursed	30,000.00	31,006.
	Settle	CASA Ledg	ger		Installment Amount	969.20	1,001
	Account	Account RONY THOMA	s~000008475 •		Interest Rate	8.75 %	No Chan
	Pay	Amount	▼ GBP ▼		Next Installment Date	April 7, 2018	No Chan
				Cancel Save			

### Figure 2-42 Multi Mode Settlement Options

6. Click Save.

The settlement is added in the table above.

**7.** You can edit or delete the settlement entry if required. For more information on fields, refer to field description table below:

Table 2-27	Multi Mode Settlement	<b>Options</b> –	<ul> <li>Field Descrip</li> </ul>	ption
------------	-----------------------	------------------	-----------------------------------	-------

Field	Description
Mode	Displays the settlement mode.
Description	Displays the details available for the settlement modes.
Amount	Displays the amount available in the specific settlement mode.
Action	Click the icon to edit the amount.
Total	Displays the total of the settlement amount.

• To go back to the single mode option, click the **Single Mode Settlement Options** link.

# 2.6 Loan Write-Off

You can write-off the loan amount of the customer that is not coverable from the customer using the **Loan Write-Off**screen.

Here, the bank write off the assets, including fees, interest and other components, which the customer was liable to pay. This will always be a bank initiated transaction and customer can never request a bank to write off his account.

You can get an overview of the amount based on the write-off amount or percentage specified, in the right widget. For more information, refer Simulation Details.


#### Note:

- If you write-off full 100% of the loan amount, then post write-off, the account is marked as closed.
- You cannot perform write-off on the account that is not disbursed.

#### To perform loan write-off:



 On the Homepage, from Loan Service mega menu, under Accounts, click Loan Write-Off. You can also open the screen by specifying Loan Write-Off in the search icon bar and selecting the screen.

The Loan Write-Off screen is displayed.

#### Figure 2-43 Loan Write-Off

Loan Write-Off		Remarks	::×
Account Number	Q		
	Required		
Audit		Cancel	Submit

2. On the Loan Write-Off screen, click the cicon or specify the account number in the Account Number field, and press Tab or Enter. For more information on search, refer Fetch Account Number.

The loan write-off details of the account is displayed.



Loan Write-Off				Remarks	
Account Number	001AMRV180890059 Q	Jacob			
					All amounts in GE
Value Date Write-Off	March 30, 2018 Amount Per	centage	642.00	Write-Off Amount 642.00	
Write-Off A	llocation			Loan Classification NORMAL STATUS	
Component		Outstanding	Write-Off	Write-Off Till Date	
Principal		41,642.06	642.00	8,528.42	
Total		41.642.06	642.00	Total Outstanding	
Page 1	of 1 (1-2 of 2 items)  <			41,042.00	
Reduce Outstandir	ng 🔲				
					Cancel Subf

Figure 2-44 Loan Write-Off Details

3. On the Loan Write-Off screen, perform the loan write-off action. For more information on fields, refer to field description table below:

Table 2-28 Loan Write-Off – Field Description

Field	Description
Account Number	Click the count number or specify the account number or specify the account number for which the statement is to be generated.
	Note: As you specify the account number, the name of the account holder appears next to the account number.
Value Date	Specify the value date for performing the write-off.
	Note: By default, the fields displays the current posting date. You can specify only a current or a back date.

Field	Description		
Write-Off	<ul> <li>Select the write-off option. The options are:</li> <li>Amount</li> <li>Percentage</li> <li>If you select the Amount option, then you need to specify the amount in the field and the percentage is calculated by the system based on the total outstanding amount and displayed adjacent to the field. Also, you can specify amount equal to or less than the total outstanding amount.</li> <li>If you select the Percentage option, specify the write-off percentage from the loan amount.</li> </ul>		
Write-Off Allocation	This section displays the component wise write-off allocation details.		
	Note: If the total allocation amount do not match with the total write-off amount, then the system displays an error message that allocation is not matching		
Component	Displays the write-off components.		
Outstanding	Displays the outstanding amount component wise.		
Write-Off	Specify the write-off amount from each component.		
	Note: By default, the write-off amount is displayed as of date.		
Total	Displays the total of outstanding and write-off amount.		
Reduce Outstanding	Switch to for reducing the amount from the total outstanding amount.		
	Switch to for not reducing the amount from the total outstanding amount.		
Right Widget	For information on this widget, refer Simulation Details.		

Table 2-28	(Cont.)	Loan Write	-Off – Fi	ield Descri	ption
	/		-		

4. Click Submit.

The transaction is submitted for authorization.



#### • Simulation Details

You can get a complete overview of the amount details displayed in this widget on the right side of the screen.

### 2.6.1 Simulation Details

You can get a complete overview of the amount details displayed in this widget on the right side of the screen.

As you specify the write-off amount or percentage, the values in this widget are recomputed and displayed. Also, the amount currency is displayed above the widget. Accordingly, you can decide whether the new amounts your requirements and take appropriate actions.

To perform loan write-off:



Figure 2-45 Stimulation Details (Right widget)

For more information on fields, refer to field description table below:

#### Table 2-29 Stimulation Details (Right widget) – Field Description

Field	Description
Write-Off Amount	Displays the total write-off amount of the account.
Loan Classification	Displays the loan classification type.



Field	Description		
Write-Off Till Date	Displays the write-off amount as of date.		
Total Outstanding	Displays the total of	utstanding amount of the account.	
New Outstanding	Displays the new outstanding amount of the account.		
		💉 Note:	
		This field is displayed, if you have selected the <b>Reduce Outstanding</b> option.	

#### Table 2-29 (Cont.) Stimulation Details (Right widget) – Field Description

### 2.7 Loan 360

The **Loan 360** screen is the dashboard for loans service, which gives a consolidated view of all the details related to a loan account and helps you to perform various transactions on the account.

This dashboard facilitates the Loan Servicing Officer or any user with the required role access in a branch office to perform the identified branch office transactions when a loan borrower approaches the bank with a service request.

#### To view loan details and perform required actions:



 On the Homepage, from Loan Service mega menu, under Accounts, click Loan 360. You can also open the screen by specifying Loan 360 in the search icon bar and selecting the screen.

The Loan 360 screen is displayed.



Loan 360		1: ×
Account Number	Q Required	

Figure 2-46 Loan 360

2. On the Loan 360 screen, specify the account number in the Account Number field, and press Tab or Enter.

The loan details of the account is displayed.

ccount Number LN2AMRV180890021	Q Jacob				
					Q
NZAMRV180890021 Year 4 Months 14 Days - 5.75% Fixed	GBP 15,000.0 Sanctioned	00 GBP 15,000.0 Disbursed Disburse	00	GBP 5,303.09 Total Outstanding Pay Off Partially  Close Account	21st of every Month Repayment Change
ype Branch	Account Health		Overdu	ue & Next Due	
art Date Maturity arch 7, 2018 July 21, 2019 enegotiate Loan	Status Classification Accrual	NORMAL STATUS Normal	Overdu Next Ir Next Ir	ue Amount GBP 0.00 nstallment GBP 345.96 nstallment Due Date April 21, 2018	
count Holders			Total A	mount GBP 345.96	
Jacob(008575) Borrower	All payments were	e made on time 🖒	Pay Dues  Pay Advance  Set Payment Holiday		
ccount Details	Instruction Set		Recent	t Transactions	
Facility NA Collateral NA	Payment Installment An LN200857501	nount from Savings A/C 8	Credit MAIN_ Ref:	ed GBP 17.79 on March 30, 2018 INT_LIQD	
Address Delhi Last Activity			Credit PRINCI Ref: 00	ed GBP 5,946.91 on March 30, 2018 IPAL_LIQD DIZTRF1808904P0	
March 30, 2018	Set Payment Prefer	rence	Credit PRINCI Ref: 00	ed GBP 3,750.00 on March 30, 2018 IPAL_LIQD DIZTRF1808904RN	
	Quick Actions		Cradit	ed GRD 35 30 on March 30, 2019	
	ு		MAIN_ Ref:	INT_LIQD	
	View Balance Loan Schedule Details Inquiry	Loan Schedule Inquiry	Debite PRINC	ed GBP 15,000.00 on March 7, 2018 IPAL	
			Ref: LN View A	N2ZTRF1808904IS Ill Generate Statement	

3. On the Loan 360 screen, perform the required actions. For more information on fields, refer to field description table below:



Field	Description		
Account Number	Specify the account number or click the $\bigcirc$ icon to view the loan details.		
	Note: All the fields are displayed after you specify the account number.		
<personal details="" widget=""></personal>	This widget displays the basic details of the loan account holder on the left side of the screen.		
<loan offer=""></loan>	Displays loan offer description under which the loan account is opened. For example, Personal Loan or Home Loan.		
<account status=""></account>	Displays the system defined status of the account.		
	<ul> <li>Note:</li> <li>The account statuses can be any of the following:</li> <li>Active</li> <li>Liquidated</li> <li>Reversed</li> <li>Hold</li> <li>Inactive</li> <li>Uninitiated</li> </ul>		
<account number=""></account>	Displays the loan account number		
<pre><loan and="" interest="" rate="" term="" type="" –=""></loan></pre>	Displays the term of the account in year and months. It also displays the current interest rate.		
Туре	Displays the type of loan. The options are: • Secured • Unsecured		
Branch	Displays the name of the branch where the loan account is currently serviced.		
Start Date	Displays the start date of the loan account.		
Maturity	Displays the maturity date of the loan.		
Account Holders	This section displays the following details of the account holders: <ul> <li><image/></li> <li><name (party="" id)=""></name></li> <li><ownership type=""></ownership></li> <li><contact number=""></contact></li> <li><email id=""></email></li> </ul>		
Account Details	This section displays more details of the loan account.		
Facility	Displays the facility description under which the account is opened.		
Collateral	Displays the collateral details linked to the facility.		

#### Table 2-30 Loan 360 – Field Description



Field	Description		
Address	Displays the default mailing address captured for the SOW/JAF account holder.		
Last Activity	Displays the date of last activity.		
Sanctioned	Displays the loan amount sanctioned.  Note: To view the latest sanctioned amount, click the circon.		
Disbursed	Displays the loan amount disbursed.		
	Note: To view the latest sanctioned amount, click the circo.		
Total Outstanding	Displays the current total outstanding balance.		
	Note: To view the latest sanctioned amount, click the circon.		
Repayment	Displays the repayment date as per the schedule.		
	Note: To view the latest sanctioned amount, click the con.		
Account Health	This widget displays the information that indicate the overall performance of an account.		
	<ul> <li>Note:</li> <li>If the account health is not good, then is icon is displayed.</li> <li>If the account health is good, then icon is displayed.</li> </ul>		
	If the account health is good, then $egin{array}{c} \Delta & \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \$		

### Table 2-30 (Cont.) Loan 360 – Field Description



Field	Description		
Classification	Displays the asset classification of the account.		
Accrual	Displays the accrual status of the account.		
Overdue & Next Due	This widget displays the overdue as of date and next due details.		
	Note: The Pay Now link displays in this section. This link is not applicable for the current release.		
Overdue Amount	Displays the overdue amount.		
Next Instalment	Displays the next installment amount due.		
Next Instalment Due Date	Displays the next installment due date.		
Total Amount	Displays the total amount due.		
Instructions Set	This widget displays the instructions set up on the account.		
	Note: To set instruction, click the Set Instructions link. This link is not applicable for the current release.		
Payment	Displays the payment (drawdown) instruction set up for the account.		
Accelerated Payment	Displays the accelerated payment instruction set up for the account.		
	Note: This field is not applicable for the current release.		
Recent Transactions	Displays the last five transactions performed on the account.		
	Note: To view all the transactions, click the View All Transactions link. This link is not applicable for the current release.		
Quick Actions	This section displays the links to screens to perform quick actions on the account.		

#### Table 2-30 (Cont.) Loan 360 – Field Description

4. You can view the required details for the loan account.



#### Note:

• You can also launch the screens for performing various transactions

on the account by clicking the \_\_\_\_\_\_ icon. A list of links displays under various menus. Click the required link from the list that displays. For more information on how to perform the transactions using the links, see the respective chapters. For image reference, see Mega Menu – Loan Service screenshot.

• You can also rearrange the widgets according to your preference by

dragging and dropping the widget. To move the widget, click the icon and drop the widget at preferred place in the screen.

### 2.8 Transaction Inquiry

You can access the details of a particular transaction and provide clarifications to customers with the help of available features in the **Transaction Inquiry**screen.

#### To perform inquiry on transaction:



 On the Homepage, from Loan Service mega menu, under Accounts, click Transaction Inquiry. You can also open the screen by specifying Transaction Inquiry in the search icon bar and selecting the screen.

The Transaction Inquiry screen is displayed.

Figure 2-47 Transaction Inquiry

Transaction Inquiry	/					::×
Account Number	Q Required					
On the <b>Trans</b>	action Inquiry	screen c	lick the Q	icon or specit	v the accou	nt

2. On the **Transaction Inquiry** screen, click the icon or specify the account number in the **Account Number** field, and press **Tab** or **Enter**. For more information on search, refer Fetch Account Number.



The Search and Transaction sections are displayed.

						:: ×
Account Number LN2ABS3180890	259 Q RONY THO	MAS				
∽ Search						
Search Type						
Last 10 Transactions	•					
Amount Range						
То						
						Search
Transactions						Search
Transactions Type to filter	8				All amor	Search
Transactions       Type to filter       Transaction Date & Time	S Value Date 🜣	Description	Debit 0	Credit \$	All amou Outstanding Balance 0	Search unts in GBP Action
Transactions Type to filter Transaction Date & Time 0 March 30, 2018 at 03:38:08	Value Date © March 30, 2018	Description ADCH_CHG Adhoc Charges	Debit 0 54.75	Credit ¢	All amou Outstanding Balance 0 32,750.00	Search unts in GBP Action
Transactions       Type to filter       Transaction Date & Time        March 30, 2018 at 03:38:08       March 30, 2018 at 03:25:48	Value Date        March 30, 2018       March 5, 2018	Description ADCH_CHG Adhoc Charges PRINCIPAL	Debit 0 54.75 32,750.00	Credit ©	All amou Outstanding Balance 32,750.00 32,750.00	Search unts in GBP Action

Figure 2-48 Transaction Inquiry - Details

- **3.** If the **Transaction** section does not display the transactions you searching for, perform the following steps:
  - a. From the **Search** section, select the appropriate option from the **Search Type** field.
  - b. Click Search.

The required transactions are displayed in the **Transaction** section.

4. On the **Transaction Inquiry** screen, view the details of the transaction. For more information on fields, refer to field description table below:

 Table 2-31
 Transaction Inquiry – Field Description

Field	Description
Account Number	Click the contained and select the account number or specify the account number for performing the transaction inquiry.
	Note: As you specify the account number, the name of the account holder appears next to the account number.
Search	This section displays the search options, which can be used to search the required transactions of the account.



Field	Description
Search Type	<ul> <li>Select the search type based on which the search is to be performed. The options are:</li> <li>Last 10 Transactions</li> <li>Last Month</li> <li>Last 2 Months</li> <li>Last 3 Months</li> <li>Date Range</li> </ul>
Date Range	Specify or select the date range for viewing the transaction.
	<ul> <li>Note:</li> <li>This field is displayed and enabled, if you select the Date Range from the Search Type field.</li> <li>The from date should be greater than the loan account creation date.</li> <li>The To date should be lesser than the current system date.</li> <li>This field is displayed and not enabled, if you select the Last Month, Last 2 Months, or Last 3 Months options from the Search Type field.</li> </ul>
Amount Range	Specify the amount range to search and view the transactions within the specified amount range.
Transactions	<ul> <li>This section displays the fetched transaction details of the account.</li> <li>Note: <ul> <li>By default, the Transaction section displays the last 10 transactions of the account.</li> <li>You can search a specific transaction by entering the details in the field provided in this section. As you specify a value in the field, the details in the table are filtered and displayed.</li> </ul> </li> </ul>
Transaction Date & Time	Displays the date and time when the transaction was performed.
Value Date	Displays the value date of the transaction.
Description	Displays the description for the transaction.
Debit	Displays the transaction's debit amount with currency.
Credit	Displays the transactions' credit amount with currency.
Outstanding Balance	Displays the outstanding balance of the transaction.
Action	r      ¬      Click the      J icon to view more details of the transaction. For more information, refer the Actions.

#### Table 2-31 (Cont.) Transaction Inquiry – Field Description

5. To view more details of the transaction, perform the following steps:



- **г** つ
- a. From the Actions field, click the ⊢ ⊣ icon to view more details of a specific transaction.

The **<Transaction Description: Date and Time>** section is displayed.

ADCH_CHG Adhoc Charges	: Dated 2018-03-30			
Transactions				
Account/Instrument 🗘	Branch 🗘	Debit/Credit 🗘	LCY Amount	FCY Amount
000008475089 - RONY THOMAS	000 - FLEXCUBE UNIVERSAL BANK	Dr	GBP 54.75	

#### Figure 2-49 Transaction Inquiry - Detailed View

Account/Instrument 🗘	Branch 🗘	Debit/Credit 🗘	Amount \$	Amount 0	Rate $\Diamond$
000008475089 - RONY THOMAS	000 - FLEXCUBE UNIVERSAL BANK	Dr	GBP 54.75	-	-
313300010 - Adhoc charge Income	LN2 - Lending Branch 2	Cr	GBP 54.75	-	-

#### Other Information

Event	
ADHOC Charge Application	

2018-03-30

Value Date

**b.** In this section, you can have a detailed view of the transaction. For more information on the fields, refer to field description table below:

Table 2-32 Transaction Inquiry - Detailed View – Field Description

Field	Description
Transaction	This section displays the further details of a specific transaction.
Account/Instrument	Displays the account number or the instrument details of the transaction.
Branch	Displays the branch address where the transaction was performed.
Debit/Credit	Displays whether the transaction was of debit or credit type.
LCY Amount	Displays the local currency of the loan account.
FCY Amount	Displays the foreign currency of the loan account.
Exchange Rate	Displays the exchange rate for the transaction.
Other Information	This section displays the other information related to the transaction.
Event	Displays the event of the transaction.
Value Date	Displays the value date of the transaction.
Maker	Displays the maker details of the transaction.
Checker	Displays the checker details of the transaction.

• You can also view the image of the instrument that was used for the selected transaction, by clicking the **View Instrument Image** link. To close the instrument image, you need click the **Hide Instrument Image** link.



Close

c. Click Close, to close the <Transaction Description: Date and Time> section.

### 2.9 Transaction View & Reversal

You can view the loan transactions related to an account. If required, you can also initiate reversal of the transaction after due diligence using the **Transaction View & Reversal** screen.

This topic contains the following subtopics:

- View Transaction Details You can view the transactions that are initiated by you and the system in this screen.
- Perform Reversal of Transaction You can initiate a reversal of the loan transaction only after the due diligence is completed on the loan account.

### 2.9.1 View Transaction Details

You can view the transactions that are initiated by you and the system in this screen.

#### To view the transaction details:

Note:	
The fields marked as <b>Required</b> are mandatory.	

1. On the Homepage, from Loan Service mega menu, under Accounts, click Transaction View & Reversal. You can also open the screen by specifying Transaction View & Reversal in the search icon bar and selecting the screen.

The Transaction View & Reversal screen is displayed.

Transaction View	& Reversal		:: ×
Account Number	٩		
	Regulred		
		0	

2. On the **Transaction View & Reversal** screen, click the icon or specify the account number in the **Account Number** field, and press **Tab** or **Enter**. For more information on search, refer Fetch Account Number.

The **Search** and **Transactions** sections are displayed.



Transaction	n View & I	Reversal					11 :
Account Number	001CR021808	90003 Q	Jacob				
∽ Search							
earch Type							
Last 10 Transactio	ons	•					
Amount Range							
	То						
						Count	
						Search	
Transactions							
Type to filter	8	Show Accruals			All a	amounts in GBP	
Type to filter Transaction Date &	<b>⊘</b> Time	Show Accruals Value Date	Event	Amount ≎	All a Reversed	amounts in GBP Action	
Type to filter Transaction Date & March 30, 2018 at	Time 11:00:38	Show Accruals Value Date March 30, 2018	Event ADHOC Charge Application	Amount 0	All a Reversed	Action	
Type to filter Transaction Date & March 30, 2018 at March 30, 2018 at	Time 11:00:38 : 04:05:25	Show Accruals Value Date March 30, 2018 March 30, 2018	Event ADHOC Charge Application ROLLOVER BOOKING	Amount 11.00	All a Reversed -	Action	
Type to filter Transaction Date & March 30, 2018 at March 30, 2018 at March 30, 2018 at	Time           : 11:00:38           : 04:05:25           : 04:05:25	Show Accruals Value Date March 30, 2018 March 30, 2018 March 30, 2018	Event       ADHOC Charge Application       ROLLOVER BOOKING       Contract Initiation	Amount 0 11.00	All a Reversed	Action	

- **3.** By default, the **Transactions** section displays the last 10 transactions performed on the account. If the section does not display the transactions you searching for, perform the following steps:
  - a. From the **Search** section, select or specify required search criteria.
  - b. Click Search.

The required transactions are displayed in the **Transactions** section.

4. On the **Transaction View & Reversal** screen, view the details of the transaction. For more information on fields, refer to field description table below:

Table 2-35 Transaction view & Reversal - Field Description	Table 2-33	Transaction View & Rev	versal – Field Description
--	------------	------------------------	----------------------------

Field	Description
Account Number	Click the con and select the account number or specify the account number to view the transaction details and perform if required perform the reversal.
	Note: As you specify the account number, the name of the account holder appears next to the account number.
Search	This section displays the search options, which can be used to search the required transactions of the account.
Search Type	Select the search type based on which the search is to be performed. The options are: • Last 10 Transactions • Last Month • Last 2 Months • Last 3 Months • Date Range



Field	Description
Date Range	<ul> <li>Specify or select the date range for viewing the transaction.</li> <li>Note: <ul> <li>This field is displayed and enabled, if you select the Date Range from the Search Type field.</li> <li>The from date should be greater than the loan account creation date.</li> <li>The To date should be lesser than the current system date.</li> </ul> </li> </ul>
Amount Range	Specify the amount range to search and view the transactions within the specified amount range.
Transactions	<ul> <li>This section displays the fetched transaction details of the account.</li> <li>Note: <ul> <li>By default, the Transaction section displays the last 10 transactions of the account.</li> <li>You can filter the transaction by entering the transaction details in the field provided in this section. As you specify a value in the field, the details in the table are filtered, and displayed.</li> </ul></li></ul>
Show Accruals	Switch to <b>u</b> to view the accrual transactions of the account. Switch to <b>u</b> to hide the accrual transactions of the account.
Transaction Date & Time	Displays the date and time when the transaction was performed.
Value Date	Displays the value date of the transaction.
Event	Displays the event description.
Amount	Displays the transaction amount.
Reversed	Displays whether the transaction is reversed.
Action	Click the L J icon to view more details of the transaction. For more information, refer the Perform Reversal of Transaction.

#### Table 2-33 (Cont.) Transaction View & Reversal – Field Description

### 2.9.2 Perform Reversal of Transaction

You can initiate a reversal of the loan transaction only after the due diligence is completed on the loan account.

#### To perform reversal of transaction:

**1.** To launch the screen, fetch account number, and view the account related transaction details, refer View Transaction Details.



г п

2. From the Transaction View & Reversal screen, in the Transactions section, click - J from the Action field.

Remarks **Transaction View & Reversal** Account Number 001CR02180890003 **ADHOC Charge Application** Summary Customer Name Jacob Product Name CR02 - Home Loans Transaction Date & Time March 30, 2018 at 11:00:38 Value Date March 30, 2018 GBP 11.00 Cr Amount Maker EXTUSER1 Checker EXTUSER1

The Transaction View & Reversal screen is displayed.

**3.** You can view the transaction summary. For more information on fields, refer to field description table below:

Field	Description
<event name=""></event>	This section displays the event name for which the reversal is being performed.
Summary	This section displays the transaction summary of the account.
Customer Name	Displays the customer number and name.
Product Name	Displays the product code and description.
Transaction Date & Time	Displays the date and time, when the transaction was performed.
Value Date	Displays the value date of the transaction.
Amount	Displays the transaction amount with debit or credit indicator.
Maker	Displays the maker name who has performed the transaction along with date and time details.
Checker	Displays the checker name who has performed the transaction along with date and time details.

#### Table 2-34 Transaction Reversal - Summary – Field Description

4. You can view more information related to the account transactions, in the following tabs:

#### Transaction Details

Transaction D	etails Preferences Other	Financial	Details							
Settlement	t Details	Branch		Debit/Credit	Settleme	ent Amount	FC	Y Amount	Exchange	
LN2008575	018 - Jacob	001 - E	Bank Futura -Branch 001	Dr		GBP 11.00			1	
Accounting	g Entries									
Mode	Branch		Description		Debit/Credit		Amount	Amount T	ag	
Account	LN2 - Lending Branch 2		LN2008575018 - Jacob		Dr		GBP 11.00	ADCH_	CHG_1_ADCF	
Account	LN2 - Lending Branch 2		LN2008155014 - John C	Silbert Ben	Cr		GBP 11.00	ADCH_	CHG_1_ADCF	
Account	001 - Bank Futura -Branch 0	001	001008155020 - John C	bilbert Ben	Dr		GBP 11.00	ADCH_	CHG_1_ADCF	
										Cance

For more information on fields, refer to field description table below:



Field	Description
Settlement Details	This section displays all the settlement details related to the account.
Settlement	Displays the account or GL number along with the description.  Note: For external accounts, this field displays the external account number and name.
Branch	Displays the branch name and code.
Debit/Credit	Displays whether the transaction is of debit or credit in nature.
Settlement Amount	Displays the settlement amount in local currency.
FCY Amount	Displays the amount in foreign currency.
Exchange Rate	Displays the exchange rate in case of foreign currency.
Component Details	This section displays the component details, which is settled during the transaction.  Note: This section is displayed if component details are present for the selected transaction.
Component	Displays the name of the component.
Due	Displays the amount due.
Paid	Displays the amount paid.
Waived	Displays the waived amount.
Capitalized	Displays the capitalized amount.
Write Off Details	This section displays the write-off details of the account.  Note:  This section will be displayed if there are write off events for the selected transaction.
Amount Written Off	Displays the write-off amount.

Table 2-35	Transaction Details tab – Field Description
	Transastion Botano tas Trota Bossipho



Field	Description
Fee Details	This section displays the fee details of the account.
	Note: This section is displayed if charges or fees are collected as part of the event.
Charges	Displays the charges for the fees was charged.
Settlement Amount	Displays the settlement amount along with currency.
Settlement	Displays the settlement account number and name.
Accounting Entries	This section displays the accounting entries detail of the account.
	Note: This section is displayed if accouting entries are related to the selected transaction.
Mada	Displays made of the appointing entries as <b>Appoint</b> or
моае	Ledger.
Branch	Displays the branch where the transaction was performed.
Description	Displays the account or GL number along with description.
Debit/Credit	Displays whether the entries are of debit or credit in nature.
Amount	Displays the local currency amount.
Amount Tag	Displays the description for the amount tag.
Status	This section displays the status of the events.
	Note: This section is displayed if there is a status change event for the transaction.
Loan Current Status	Displays the current status of the loan account.
Loan New Status	Displays the new status of the loan account.
Effective Date	Displays the date from which the loan status is effective.

 Table 2-35
 (Cont.) Transaction Details tab – Field Description

Preferences

Loan Preferences							
Account							
Statement Facility	None			Status Change Mode	Au	to	
Rate Change Impact	Change Installm	nent		Partial TD Block Relea	ase No		
Bulk Payment	No			Provisioning Preferen	ices Au	to	
iquidation							
Partial Liquidation	No			Track Receivable	Yes		
Salary Block	No			Liquidation of Back V	alue Schedules No		
Rollover							
Allow Rollover	Yes			Rollover Mode	Au	to	
User Defined Element Basis	Account			Schedule Basis	Act	count	
Loan Components							
Component	Waive	Internal Rate of Return					
ADHOC CHARGE	No	No					
ADHOC CHARGE 1	No	No					
ADHOC CHARGE 2	No	No					
ADHOC CHARGE 3	No	No					
Audit Fees	No	No					
	Show More	1-5 of 18 items					
Settlement Preference	s						
Default Debit Account							
Component	Туре	Account/Ledger		Branch		Currency	Verify Funds
ADHOC CHARGE	Account	LN2008155014 - Joh	n Gilbert Ben	LN2 - Lending B	ranch 2	GBP	Yes
ADHOC CHARGE 1	Account	LN2008155014 - Joh	n Gilbert Ben	LN2 - Lending B	ranch 2	GBP	Yes
ADHOC CHARGE 2	Account	LN2008155014 - Joh	n Gilbert Ben	LN2 - Lending B	ranch 2	GBP	Yes
ADHOC CHARGE 3	Account	LN2008155014 - Joh	n Gilbert Ben	LN2 - Lending B	ranch 2	GBP	Yes
Audit Fees	Account	LN2008155014 - Joh	n Gilbert Ben	LN2 - Lending B	ranch 2	GBP	Yes
Default Credit Account						Show More 1	-5 of 18 item
		r	Branch		Currency		
Component	Account/Leage						

### Table 2-36 Preferences tab – Field Description

Field	Description
Loan Preferences	This section displays the detail of loan account preferences.
Account	This section displays the account details.
Statement Facility	Displays the frequency of the statement.
Status Change Mode	Displays the mode as Auto or Manual.
Rate Change Impact	Displays the impact of rate change as Change Term or Change Installment.
Partial TD Block Release	Displays whether to release partial TD block or not.
Bulk Payment	Displayed whether bulk payment is allowed or not.
Provisioning Preferences	Displays the preferences for provisions as Auto or Manual.
Liquidation	This section displays the liquidation details.
Partial Liquidation	Displays whether partial liquidation is allowed or not.
Track Receivable	Displays whether to track receivables or not.
Salary Block	Displays whether to block salary or not.
Liquidation of Back Value Schedules	Displays whether liquidation of back value schedules are allowed or not.
Rollover	This section displays the rollover details.
Allow Rollover	Displays whether rollover of account is allowed or not.
Rollover Mode	Displays the mode of rollover as Auto or Manual.



Field	Description
User Defined Element Basis	Displays the basis of user defined element as <b>Account</b> or <b>Contract</b> .
Schedule Basis	Displays the basis of schedule as <b>Contract</b> or <b>Account</b> .
Loan Components	This section displays the loan component details.
Component	Displays the name of the component.
Waive	Displays whether waive is allowed or not.
Internal Rate of Return	Displays the internal rate of return is allowed or not.
Settlement Preferences	This section displays the settlement preferences details of the account.
Default Debit Account	This section displays the default debit account details.
Component	Displays the name of the component.
Туре	Displays the type as Account, GL, or External Account.
Account/Ledger	Displays the account or ledger number along with account name or description.
Branch	Displays the branch code and name.
Currency	Displays the settlement currency.
Verify Funds	Displays whether to verify funds or not.
Default Credit Account	This section displays the default credit account details.
Component	Displays the name of the component.
Туре	Displays the type as Account, GL, or External Account.
Account/Ledger	Displays the account or ledger number along with account name or description.
Branch	Displays the branch code and name.
Currency	Displays the settlement currency.

Table 2-36	(Cont.)	Preferences tab – Fiel	d Description
------------	---------	------------------------	---------------

#### • Other Financial Details

Schedule Deta	ils							
First Due Date	Stage	Component	No. Of Schedule	Frequency	EMI Amount	Amount	Treatment	
April 11, 2018	Equated Principal Installme	MAIN_INT	29	Monthly	-			
October 27, 2020	Equated Principal Installme	MAIN_INT	1	Bullet	GBP 1,579.42	-		
Interest Rate/	Fees							
Effective Date	Component	Rate Type	Rate Code	Co	de Usage	Final Value		
March 30, 2018	HANDL_CHG					33		
March 30, 2018	INTEREST_RATE	Fixed				5.25%		
								Can



Tiold.	Description		
Field			
Collateral Linkage	This section displays the collateral linkages detail.		
	Note: This section displays if a collateral is linked to the account.		
Linkage Order	Displays the order of collateral linkage.		
Limit	Displays the		
Limit Value	Displays the value of the limit.		
Linked Amount	Displays the amount linked to the collateral.		
Schedule Details	This section displays the schedule details of the account.		
First Due Date	Displays the first due date of the schedule.		
Stage	Displays the stage of the schedule.		
Component	Displays the name of the component.		
No. Of Schedule	Displays the number of schedules for the stage or components.		
Frequency	Displays the frequency of the schedule.		
EMI Amount	Displays the user defined EMI amount.		
Amount	Displays the schedule amount.		
Treatment	Displays the schedule treatment as Waive or Capitalize.		
Interest Rate Revision	This section displays the interest rate revision details of the loan.           Note:           This section is displayed if interest rate revision schedule is set up for the selected loan account.		
First Days Data	Displays the first due date of the schedule		
First Due Date	Displays the first due date of the schedule.		
	Displays the name of the component.		
No. Of Schedule	components.		
Frequency	Displays the frequency of the schedule.		
Interest Rate/Fees	This section displays the user defined elements or value.		
Effective Date	Displays the effective date of the element.		
Component	Displays the name of the component.		
Rate Type	Displays the type of rate as <b>Fixed</b> or <b>Variable</b> .		
Rate Code	Displays the rate code, if the <b>Rate Type</b> is <b>Variable</b> .		
Code Usage	Displays the rate code usage as Automatic or Periodic.		
Final Value	Displays the final value of the component.		

Table 2-37	<b>Other Financial Details - Field Description</b>
------------	--

5. Click Reversal.

The screen is successfully submitted for authorization.



If you click **Cancel**, then **Transaction View & Reversal** screen is displayed again.

# 3 Balances

Under the **Balance** menu, you can view the balance details of a loan account.

This topic contains the following subtopics:

Account Statement

You can generate loan statement as per the customer's request with the help of available features like date range or preset range definitions using the **Account Statement** screen.

• Outstanding Balance Inquiry You can inquire about the outstanding balance of an account using the **Outstanding Balance Inquiry** screen.

### 3.1 Account Statement

You can generate loan statement as per the customer's request with the help of available features like date range or preset range definitions using the **Account Statement** screen.

#### To view the account statement:



 On the Homepage, from Loan Service mega menu, under Balances, click Account Statement. You can also open the screen by specifying Account Statement in the search icon bar and selecting the screen.

The Account Statement screen is displayed.



#### Figure 3-1 Account Statement



- 2. On the Account Statement screen, click the icon or specify the account number in the Account Number field, and press Tab or Enter. For more information on search, refer Fetch Account Number.
- 3. Click Generate.

The Account Statement section is displayed.

The statements are displayed if they are generated for the account number on the given system date.

#### Figure 3-2 Account Statement for Required Period

Account Statement						
ccount Number LN2CR0118089	0002 Q Jacob					
Period	Date Range					
Date Range 🗸 👻	January 7, 2018	то	March 30, 2018	iii ii		
				Generate		
			_	162		
Account Statement						
Account Statement						
Account Statement	iany 7, 2018 to March 30, 2018					
Account Statement Statement from Jan Document Reference Of	uary 7, 2018 to March 30, 2018		View Pri	nt		
Statement Statement From Jann	<b>Jary 7, 2018 to March 30, 2018</b> IMISOG180890242		View Pri	nt		
Account Statement Statement from Jan Document Reference DD	uary 7, 2018 to March 30, 2018 IMISOCI80890242		View Pri	nt		
Statement From Jan Document Reference 00	<b>Jary 7, 2018 to March 30, 2018</b> IMSOC180890242		View Pri	nt		
Account Statement	uary 7, 2018 to March 30, 2018		View Pri	nt		

4. On the **Account Statement** screen, select the required date to generate statement. For more information on fields, refer to field description table below:

#### Table 3-1 Account Statement – Field Description

Field	Description			
Account Number	Click the cicon and select the account number or specify the account number for which the statement is to be generated.			
	Note: As you specify the account number, the name of the account holder appears next to the account number.			
Period	Select the period for generating the statement. The option are: <ul> <li>Date Range</li> <li>Last Month</li> <li>Last 2 Months</li> <li>Last 3 Months</li> </ul>			



Field	Description				
Date Range	Specify or select the date range for generating the statement.				
	<ul> <li>If you have selected the Date Range option from the Period field, then the start date will default to the loan account creation date if it is later than the financial year start date. Otherwise, it is the financial year start date. You can edit the date provided it is within the loan account creation date and the current system date.</li> <li>If you have selected the Last Month, Last 2 Months, or Last 3 Months options from the Period field, then the firom and to dates are displayed and the field is not enabled for further edits.</li> </ul>				
Account Statement	This section displays the statements generated based on the period or date range. For information on the links displayed, refer to Step 5.				
	Note: If you generate the statement more than once on the same system date, then the latest statement generated is displayed first and followed by the earlier generated statements.				
Statement From <date></date>	Displays the from and to date for which the statement is				
to <date></date>	generated.				
Generated By	Displays the name of the person who generated the statement.				
Document Reference	Displays a document reference number for the generated statement.				

Table 3-1 (Cont.) Account Statement – Field Description

- 5. From the Account Statement section, you can perform any of the following actions:
  - a. Click the **View** link, to view the statement generated.
  - b. Click the **Print** link, to print the statement generated.

## 3.2 Outstanding Balance Inquiry

You can inquire about the outstanding balance of an account using the **Outstanding Balance Inquiry** screen.

You can view the details of different balances in the loan account, such as Total Outstanding Balance, Principal Outstanding, Outstanding Arrears, and Unbilled Balances. You can also perform outstanding balance inquiry for the missed payments component wise.



To inquire on the outstanding balance:



 On the Homepage, from Loan Service mega menu, under Balances, click Outstanding Balance Inquiry. You can also open the screen by specifying Outstanding Balance Inquiry in the search icon bar and selecting the screen.

The **Outstanding Balance Inquiry** screen is displayed.

Figure 3-3 Outstanding Balance Inquiry

Outstanding Balance Inquiry					
Account Number	Q				
	Required				

2. On the Outstanding Balance Inquiry screen, specify the account number in the Account Number field, and press Tab or Enter.

The balance details of the account are displayed.

Figure 3-4	Outstanding Balance Inquiry - Outstanding Balance Details of
Account	

Outstandi	ng Balance Inquiry			; ×
Account Number	LN2ABS3180890259	RONY THOMAS		
				All amounts in GBP Q
Total Outstand 32,962.40 Hide Calculatio	ling	Principal Outstanding 32,750.00	Outstanding Arrears 1,045.29	Unbilled 194,90
Principal C 32,750.00	Dutstanding +	Outstanding Arrears 1,045.29	- Principal Arrears ) + 1,027.79	Unbilled 194.90
Outstanding A	rrears		Unbilled	
Description	Norr	nal Suspended	Interest 194.90	
▶ Main Int	17.	50 0.00	Penalty Interest 0.00	
▶ Principal	1,027	79 0.00		
View History				



3. On the **Outstanding Balance Inquiry** screen, view the required details. For more information on fields, refer to field description table below:

Field	Description		
Account Number	Specify the account number.  Note:  The upper right corner mentions the currency of the amounts displayed on the screen.		
Total Outstanding	Displays the different parameters used to calculate the total outstanding balance.  Note:  If you click the Show Calculation link, the formula used to calculate the total outstanding amount is displayed. To hide the formula, click Hide Calculation link.		
Principal Outstanding	Displays the principal outstanding arrears as of today's date.		
Outstanding Arrears	Displays the other arrears outstanding as of today's date.  Note: Here, both normal arrears and suspended arrears are displayed.		
Unbilled	Displays the regular interest, penalty interest, and uncollected interest that are yet to be charged.		

 Table 3-2
 Outstanding Balance Inquiry – Field Description

Field	Description			
Outstanding Arrears	This section displays the break-up of the outstanding arrears.			
	<ul> <li>Note:</li> <li>The Description column lists the arrear types. In case, any arrears are unpaid, then appears corresponding to the arrear type. If you click the sicon, it displays the amount of unpaid arrears along with the due date for the arrear type.</li> <li>If the Loan account moves to Suspended status, then the amount of all the arrears appear under the Suspended column.</li> </ul>			
Fees Arrears	Displays the fees arrears amount.			
Interest Arrears	Displays the interest arrears amount.			
Principal Arrears	Displays the principal arrears amount.			
Penalty Arrears	Displays the penalty arrears amount.   Note:  This value for this field is displayed only if penalty is applicable on the account.			
View History	Click this link to view the arrear history details. For more information, see Arrear History.			
Unbilled	This section displays details of unbilled amount.			
Interest	Displays the amount of accrued interest.			
Penalty Interest	Displays the amount of penalty for accrued interest.  Note:  This value for this field is displayed only if penalty is applicable on the account.			

#### Table 3-2 (Cont.) Outstanding Balance Inquiry – Field Description

Field	Description				
Arrear History	Displays the arrear history details.				
	Note: This section is displayed, if you click the View Details link from the Outstanding Arrears section. The upper right corner mentions the currency of the arrear amount displayed.				
Filter	Specify any keywords in this free text search field to filter the details in the grid.				
Date Range	Select or specify the start date of the period for which you want to search the records.				
То	Select or specify the end date of the period for which you want to search the records.				
Show Only Paid	Switch to to view amount of both paid and unpaid arrears. Switch to to view amount for only the paid amount arrears.				
Arrear	Displays all the arrears raised on the account.				
Date Assessed	Displays the date on which the arrear was raised on the account.				
Arrear Amount	Displays the arrear amount.				
Outstanding Arrear Amount	Displays the outstanding arrear amount on the account.				
Last Payment Date	Displays the last payment date on the account.				
	Note: The date appears only if a payment is made to the account.				

#### Table 3-2 (Cont.) Outstanding Balance Inquiry – Field Description

- 4. View the balance details.
- 5. To view the outstanding arrear history:
  - a. Click the View History link in the Outstanding Arrears section.

The **Arrear History** section displays. The system defaults all the arrears in descending order for the arrears raised, paid, or unpaid.



Outstandi	ng Balance Inquiry			11
Account Number	000ABS3180890258	Q RONY THOMAS		
< Back				All amounts inG
Arrear History				
Filter		Date Range	то	iii ii
Arrear	Date Assessed		Arrear Amount	Outstanding Arrear Amount
Main Int	March 7, 2018		248.49	248.49
Dela da al	March 7 2018		809.02	809.02

Figure 3-5 Outstanding Balance Inquiry – Arrear History

b. In the Arrear History section, specify and view the required details. For more information on fields, refer to field description table below:

Field Description

Table 3-3 Arrear History - Field Description

Field	Description
Filter	Specify the details to filter the details displayed.
Date Range	Specify the start date from which you need to view the arrear.
То	Specify the end date till which you need to view the arrear.
Arrear	Displays the description for the arrear displayed.
Date Assessed	Displays the assessment date of the arrear.
Arrear Amount	Displays the arrear amount.
Outstanding Arrear Amount	Displays the outstanding arrear amount.

c. Click the **Back** link to navigate to **Outstanding Balance Inquiry** screen.

# 4 Instruction Preferences

Under **Instructions Preferences** menu, you can view or set instructions and preferences of loan account.

This topic contains the following subtopics:

Payment Preferences

You can view and modify payment preferences to the loan account using the **Payment Preferences** screen.

Loan Preferences
 You can view or modify the loan account preferences that were set during the account opening process using the **Preferences** screen.

### **4.1 Payment Preferences**

You can view and modify payment preferences to the loan account using the **Payment Preferences** screen.

You cannot modify the preferences for the account if instructions are already executed. **To view or modify the payment preferences:** 

Note:

The fields marked as **Required** are mandatory.

 On the Homepage, from Loan Service mega menu, under Instructions & Preferences, click Payment Preferences. You can also open the screen by specifying Payment Preferences in the search icon bar and selecting the screen.

The Payment Preferences screen is displayed.



# Remarks **Payment Preferences** Account Number Q Cancel Submit

Figure 4-1 Payment Preferences

On the Payment Preferences screen, specify the account number in the Account 2. Number field, and press Tab or Enter.

The details are displayed in the Default Debit Account and Default Credit Account sections.

Figure 4-2 View or Modify Payment Preferences

ccount Number 000ABS3180890258								1	
000ABS3180890258	~								
	8 Q	RONY THOMAS							
efault Debit Acc	count								
Components	Туре	Account/Ledger	Branch	Current	y Verify Fun	ds A	ction		
MAIN_INT	Ledger	261100005	000	GBP	Yes		1		
PRINCIPAL	Ledger	261100005	000	GBP	Yes		1		
Default Credit Ac	ccount								
Components		Account	Branch	1	Currency	Action			
PRINCIPAL		261100005	000		GBP	Ø			

3. On the Payment Preferences screen, perform the required actions. For more information on fields, refer to field description table below:

#### Table 4-1 Payment Preferences – Field Description

Field	Description
Account Number	Specify the account number to view or modify the payment preferences
	Note: As you specify the account number, the name of the account holder appears next to the account number.



Field	Description
Default Debit Account	This section displays the preferences set for the debit account.
Components	Displays the components for the debit account.
Туре	Displays the type of account. The possible options are:  Account  Ledger
Account/Ledger	Displays the account or ledger number
Branch	Displays the branch code.
Currency	Displays the account currency.
Verify Funds	Displays whether verification is required for the funds. The possible options are:     Yes     No
Action	Click the <i>icon to edit the required details.</i>
Default Credit Account	This section displays the preferences for the credit account.
Components	Displays the components for the credit account. The possible options are: Principal Interest
Account	Displays the credit account number.
Branch	Displays the branch code.
Currency	Displays the account currency.
Action	Click the icon to edit the required details.

Table 4-1 (Colli.) Fayment Freielences – Field Description	Гable 4-1
--	-----------

#### Edit Debit Account

a. In the **Default Debit Account** section, click the **Edit** icon from the **Action** field.

The Edit Debit Account section is displayed.



Figure 4-3 Eail Debit Account	Figure 4-3	B Edit	Debit	Account
-------------------------------	------------	--------	-------	---------

Components		
MAIN_INT		
Type Account	•	
100500000000117	Q	
Branch		
005		
Currency		
GBP		
Verify Funds		
● Yes 🔿 No		
Required		

**b.** In the **Default Debit Account** section, edit the required details. For more information on fields, refer to field description table below:

Cancel

Save

Table 4-2 Edit Debit Account - Field Description

Field	Description
Components	Specify the components for the debit account.
Туре	Select the type of account. The options are: – Account – Ledger



Field	Description
<account></account>	Select the account number.
	<ul> <li>Note:</li> <li>If the you select Type as Account, select the account number from the Account section that is displayed as you click the icon.</li> <li>If the you select Type as Ledger, select the account number from the Ledger section that is displayed as you click the icon.</li> </ul>
Branch	Displays the branch code selected based on the selected account number.
	Note: This field is displayed if you select the Account option from the Type field.
Currency	Displays the currency selected based on the selected account number.
	Note: This field is displayed if you select the Account option from the Type field.
Verify Funds	Select wheteher fund verification is required for the selected acount number.
	Note: This field is displayed if you select the Account option from the Type field.

Table 4-2	(Cont.) Edit Debit Account - Field Description
-----------	--

- c. Click Save.
- Edit Credit Account
  - a. In the **Default Credit Account** section, click the **Edit** icon from the **Action** field.


The Edit Credit Account section is displayed.

Figure 4-4 Edit Credit Account

# Edit Credit Account X

Components	
PRINCIPAL	
AT10001130088	Q
Branch	
AT1	
Currency	
GBP	



**b.** In the **Default Credit Account** section, edit the required details. For more information on fields, refer to field description table below:

### Table 4-3 Edit Credit Account - Field Description

Field	Description
Components	Specify the components for the credit account.



Field	Description		
<account></account>	Select the account number.		
	Note: Click the con and fetch the account number from the <b>Account</b> section.		
Branch	Displays the branch code selected based on the selected account number.		
Currency	Displays the currency selected based on the selected account number.		

Table 4-3 (Cont.) Edit Credit Account - Field Description

4. Click Submit.

# 4.2 Loan Preferences

You can view or modify the loan account preferences that were set during the account opening process using the **Preferences** screen.

You cannot perform the modification, if the accounts are in Closed, Full Written Off, or Charged Off status.

To view or modify preferences:

#### Note:

The fields marked as **Required** are mandatory.

1. On the Homepage, from Loan Service mega menu, under Instructions & Preferences, click Loan Preferences. You can also open the screen by specifying Loan Preferences in the search icon bar and selecting the screen.

The Loan Preferences screen is displayed.



Loan Preferences				Remarks	1.	×
Account Number	Q					
	Required					
						M
Audit				Cancel	Subm	t

Figure 4-5 Loan Preferences

2. On the Loan Preferences screen, click the icon or specify the account number in the Account Number field, and press Tab or Enter. For more information on search, refer Fetch Account Number.

The loan preferences are displayed.



Loan Preferences					Remai	rks
count Number 000AMR5	180890005 Q	John Gilbert Ben				
Account						
Statement Facility		Status Change Mode				
Not to be sent	•	Auto Manual				
Stop Future Disbursements		Maximum Renegotiatio	ons			
Yes No		2 🗸	^			
Rate Change Impact		Partial TD Block Releas	e			
Change Term Change	nstallment	Yes No				
Bulk Payment		Provisioning Preference	e			
No		Auto				
Liquidation						
Partial Liquidation		Track Receivable				
Yes No		Yes No				
Salary Block		Liquidation of Back Va	ue Schedules			
No		No				
Rollover						
Allow Pollover		Pollover Mode				
		Auto				
User Defined Element Basis		Schedule Basis				
Account		Account				
Loan Components						
Components		Waive	Include in Intern Return	al Rate of		
Adhoc Charge		NA	No	-		
mandling Charge		NA	NO			
Interest		No	▼ No	•		
Interest Penalty		No	▼ No	•		
Principal Penalty		No	▼ No	•		
			_			
Prepayment Penalty		NO	▼ N0			
Principal		No	▼ No	•		
Processing Charge		NA	No	-		
				1////		

### Figure 4-6 View or Modify Preferences

3. On the Loan Preferences screen, view or modify the required preferences. For more information on fields, refer to field description table below:

Field	Description
Account Number	Click the con and select the account number or specify the account number to view or modify the loan preferences.
	Note: As you specify the account number, the name of the account holder appears next to the account number.
Account	In this section, you can view and modify the account related preferences.
Statement Facility	Select the statement facility for an account. The options are: Not to be sent Monthly Yearly Fortnightly Weekly Bi- Monthly Half Yearly Quarterly
	Note: By default, the Not to be sent option will be selected. You can modify the option if required.
Status Change Mode	Select the mode for status change. The options are: <ul> <li>Auto</li> <li>Manual</li> </ul>
Stop Future Disbursement	Select whether future disbursement is to be stopped. The options are:  Yes No
Maximum Renegotiations	Specify the maximum number of renegotiations allowed on the account.
	Note: You can also increase the number by clicking the icon and decrease the number by clicking the icon.

### Table 4-4 Loan Preferences – Field Description



Field	Description
Rate Change Impact	Select the appropriate option for rate change impact. The options are:  Change Term Change Installment
Partial TD Block Release	Select whether partial TD block release is to be applied. The option are:     Yes     No
Bulk Payment	Displays whether bulk payment is allowed on the account.
Provisioning Preference	Displays the preference set for provisioning. The possible options are: • Auto • Manual • Not Applicable
Liquidation	In this section, you can view or modify the liquidation related preferences.
Partial Liquidation	Select whether the partial liquidation is applicable for the account. The options are: <ul> <li>Yes</li> <li>No</li> </ul>
Track Receivable	Select whether the track receivable is applicable for the account.
Salary Block	Displays whether the salary block is allowed on the account.
Liquidation of Back Value Schedules	Displays whether liquidation of back value schedules are allowed on the account.
Rollover	In this section, you can view and modify the rollover related preferences.
Allow Rollover	Switch to for not allowing rollover on the account. Switch to for allowing rollover on the account.
Rollover Mode	Displays the rollover mode for the account. The possible options are: • Auto • Manual
	Note: This field is displayed, if you switch to in the Allow Rollover field.

### Table 4-4 (Cont.) Loan Preferences – Field Description

Field	Description
User Defined Element Basis	Displays the basis for user defined element. The possible options are: • Contract • Product
	Note: This field is displayed, if you switch to in the Allow Rollover field.
Schedule Basis	Displays the basis for schedule. The possible options are: <ul> <li>Contract</li> <li>Product</li> </ul>
	Note: This field is displayed, if you switch to in the Allow Rollover field.
Loan Components	In this section, you can view and modify the loan components related preferences.
Component	Displays the name of the component.
Waive	<ul> <li>Select whether to waive the component. The options are:</li> <li>Yes</li> <li>No</li> </ul>
	Note: The field displays NA and is not enabled for Charge component.
Internal Rate of Return	Select whether the internal rate of return is applicable. The options are:  Yes No

### Table 4-4 (Cont.) Loan Preferences – Field Description

### 4. Click Submit.

The screen is successfully submitted for authorization.

# 5 Repayment

Under **Repayment** menu, you can make the payment and perform closure of your loan account.

This topic contains the following subtopics:

Loan Payment and Closure

You can make the payment towards a loan account using the **Loan Payment and Closure** screen.

# 5.1 Loan Payment and Closure

You can make the payment towards a loan account using the **Loan Payment and Closure** screen.

This topic contains the following subtopics:

- Navigating and Fetching Account The steps to navigate and fetch the account number is covered in this topic.
- Paying by Pay Due Option
   You can pay the due loan amount by installment or existing arrears of a loan account.
   This option will be available only if there are existing arrears due as on the value date.
   This topic describes the systematic instructions for paying the due amount.
- Viewing Breakup of Amount Due

You can view the breakup details of the due amount, only if you have selected the **Installment Payment** option from the **Payment Type** field in the **Loan Payment and Closure** tab.

Viewing Simulation Details

You can get a complete overview of the amount details are displayed in this widget on the right side of the screen.

- Paying by Pay Advance Option
   You can make payment by paying the advance amount. The Pay Advance option will not be available, if the loan account is in post maturity date.
- Paying by Partially Pay Off Option

You can make payment by paying partial loan amount. Once the payment is done, the principal amount is reduced from the loan amount. The **Partially Pay Off** option will not available, if the loan account is in post maturity date.

• Paying by Close Account Option You can make payment by repaying the entire outstanding loan amount and close the loan account.

Viewing, Modifying, or Waiving Fees You can view, modify, or waive the fees applied on the loan account. Only for the loan account for which fees are configured the **Total Fees** and **Waive Fees** field are displayed.



- Performing Settlement through CASA
   You can perform your settlement through your CASA account.
- Performing Settlement through Ledger You can perform the settlement using ledger.
- Performing Multi Mode Settlement You can perform settlement through multi mode option, that is, settlement can done through CASA and Ledger at once.

# 5.1.1 Navigating and Fetching Account

The steps to navigate and fetch the account number is covered in this topic.

#### To navigate and fetch account number:



 On the Homepage, from Loan Service mega menu, under Repayment, click Loan Payment and Closure. You can also open the screen by specifying Loan Payment and Closure in the search icon bar and selecting the screen.

The Loan Payment and Closure screen is displayed.

		ı,
Loan Payment and Clos	Loan Payment and Closure	Screen(1/2
Loan Settlement Details	Account Number Q Required	

#### Figure 5-1 Loan Payment and Closure

2. On the Loan Payment and Closure screen, specify the account number in

the Account Number field, and press Tab or Enter. You can also click the  $\space{1.5}$  icon to search the account number

A section is displayed.



Account Number	Customer Name		
Fetch			
Account Number		Customer Name	
LN2CR01180890002		Jacob	
000ABS3180890153		RONY THOMAS	
001CR02180890003		Jacob	
000ABS3180890002		RONY THOMAS	
000ABS3180890065		FAISAL	
LN2AB01180890030		Jacob	

#### Figure 5-2 Fetch Account Number

3. From the section, in the Account Number or Account Name field, specify the account number or name that is to be fetched.

#### 4. Click Fetch.

The account number or name is fetched and displayed in the table. Select the displayed option. The account number and name of the account holder are displayed on the screen.

Loan Payment and	Closure							Remarks
Loan Payment and Clos	Loan Payment	and Closure						Screen(1,
Loan Settlement Details	Account Number	000AMR5180890	0005 Q	John Gilbert Ben				
								All amounts in GB
	Value Date	Mar 30, 2018	з 🛗			Amount to pay		
	Payment Nature	Pay Dues	Pay Advance	Partially Pay Off	Close Account	0.00		
							Existing	New
						Total Outstanding	101,109.36	0.00
						Principal Outstanding	100,000.00	0.00
						Insurance Outstanding		0.00
						Arrears	17,220.48	0.00
						Unbilled Interest	332.34	0.00
						Installment Amount	6,625.34	0.00
						Remaining Installments	13	o
Audit							Cancel Sa	ave & Close Nex

Figure 5-3 Loan Payment and Closure tab



# 5.1.2 Paying by Pay Due Option

You can pay the due loan amount by installment or existing arrears of a loan account. This option will be available only if there are existing arrears due as on the value date. This topic describes the systematic instructions for paying the due amount.

#### To pay towards dues:

- 1. Navigate to the screen and fetch the account. For more information, refer Navigating and Fetching Account.
- 2. From the Loan Payment and Closure tab, select the Pay Due option from the Payment Nature field.
  - To make payment by installment, select the **Installment Payment** option from the **Payment Type** field.

Loan Payment and	Closure			Remarks	ocuments
Loan Payment and Clos	Loan Payment	and Closure			Screen(1
Loan Settlement Details	Account Number	000CN10180890002 Q RONY THOMAS			
					All amounts in G
	Value Date Payment Nature	March 30, 2018	Amount to pay 612.67		
Payment Type	Installment Payment Allocate Arrears		Existing	New	
	Collect Unbilled Inter Amount Due	567.67 View Breakup	Total Outstanding Principal Outstanding	11,803.63 11,750.00	11,235.96 <b>↓</b> 11,235.96 <b>↓</b>
	Total Fees Waive Fees	45.00 View Details/Modify	Insurance Outstanding		
	Amount to pay	612.67	Arrears Unbilled Interest	41.56	0.00 J
			Installment Amount	526.11	526.11
			Remaining Installments	23	23

Figure 5-4 Pay Dues – Installment Payment

For more information on fields, refer to field description table below:



Field	Description
Account Number	Click the contained and select the account number or specify the account number for paying the installment due.
	Note: As you specify the account number, the name of the account holder appears next to the account number.
Value Date	Specify the due date on which the payment is to be done.
	Note: By default, the current posting date is displayed in this field. You can edit the date, if required.
Payment Nature	Select the <b>Pay Dues</b> for paying the payment.
	Note: For information on other options, refer Paying by Pay Advance Option, Paying by Partially Pay Off Option, and Paying by Close Account Option.
Payment Type	Select the appropriate type for paying the loan payment. The options are:
	<ul> <li>Installment Payment: The following fields are displayed, if you select this option.</li> <li>Allocate Arrears: For more information on the related fields, refer Allocate Arrears.</li> </ul>
Collect Interest Till Date	Switch to Collect all the unbilled interest till date.
	Switch to to not to collect all the unbilled interest till date.
Amount Due	Displays the total loan amount to be paid.
	Note: You can view the details of amount due. For more information, refer Viewing Breakup of Amount Due.
Fees	Displays the fees amount to be paid.

### Table 5-1 Pay Due - Installment Payment – Field Description



Field	Description				
Amount to Pay	Specify the total payment loan amount.				
	Note: You should specify amount less than or equal to the total dues to proceed ahead successfully.				

#### Table 5-1 (Cont.) Pay Due - Installment Payment – Field Description

• To make payment by allocating arrears, select the **Allocate Arrears** option from the **Payment Type** field.

#### Figure 5-5 Pay Dues - Allocate Arrears

I oan Payment and Clos	Loan Payment	t and Closu	ire						Scree	
Loan Settlement Details										
	Account Number	000CN10180	00CN10180890002 Q RONY THOMAS							
									All amounts in	
	Value Date	March 3	50, 2018 📋	1			Amount to pay	Amount to pay		
	Payment Nature	Pay Du	es Pay A	dvance Pa	rtially Pay Off	Close Account	612.67			
	Payment Type	Install	ment Paymer	nt Allocate	Arrears			Existing	New	
	Collect Unbilled Inte	ed Interest Total Outstanding 567.67 Principal Outstanding					Total Outstanding	11,803.63	11,235.96 👃	
	Amount Due						Principal Outstanding	11,750.00	11,235.96 👃	
	Total Fees 45.00 View Details/Modify Insur						Insurance Outstanding			
Wa	Walve Fees						Arrears	526.11	0.00 🗸	
	Amount to pay		612.67 Unbilled Interest				41.56	0.00 👃		
	Allocation						Installment Amount	526.11	526.11	
	Simulate Alloo	cation					Remaining Installments	23	23	
	Component		Arrears 0	Pay 🗘	Capitalize 🗘	Waive 0				
	MAIN_INT		53.63	£53.63	£0.00	£0.00				
	PRINCIPAL		514.04	£514.04	£0.00	£0.00				
	Total		567.67	£567.67	£0.00	£0.00				

For more information on fields, refer to field description table below:

#### Table 5-2 Pay Due - Allocate Arrears – Field Description

Field	Description
<other fields=""></other>	For information on the fields above this section, refer Installment Payment.



Field	Description
Allocation	<ul> <li>This section is displayed if you select the Allocate Arrears option from the Payment Type field.</li> <li>Note: <ul> <li>You can specify either pay, capitalize, waive the existing arrears, or perform combination of three.</li> <li>You need to total allocation amount should be less or equal to the arrears amount.</li> <li>To view the amounts after updating the allocations, click Stimulate Allocation.</li> </ul> </li> </ul>
Component	Displays the components for the allocation
	Displays the arrears amount
Pay	Specify the amount to be paid towards the specific component.   Note:  The system validates the sum of Pay, Capitalize, and Waive for a specific component is not more than the value of respective component's Arrear amount. Based on this validation, an appropriate message is displayed.
Capitalize	Specify the amount to be capitalized towards the specific component.
Waive	Specify the amount to be waived towards the specific component.
Total	Displays the total of arrears and pay amount.

 Table 5-2
 (Cont.) Pay Due - Allocate Arrears – Field Description

3. Click Next.

The **Loan Settlement Details** tab is displayed. For more information, refer Performing Settlement through CASA and Performing Settlement through Ledger.

4. Click Submit.

The screen is successfully submitted for authorization.



# 5.1.3 Viewing Breakup of Amount Due

You can view the breakup details of the due amount, only if you have selected the **Installment Payment** option from the **Payment Type** field in the **Loan Payment and Closure** tab.

#### To view due amount breakup:

- 1. Navigate to the screen and fetch the account. For more information, refer Navigating and Fetching Account.
- 2. From the Loan Payment and Closure tab, select the Pay Due option from the Payment Nature field.
- 3. From the **Payment Type** field, select the **Installment Payment** option.
- 4. From the Amount Due field, click the View Breakup link.

The Arrears section is displayed.

#### Figure 5-6 View Amount Breakup

Loan Payment and	Closure		Remarks d L X
Loan Payment and Clos	Loan Payment and Closure		Screen(1/2
Loan Settlement Details	Account Number 000AMR5180890005 Q	John Gilbert Ben	
			All amounts in GBP
	Arrears		
	Arrears	Amount	
	MAIN_INT	777.02	
	ODIN_PNLTY	4.72	
	ODPR_PNLTY	96.12	
	PRINCIPAL	16,342.62	
	Total		
		Ok	
Audit			Cancel Save & Close Next

5. You can view the breakup in detail for the amount due. For more information on fields, refer to field description table below:

#### Table 5-3 View Breakup - Field Description

Field	Description
Arrears	Displays the components of the arrears.
Amount	Displays the amount for each arrear component.
Total	Displays the total amount of arrears.
lotai	

6. Click OK.



# 5.1.4 Viewing Simulation Details

You can get a complete overview of the amount details are displayed in this widget on the right side of the screen.

As you modify the amounts in the Payment Details or Settlement Details tabs, the impact

on the new calculated amount is displayed with  $\uparrow$  or  $\downarrow$  indicator. The indicators are displayed to show if there is a increase or decrease in the payment amount as compared to the existing amount, after you make the modifications. Also, the amount currency is displayed at top of the widget.

#### To view the stimulation details:

- 1. Navigate to the screen and fetch the account. For more information, refer Navigating and Fetching Account.
- 2. From the **Payment Details** or **Settlement Details** tab, update the required values as required

In the right widget, the **New** amounts are displayed.

Amount to pay 17,225.48		
	Existing	New
Total Outstanding	101,109.36	83,989.72 👃
Principal Outstanding	100,000.00	83,657.38 👃
Insurance Outstanding		
Arrears	17,220.48	0.00 🗸
Unbilled Interest	332.34	332.34
Installment Amount	6,625.34	6,625.34
Remaining Installments	13	13

#### Figure 5-7 Right Widget

3. You can view the compare the existing and new amounts displayed. For more information on fields, refer to field description table below:



Field	Description			
Amount to pay	Displays the total amount payable for the loan account.			
Total Outstanding	Displays the existing and new total outstanding amount.			
Principal Outstanding	Displays the existing and new available principal outstanding			
Insurance Outstanding	Displays the existing and new available insurance outstanding			
Arrears	Displays the existing and new arrears on the loan account.			
Unbilled Interest	Displays the existing and new total unbilled interest.			
Installment Amount	Displays the existing and new installment amount of the loan account.			
Remaining Installment	Displays the existing and new remaining installment of the loan account.			

#### Table 5-4 Amount to pay – Field Description

# 5.1.5 Paying by Pay Advance Option

You can make payment by paying the advance amount. The **Pay Advance** option will not be available, if the loan account is in post maturity date.

#### To pay advance amount:

- 1. Navigate to the screen and fetch the account. For more information, refer Navigating and Fetching Account.
- 2. From the Payment Nature field, select Pay Advance option.

The fields related to Pay Advance option are displayed.

oan Payment and	Closure			Remarks D	ocuments	
Loan Payment and Clos	Loan Payment a	Loan Payment and Closure				
Loan Settlement Details	Account Number 0	RONY THOMAS				
					All amounts in GB	
	Value Date	March 30, 2018	Amount to pay			
Payment Nature Payment No. of installments	Payment Nature	Pay Dues         Pay Advance         Partially Pay Off         Close Account	1,623.33			
	Payment	No. of Installments Pay for Period		Existing	New	
	2	Total Outstanding	11,803.63	10,321.77 👃		
	Amount Due	1,578.33 (Includes arrears amount of \$26.11)	Principal Outstanding	11,750.00	10,321.77 👃	
	Total Fees	45.00 View Details/Modify	Insurance Outstanding			
	Walve Fees		Arrears	526.11	0.00 🕹	
	Amount to pay	1,623.33	Unbilled Interest	41.56	0.00 🗸	
Actual No. of ins	Actual No. of installments	paid in advance would be 2.Next Installment on June 12, 2018	Installment Amount	526.11	526.11	
			Remaining Installments	23	21 🗸	

Figure 5-8 Pay Advance

**3.** You can perform the required action. For more information on fields, refer to field description table below:



Field	Description
Payment Nature	Select the <b>Pay Advance</b> for paying the payment.
	Note: For information on other options, refer Paying by Pay Due Option, Paying by Partially Pay Off Option, and Paying by Close Account Option.
Payment	<ul> <li>Select the payment option. The options are:</li> <li>No. of Installment</li> <li>Holiday for a period</li> </ul>
No. of Installment	Specify the number of installments for paying the advance.
	<ul> <li>Note:</li> <li>This field appears if you select the No. of Installment option from the Payment field.</li> <li>You cannot specify the value as zero, more or equal to pending number of installments.</li> </ul>
Holiday	Specify or select the end date for the holiday.
	<ul> <li>Note:</li> <li>This field appears if you select the Holiday for a period option from the Payment field.</li> <li>The next installment date is displayed adjacent to this field.</li> </ul>
Amount Due	Displays the total loan amount to be paid.
Fees	Displays the fees amount to be paid.
Amount to Pay	Specify the total payment loan amount.
	<ul> <li>As you specify installments in the No. of Installments field, by default the amount in this field is calculated and displayed.</li> <li>Based on this amount, the actual number of installments paid in advance is displayed, along with the next installment date.</li> </ul>

 Table 5-5
 Pay Advance - Field Description

4. Click Next.

The **Loan Settlement Details** tab is displayed. For more information, refer Performing Settlement through CASA and Performing Settlement through Ledger.

5. Click Submit.

The screen is successfully submitted for authorization.

# 5.1.6 Paying by Partially Pay Off Option

You can make payment by paying partial loan amount. Once the payment is done, the principal amount is reduced from the loan amount. The **Partially Pay Off** option will not available, if the loan account is in post maturity date.

#### To pay partial amount:

- 1. Navigate to the screen and fetch the account. For more information, refer Navigating and Fetching Account.
- 2. From the Payment Nature field, select Partially Pay Off option.

The fields related to Partially Pay Off option are displayed.

Loan Payment and Clos	Loan Payment	and Closure						Screen(1/2
Loan Settlement Details	Account Number	000CN10180890	0002 Q	RONY THOMAS				
								All amounts in GBP
	Value Date	March 30, 2	018 🛗			Amount to pay		
	Payment Nature	Pay Dues	Pay Advance	Partially Pay Off	Close Account	200.00		
	Collect Unbilled Inte	rrest					Existing	New
	Total Fees	45.00 View Details/Modify				Total Outstanding	11,803.63	11,648.63 🗸
	Waive Fees					Principal Outstanding	11,750.00	11,607.07 🕹
	Amount to pay			200.00		Insurance Outstanding		
	Change	Term Ir	nstallment			Arrears	526.11	371.11 🕹
						Unbilled Interest	41.56	41.56
						Installment Amount	526.11	526.11
						Remaining Installments	23	23

Figure 5-9 Partial Pay Off

**3.** You can perform the required action. For more information on fields, refer to field description table below:



Field	Description
Payment Nature	Select the Partially Pay Off for paying the payment.
	Note: For information on other options, refer Paying by Pay Due Option, Paying by Pay Advance Option, and Paying by Close Account Option.
Collect Interest Till Date	Switch to <b>Collect</b> all the unbilled interest till date.
	Switch to to not to collect all the unbilled interest till date.
Fees	Displays the fees amount to be paid.
Amount to Pay	Specify the total payment loan amount.
	Note: If the specified amount is not enough to pay the principal balance, then you will not be able to proceed ahead with the transaction.
Change	Select whether to change to <b>Term</b> or <b>Installment</b> option.

Table 5-6 Partially Pay Off - Field Description

4. Click Next.

The **Loan Settlement Details** tab is displayed. For more information, refer Performing Settlement through CASA and Performing Settlement through Ledger.

5. Click Submit.

The screen is successfully submitted for authorization.

### 5.1.7 Paying by Close Account Option

You can make payment by repaying the entire outstanding loan amount and close the loan account.

#### To pay by closing account:

- 1. Navigate to the screen and fetch the account. For more information, refer Navigating and Fetching Account.
- 2. From the **Payment Nature** field, select **Close Account** option.

The fields related to Close Account option are displayed.



Payment and Clos	Loan Payment a	nd Closure						Screen(1,
Settlement Details	Account Number	000CN10180890	0002 Q	RONY THOMAS				
								All amounts in GB
	Value Date	March 30, 2	018 🛗			Amount to pay		
	Payment Nature	Pay Dues	Pay Advance	Partially Pay Off	Close Account	11,848.63		
	Amount Due	11,848.63					Existing	New
	Total Fees	45.00 Vie	w Details/Modit	fy		Total Outstanding	11,803.63	0.00 ↓
	Waive Fees					Principal Outstanding	11,750.00	0.00 🗸
	Amount to pay			11,848.63		Insurance Outstanding		
						Arrears	526.11	0.00 🗸
						Unbilled Interest	41.56	0.00 🗸
						Installment Amount	526.11	0.00 🗸
						Remaining Installments	23	

Figure 5-10 Close Account

3. You can perform the required action. For more information on fields, refer to field description table below:

Field	Description
Payment Nature	Select the <b>Close Account</b> for paying the payment.
	Note: For information on other options, refer Paying by Pay Due Option, Paying by Pay Advance Option, and Paying by Partially Pay Off Option.
Amount Due	Displays the total loan amount to be paid.
Fees	Displays the fees amount to be paid.
Amount to Pay	Specify the total payment loan amount.
	Note: You can only enter the amount equal or more than the amount specified in the Amount Due field.

#### Table 5-7 Close Account - Field Description

4. Click Next.

The **Loan Settlement Details** tab is displayed. For more information, refer Performing Settlement through CASA and Performing Settlement through Ledger.

5. Click Submit.

The screen is successfully submitted for authorization.



# 5.1.8 Viewing, Modifying, or Waiving Fees

You can view, modify, or waive the fees applied on the loan account. Only for the loan account for which fees are configured the **Total Fees** and **Waive Fees** field are displayed.

#### To view, modify, or waive the fees applied:

- 1. Navigate to the screen and fetch the account. For more information, refer Navigating and Fetching Account.
- 2. From the Loan Payment and Closure tab, select the nature of payment from the Payment Nature field.
  - To view or modify the fees:
  - a. From the Total Fees field, click the View Details/Modify link.

The Manage Fees section is displayed.

#### Figure 5-11 Manage Fees

Manage Fees		
Charge Details	Defaulted Amount	Modified Amount
HANDLNG_CHG	45.00	45.00
Total		45.00
		Cancel

**b.** In the **Manage Fees** section, you can view or modify the fees details are required. For more information on fields, refer to field description table below:

#### Table 5-8 Manage Fees - Field Description

Field	Description
Charge Details	Displays types of charges applied on the account.
Charge Details	Displays the details of the charge applied on the account.
Defaulted Amount	Displays the defaulted fees amount on the account.
Modified Amount	Displays the latest fees amount.  Note: You can edit the amount by clicking the field and specifying the amount



c. Click OK.

The Manage Fees section is closed.

- To waive the fees:
- a. From the **Waive Fees** field, switch to **U** to waive the fees applied on the account.

The value in **Total Fees** is displayed as 0.

- b. Click Next.
- c. Click Submit.

## 5.1.9 Performing Settlement through CASA

You can perform your settlement through your CASA account.

#### To perform settlement through CASA:

- 1. Navigate to the screen and fetch the account. For more information, refer Navigating and Fetching Account.
- 2. From the Loan Payment and Closure tab, click Next.

The Loan Settlement Details tab is displayed.

3. From the **Pay Through** field, select the **CASA** option.

The fields related to CASA are displayed.

- 4. You can perform settlement through CASA using any of the following actions:
  - For CASA account in local currency:

#### Figure 5-12 CASA Account in Local Currency

Loan Settlement	t Details				Screen(2/
Loan Account Numbe	er 000ABS3180890238 RONY THOMA	AS			
					All amounts in GB
Pay Through	CASA Ledger	Multi Mode Settlement Options	Amount to pay 32,350.67		
	RONY THOMAS~000008475			Existing	New
			Total Outstanding	32,305.67	0.00↓
			Principal Outstanding	31,950.00	0.00 ↓
			Insurance Outstanding		
			Arrears	997.66	0.00↓
			Unbilled Interest	152.15	0.00 ↓
			Installment Amount	1,181.73	0.00↓
			Remaining Installments	30	0↓
	Loan Account Number Dear Account Number Pay Through Account	Loan Settlement Details Loan Account Number 000AB53180890238 RONY THOMA Pay Through Account Account RONY THOMAS-000008475	Loan Account Number 000ABS3180890238 RONY THOMAS Pay Through CASA Ledger Account RONY THOMAS-000008475	Loan Account Number 000AB53800990238 RONY THOMAS Pay Through Account Cash Ledger RONY THOMAS-000008475  Total Outstanding Insurance Interest Installments	Loan Settlement Details Lean Account Number 000ABS3180890238 RONY THOMAS Pay Through CASA Ledger Account Number 000ABS3180890238 RONY THOMAS Multi Mode Settlement Options Account RONY THOMAS-000008475 * Multi Mode Settlement Options Account Account Rony THOMAS-000008475 * Multi Mode Settlement Options Account Rony THOMAS-000008475 * Multi Mode Settlement Options Account Rony THOMAS-00008475 * Account Rony THOMAS-0008475 * Account Rony THOMAS-0008475 * Account Rony THOMAS

For more information on fields, refer to field description table below:



Field	Description
Pay Through	Select the <b>CASA</b> option to perform the settlement.
	Note: For information on Ledger, refer Performing Settlement through Ledger.
Account	Select the CASA account in local currency.
	<ul> <li>Note:</li> <li>For information on CASA in foreign currency, refer CASA in Foreign Currency.</li> <li>For information if you select the Others option from the list, refer CASA Within the Bank.</li> </ul>

### Table 5-9 CASA - Local Currency – Field Description

• For CASA account in foreign currency:

### Figure 5-13 CASA Account in Foreign Currency

Loan Payment and	l Closure	Remarks De	ocuments
$\odot$ Loan Payment and Clos	Loan Settlement Details		Screen(2/2
Loan Settlement Details	Loan Account Number 000ABS3I80890238 RONY THOMAS           Multi Mode Settlement Options         Amount to           2,350.67         -           Account         Account         -           Account Amount         QAR 16,175.33         -           Exchange Rate         2         Edit	pay Existing Inding 32,305.67 standing 31,950.00 itstanding	All amounts in GBP
	Arrears Unbilled Inte Installment A Remaining In	997.66 rest 152.15 .mount 1,181.73 istallments 30	0.00 ↓ 0.00 ↓ 0.0 ↓

For more information on fields, refer to field description table below:



Field	Description
Pay Through	Select the <b>CASA</b> option to perform the settlement.
	Note: For information on Ledger, refer Performing Settlement through Ledger.
Account	Select the CASA account in foreign currency.
	<ul> <li>Note:</li> <li>For information on CASA in local currency, refer CASA in Local Currency.</li> <li>For information if you select the Other CASA option from the list, refer CASA Within the Bank.</li> </ul>
Account Amount	Displays the selected CASA account's currency and
	amount equivalent of the value specified in the Amount to pay field in the Loan Payment and Closure tab.
Exchange Rate	Displays the current exchange rate of the amount.
	<b>Note:</b> To modify the rate, you can click the <b>Edit</b> link.

### Table 5-10 CASA - Foreign Currency – Field Description

• For CASA account within the bank:

### Figure 5-14 CASA Within the Bank

oan Payment and Clos	Loan Settlement	Details			Screen(2/
Loan Settlement Details	Loan Account Numbe	r 000AB53180890238 RONY THOMAS			
					All amounts in GBI
	Pay Through	CASA Ledger	Amount to pay 32,350.67		
	Account	Account  Others			
	Туре	CASA Within the Bank		Existing	New
	Account Number	000008475067 RONY THOMAS	Total Outstanding	32,305.67	0.00 ↓
	Account Amount	QAR 16,175.33	Principal Outstanding	31,950.00	0.00 ↓
	Exchange Rate	2 Edit	Insurance Outstanding		
			Arrears	997.66	0.00↓
			Unbilled Interest	152.15	0.00 ↓
			Installment Amount	1,181.73	0.00 ↓
			Remaining Installments	30	01



For more information on fields, refer to field description table below:

Description
Select the <b>CASA</b> option to perform the settlement.
Note: For information on Ledger, refer Performing Settlement through Ledger.
Select the <b>Others</b> option.
Select the CASA Within the Bank type.
Specify the CASA account number for performing the settlement.
Displays the selected CASA account amount.
Displays the current exchange rate of the amount.
<b>Note:</b> To modify the rate, you can click the <b>Edit</b> link.

 Table 5-11
 CASA Within the Bank – Field Description

5. Click Submit.

The screen is successfully submitted for authorization.

# 5.1.10 Performing Settlement through Ledger

You can perform the settlement using ledger.

#### To perform settlement through ledger:

- 1. Navigate to the screen and fetch the account. For more information, refer Navigating and Fetching Account.
- 2. From the Loan Payment and Closure tab, click Next.

The Loan Settlement Details tab is displayed.

3. From the **Pay Through** field, select the **Ledger** option.

The fields related to ledger option are displayed.



	a elosare				
Loan Payment and Clos	Loan Settlemer	ıt Details			Screen(
	Loan Account Numb	per 000ABS3180890238 RONY THOMAS			
					All amounts in
	Ray Through	Multi Mode Settlement Options	Amount to pay		
	Pay moden	CASA Ledger	32,350.67		
	Ledger Code	313300010 Q Charge Income			
	Currency	GBP		Existing	New
			Total Outstanding	32,305.67	0.00 ↓
			Principal Outstanding	31,950.00	0.00 ↓
			Insurance Outstanding		
			Arrears	997.66	0.00 \$
			Unbilled Interest	152.15	0.00 ↓
				1101 77	0.00 1
			Installment Amount	1,101.75	0.00 \$

Figure 5-15 Ledger

**4.** Specify the details in the required fields. For more information on fields, refer to field description table below:

Table 5-12 Ledger – Field Description

Field	Description
Pay Through	Select the Ledger option to perform the settlement.
	Note:
	Settlement through CASA.
Ledger Code	Click the contained and select the ledger code for performing the adhoc charges settlement.
	Note: For more information in fetching the ledger code, refer Fetch Ledger Code.
Currency	Select the currency for the ledger amount.

5. Click Submit.

The screen is successfully submitted for authorization.

### 5.1.11 Performing Multi Mode Settlement

You can perform settlement through multi mode option, that is, settlement can done through CASA and Ledger at once.

#### To perform multi mode settlement:



- 1. Navigate to the screen and fetch the account. For more information, refer Navigating and Fetching Account.
- 2. From the Loan Payment and Closure tab, click Next.

The Loan Settlement Details tab is displayed.

- 3. Click the Multi Mode Settlement Options link.
- 4. Click the + icon, to add settlement modes.

The **Add Settlement** section is displayed.

The Add Settlement section is displayed. For more information on the Add Settlement section, refer Performing Settlement through CASA and Performing Settlement through Ledger.

Loan Payment and Clos	Loon Cottlomo	nt Dotails						Screen(2
	Loan Settleme	ent Details						Screen(2
Loan Settlement Details	Loan Account Num	nber 000ABS3180890238 RON	IY THOMAS					
								All amounts in GE
			Sing	le Mode Settlement O	ptions +	Amount to pay		
	Mode	Description	Amount	Action 0		52,350.67		
	No data to displa	ay.					Existing	New
						Total Outstanding	32,305.67	0.00↓
	Add Settle	ment				Principal Outstanding	31,950.00	0.00 ↓
	Pay Through	CASA Ledger	]			Insurance Outstanding		
	Account	Account RONY THOMAS~0	00008475			Arrears	997.66	0.00↓
	Pay	Amount	GBP V			Unbilled Interest	152.15	0.00 ↓
				Required		Installment Amount	1,181.73	0.00 ↓
				Cancer	ave	Remaining Installments	30	01

#### Figure 5-16 Multimode Settlement Option

5. Click Save.

The settlement is added in the table above.

6. You can edit or delete the settlement entry if required. For more information on fields, refer to field description table below:

#### Table 5-13 Multi Mode Setllment Options – Field Description

Field	Description		
Mode	Displays the settlement mode.		
Description	Displays the details available for the settlement modes.		
Amount	Displays the amount available in the specific settlement mode.		
Action	Click the icon to edit the amount.		
Total	Displays the total of the settlement amount.		



• To go back to the single mode option, click the **Single Mode Settlement Options** link.

# 6 Schedule

Under Schedule menu, you can view and perform action on the schedule of a loan account.

This topic contains the following subtopics:

Loan Payment Holiday

You can initiate a loan payment holiday for the loan account using the **Loan Payment Holiday** screen.

- Loan Renegotiation You can simulate the transaction and check if the result of the simulation fulfills the borrower's requirement using the **Loan Renegotiation** screen. It also provides flexibility to simulate various options and perform single variation event or combination of variation events.
- Loan Schedule Inquiry You can view the loan schedule of an account using the Loan Schedule Inquiry screen.
- Repayment Date Change

You can view the repayment date details and if required change the repayment date of a loan account for which repayment frequency is monthly using the **Repayment Date Change** screen.

# 6.1 Loan Payment Holiday

You can initiate a loan payment holiday for the loan account using the **Loan Payment Holiday** screen.

A repayment holiday is when the you allow the customer to take a break or holiday from the monthly principal repayments or EMI, thereby helping the customer to sort out any financial difficulties that the customer may be having.

This topic contains the following subtopics:

- Navigating and Fetching Account The steps to navigate and fetch the account number is covered in this topic.
- Applying Repayment Holiday for Upcoming Payments You can select the installments from your next six installments displayed, for which repayment holiday is to be applied.
- Applying Repayment Holiday for a Date Range You can select the from and to date, based on which the repayment holiday will be applied to the schedules in these date range.
- Applying Repayment Holiday for Other Period You can select a reason to apply repayment holiday to the schedules.
- Viewing and Managing Fees You can view and manage the fees applied on the account.



#### Viewing Revised Schedule

You can view the revised schedule details based on the actions performed on the **Payment Holiday Details** tab.

# 6.1.1 Navigating and Fetching Account

The steps to navigate and fetch the account number is covered in this topic.

To navigate and fetch account number:



 On the Homepage, from Loan Service mega menu, under Schedule, click Loan Payment Holiday. You can also open the screen by specifying Loan Payment Holiday in the search icon bar and selecting the screen.

The Loan Payment Holiday screen is displayed.

#### Figure 6-1 Loan Payment Holiday

Loan Payment Hol	day	Remarks J L X
Payment Holiday Details	Payment Holiday Details	Screen(1/2
Revised Schedule	Account Number Q Required	
Audit		Cancel Save & Close Next

2. On the Loan Payment Holiday screen, click the icon or specify the account number in the Account Number field, and press Tab or Enter. For more information on search, refer Fetch Account Number.

The related fields are displayed in the Payment Holiday Details tab



Loan Payment Ho	liday				Remarks	×
Payment Holiday Details	Payment Holiday	Details			Scre	en(1/2)
Revised Schedule	Account Number 000	DAMRV180890003 Q RONY TH	HOMAS			
	Value Date	March 30, 2018				
	Period	Upcoming Payment	Date Range	Others		
	Skip Only Principal					
	Total Fees	27.00 View Details/Modify				
	Waive Fees					

Figure 6-2 Payment Holiday Details tab

# 6.1.2 Applying Repayment Holiday for Upcoming Payments

You can select the installments from your next six installments displayed, for which repayment holiday is to be applied.

#### To apply repayment holiday for upcoming payments:

- 1. Navigate to the screen and fetch the account. For more information, refer Navigating and Fetching Account.
- 2. From the **Period** field, select the **Upcoming Payment** option.

The fields related to upcoming payment are displayed.

yment Holiday Details	Payment Holiday	Details					Screen(1/2)
evised Schedule	Account Number 000	DAMRV18	80890003 Q R	ONY THOMAS			
	Value Date	Mar	rch 30, 2018 🔛				
	Period	L	Jpcoming Payment	Date Rang		Others	
	Upcoming Payments	All am	ounts in GBP				
			Date	Due			
			May 21, 2018	1,142.13			
			June 21, 2018	1,142.13			
			July 21, 2018	1,142.13			
			September 21, 2018	1,142.13			
			October 21, 2018	1,142.13			
	Skip Only Principal	C					
	Interest Treatment		Pay	Waive	Capital	ize	
	Total Fees	27.0	0 View Details/Modif	fy			
	Waive Fees						

Figure 6-3 Upcoming Payment



3. On the Loan Payment Holiday screen, perform the action for applying the repayment holiday for upcoming payments. For more information on fields, refer to field description table below:

Field	Description
Account Number	Click the <i>concerned and select the account number or specify the account number for defining payment holiday.</i>
	Note: As you specify the account number, the name of the account holder appears next to the account number.
Value Date	Select or specify the value date for performing the transaction.
	Note: By default, the system displays the current date. If required, you can specify a future date. A back date is allowed only if no financial event has happened on the holiday period.
Period	Select the Upcoming Payments option.
	Note: For more information on Date Range option, refer Applying Repayment Holiday for a Date Range. For more information on Other option, refer Applying Repayment Holiday for Other Period.
Upcoming Payments	Displays the repayment amount due amount date wise. The details are displayed in the <b>Date</b> and <b>Due</b> fields accordingly.
	Note: You need to select payments to applying the repayment holiday.

 Table 6-1
 Upcoming Payments – Field Description

Field	Description
Skip Only Principal	Switch to for repaying the interest part only that is, the principal schedule will be excluded during the repayment holiday period.
	Note: Principal schedule is amortized for the remaining period or for the tenor of the loan. For simple loans (Bearing Loans), the principal is recalculated for the remaining schedules.
	Switch to for including the principal and interest during the repayment holiday period.
	Note: Outstanding Principal is amortized for the remaining period or for the tenor of the Ioan. For Simple Loans (Bearing Loans), the interest schedules for the period is also skipped.
Interest Treatment	<ul> <li>Select the appropriate option for treating the interest. The options are:</li> <li>Pay</li> <li>Waive</li> <li>Capitalise</li> </ul>
	Note: This field is displayed, if you switch to from the Skip Only Principal field.
Total Fees	Displays the fee amount along with currency charged on the loan account.
	Note: To view the fee details or modify the fees, click the View Details/Modify link displayed next to this field. For more information, refer Viewing and Manage Fees.

### Table 6-1 (Cont.) Upcoming Payments – Field Description



### Table 6-1 (Cont.) Upcoming Payments – Field Description

Field	Description	
Waive Fees	Switch to <b>I</b> to waive the fees applied on the account.	
	Switch to I to retain the fees applied on the account.	

4. Click Next.

Note:
On click <b>Next</b> , the system displays an error message if:
Holiday interest formula is not maintained.
<ul> <li>Number of payments selected is not within the maximum Interest</li> <li>Only Period maintained at the product level. This validation is</li> </ul>
applicable only if <b>Skip Only Principal</b> is switched to
Selected schedules is not of continuous period.
Final schedule is on the holiday period.
Any selected schedule is partially or fully paid.
No schedules exists of the loan account.

The Revised Schedule tab is displayed.

5. Click Submit.

The screen is successfully submitted for authorization.

# 6.1.3 Applying Repayment Holiday for a Date Range

You can select the from and to date, based on which the repayment holiday will be applied to the schedules in these date range.

### To apply repayment holiday for a date range:

- **1.** Navigate to the screen and fetch the account. For more information, refer Navigating and Fetching Account.
- 2. From the **Period** field, select the **Date Range** option.

The fields related to date range are displayed.



Loan Payment Ho	liday		Remarks 7 ×
Payment Holiday Details	Payment Holiday	Details	Screen(1/2
Revised Schedule	Account Number 00	AMRV180890003 Q RONY THOMAS	
	Value Date	March 30, 2018 🛗	
	Period	Upcoming Payment Date Range Oth	hers
	Date Range	February 1, 2019 🛗 <sup>To</sup> February 7, 2019 🛗	
	Skip Only Principal		
	Interest Treatment	Pay Waive Capitalize	
	Total Fees	27.00 View Details/Modify	
	Walve Fees		
			Cancel Save & Close Next

### Figure 6-4 Date Range

3. On the Loan Payment Holiday screen, perform the action for applying the repayment holiday for a date range. For more information on fields, refer to field description table below:

Table 6-2 Date Range – Field Description

Field	Description	
Account Number	Click the <i>concerned concerned in the select the account number or specify the account number for for defining payment holiday.</i>	
	Note: As you specify the account number, the name of the account holder appears next to the account number.	
Value Date	Select or specify the value date for performing the transaction.	
	Note: By default, the system displays the current date. If required, you can specify a future date. A back date is allowed only if no financial event has happened on the holiday period.	


Field	Description
Period	Select the <b>Date Range</b> option.
	<ul> <li>Note:</li> <li>For more information on Upcoming Payments option, refer Applying Repayment Holiday for Upcoming Payments.</li> <li>For more information on Other option, refer Applying Repayment Holiday for Other Period.</li> </ul>
Date Range	Select or specify the from and <b>To</b> date for which holiday period is to be applied.
	Note: You need to specify a date equal or lesser than Value Date in the To field.
Skip Only Principal	Switch to repaying the interest part only that is, the principal schedule will be excluded during the repayment holiday period.
	Note: Principal schedule is amortized for the remaining period or for the tenor of the loan. For simple loans (Bearing Loans), the principal is recalculated for the remaining schedules.
	Switch to for including the principal and interest during the repayment holiday period.
	Note: Outstanding Principal is amortized for the remaining period or for the tenor of the loan. For Simple Loans (Bearing Loans), the interest schedules for the period is also skipped.

# Table 6-2 (Cont.) Date Range – Field Description



Field	Description
Interest Treatment	<ul> <li>Select the appropriate option for treating the interest. The options are:</li> <li>Pay</li> <li>Waive</li> <li>Capitalise</li> </ul>
	Note: This field is displayed, if you switch to from the Skip Only Principal field.
Total Fees	Displays the fee amount along with currency charged on the loan account.
	Note: To view the fee details or modify the fees, click the View Details/Modify link displayed next to this field. For more information, refer Viewing and Manage Fees.
Weive Fees	Switch to Waive the fees applied on the appount
vvalve rees	Switch to to waive the tees applied on the account.
	Switch to to retain the fees applied on the account.

## Table 6-2 (Cont.) Date Range – Field Description

4. Click Next.

NC	DTE:
Or	n click <b>Next</b> , the system displays an error message if:
•	Holiday interest formula is not maintained.
•	Specified date range is not within the maximum <b>Interest Only Period</b> at the product level. This validation is applicable only if <b>Skip Only Principal</b> is switched to
•	Final schedule is on the holiday period.
•	Any selected schedule is partially or fully paid.
•	Holiday period is already set for the schedules.
•	No schedules exists of the loan account

The **Revised** Schedule tab is displayed.

5. Click Submit.



The screen is successfully submitted for authorization.

# 6.1.4 Applying Repayment Holiday for Other Period

You can select a reason to apply repayment holiday to the schedules.

## To apply repayment holiday for other period:

- 1. Navigate to the screen and fetch the account. For more information, refer Navigating and Fetching Account.
- 2. From the **Period** field, select the **Other** option.

The fields related to date range are displayed.

## Figure 6-5 Others

Loan Payment Hol	iday					Remarks	;; ×
Payment Holiday Details	Payment Holiday	Details					Screen(1/2
Revised Schedule	Account Number 000	DAMRV180890003 Q R	ONY THOMAS				
	Value Date	March 30, 2018					
	Period	Upcoming Payment	Date Range	Others	HOL_PERD3 - 1-Apr-2018 t	•	
	Date Range	2018-04-01 To 2018-05	-02				
	Skip Only Principal						
	Interest Treatment	Pay	Waive	Capitalize			
	Total Fees	27.00 View Details/Mod	fy				
	Waive Fees						

3. On the Loan Payment Holiday screen, perform the action for applying the repayment holiday for other period. For more information on fields, refer to field description table below:

 Table 6-3
 Others – Field Description

Field	Description
Account Number	Click the con and select the account number or specify the account number for defining payment holiday.
	Note: As you specify the account number, the name of the account holder appears next to the account number.



Field	Description
Value Date	Select or specify the value date for performing the transaction.
	Note: By default, the system displays the current date. If required, you can specify a future date. A back date is allowed only if no financial event has happened on the holiday period.
Period	Select the <b>Other</b> option.
	<ul> <li>Note:</li> <li>As you select the Other option, you need to select an appropriate option from the list displayed adjacent to the field.</li> <li>For more information on Upcoming Payments option, refer Applying Repayment Holiday for Upcoming Payments.</li> <li>For more information on Date Range option, refer Applying Repayment Holiday for a Date Range.</li> </ul>
Skip Only Principal	Switch to repaying the interest part only that is, the principal schedule will be excluded during the repayment holiday period.
	Note: Principal schedule is amortized for the remaining period or for the tenor of the Ioan. For simple Ioans (Bearing Loans), the principal is recalculated for the remaining schedules. Switch to for including the principal and interest during the repayment holiday period
	Note: Outstanding Principal is amortized for the remaining period or for the tenor of the Ioan. For Simple Loans (Bearing Loans), the interest schedules for the period is also skipped.

# Table 6-3 (Cont.) Others – Field Description



Field	Description
Interest Treatment	<ul> <li>Select the appropriate option for treating the interest. The options are:</li> <li>Pay</li> <li>Waive</li> <li>Capitalise</li> </ul>
	Note: This field is displayed, if you switch to from the Skip Only Principal field.
Total Fees	Displays the fee amount along with currency charged on the loan account.
	Note: To view the fee details or modify the fees, click the View Details/Modify link displayed next to this field. For more information, refer Viewing and Manage Fees.
Waive Fees	Switch to <b>u</b> to waive the fees applied on the account.
	Switch to the retain the fees applied on the account.

Table 6-3 (Cont.) Others – Field Description

4. Click Next.

## Note:

On click **Next**, the system displays an error message:

- Holiday interest formula is not maintained.
- Holiday period is not within the maximum **Interest Only Period** maintained at the product level. This validation is applicable only if

# Skip Only Principal is switched to

- Final schedule is on the holiday period.
- Any selected schedule is partially or fully paid.
- Holiday period is already set for the schedules.
- No schedules exists of the loan account.

The **Revised Schedule** tab is displayed.



## 5. Click Submit.

The screen is successfully submitted for authorization.

# 6.1.5 Viewing and Managing Fees

You can view and manage the fees applied on the account.

#### To view or manage fees:

- 1. Navigate to the screen and fetch the account. For more information, refer Navigating and Fetching Account.
- From the Period field, select the Upcoming Payment, Date Range, or Others option. The fields based on the Period option selected are displayed.



The Total Fees and Waive Fees fields are displayed for all the Period option.

3. From the **Total Fees** field, click the **View Details/Modify** link.

The Manage Fees section is displayed.

Figure 6-6	Manage	Fees
------------	--------	------

Manage Fees		
Charge Details	Defaulted Amount	Modified Amount
HANDLNG_CHG	31.00	31.00
Total		31.00
		Cancel

**4.** You can view the fees details or modify the fees charged. For more information on fields, refer to field description table below:

Table 6-4 Manage Fees – Field Descriptio	Table 6-4	Manage Fees –	<b>Field Description</b>
--	-----------	---------------	--------------------------

Field	Description
Charge Details	Displays the details of the charge applied on the account.
Defaulted Amount	Displays the defaulted fees amount on the account.



Field	Description
Modified Amount	Displays the latest fees amount.
	Note: You can edit the amount by clicking the field and specifying the amount.

Table 6-4 (Cont.) Manage Fees – Field Description

5. Click OK.

The Manage Fees section is closed.

# 6.1.6 Viewing Revised Schedule

You can view the revised schedule details based on the actions performed on the **Payment Holiday Details** tab.

The revised schedule details are displayed year wise. To view schedule details for a

particular year, you need to click the <sup>1</sup> icon.

#### To view revised schedule details:

- 1. Navigate to the screen and fetch the account. For more information, refer Navigating and Fetching Account.
- 2. In the **Payment Holiday Details** tab, perform the required action for applying the repayment holiday. For more information, refer Applying Repayment Holiday for Upcoming Payments, Applying Repayment Holiday for a Date Range, and Applying Repayment Holiday for Other Period.
- 3. Click Next.

The **Revised Schedule** tab is displayed.

Loan Payment Holiday							Remarks	;; ×			
O Payment Holiday Details	Revised Schedu	le									Screen(2/
Revised Schedule	Account Number 00	0AMRV18089000	3 RONY TH	OMAS							
						All am	ounts in GBP				
	Date	Rate	Principal	Interest	Fee	Due	Balance				
	EPI - Fixed ( March	7, 2018 to Februa	ry 21, 2019 )								
	▶ 2018	7.00	6,138.95	606.97	0.00	6,745.92	12,000.00				
	▶ 2019	7.00	6,861.05	75.03	0.00	6,936.08	6,861.05				
								Cancel	Back Save &	Close	Submit

Figure 6-7 Revised Schedule

4. You can view the revised schedule for amortized or non-amortized accounts. For more information on fields, refer to field description table below:



Field	Description			
Date	Displays the year and the dates in a year when the arrear is raised. This column lists the years for which the schedule is generated. If you click the icon corresponding to a particular year, the monthly date schedule list for a year displays.			
Rate	Displays the rate of interest.			
Principal	Displays the amount of principal arrears.			
Interest	Displays the amount of interest.			
Fees	Displays the amount of fees.			
Due	Displays the amount due.			
Balance	Displays the balance amount after every installment.			

#### Table 6-5 Revised Schedule - Field Description

5. Click Submit.

The screen is successfully submitted for authorization.

# 6.2 Loan Renegotiation

You can simulate the transaction and check if the result of the simulation fulfills the borrower's requirement using the **Loan Renegotiation** screen. It also provides flexibility to simulate various options and perform single variation event or combination of variation events.

This topic contains the following subtopics:

Navigating and Fetching Account

The steps to navigate and fetch the account number is covered in this topic.

• Modifying Loan Details

The **Modify Loan** tab displays the values as maintained in the host. Here, you can update the values based on the minimum and maximum range based on the parameter maintained in the host.

Treating Outstanding

You can allocate the arrears on the loan account. The **Treat Outstanding** section displays the outstanding arrears component wise. Here, you can pay, capitalize, or waive the arrears.

Modifying Schedule Details

You can view the upcoming schedules. If there is any change in the term, the system will fetch and display the schedule structure until maturity considering the term change. You can also add new or edit existing structure or interest rate revision details.

Modifying Rollover Details

You can view the re-draw of schedules considering the rolling over of the loan to new loan schedule starting from current value date until to maturity.

- Modifying Interest or Fees
   You can view the interest and fees components configured for the loan account. You can
   also add new or edit existing interest or fees detail.
- Viewing Simulation Details

Based on your actions performed on Value Date, Sanctioned, Term, and Current Installment fields from the Modify Loan tab, the system updates and displays the value on the right widget.



- Viewing Revised Schedule You can view the revised schedule details based on the actions performed on the Modify Loan tab.
- Viewing Fee Charged You can view the fees charged on the account.

# 6.2.1 Navigating and Fetching Account

The steps to navigate and fetch the account number is covered in this topic.

## To navigate and fetch account number:



1. On the Homepage, from Loan Service mega menu, under Schedule, click Loan Renegotiation. You can also open the screen by specifying Loan Renegotiation in the search icon bar and selecting the screen.

The Loan Renegotiation screen is displayed.

# Loan Renegotiation Initiation Remarks Documents \*\*\* × Modify Loan Schedule Account Number Q Fees Reparted Reparted

### Figure 6-8 Loan Renegotiation

2. On the Loan Renegotiation screen, click the icon or specify the account number in the Account Number field, and press **Tab** or **Enter**. For more information on search, refer Fetch Account Number.

The details in the **Modify Loan** tab and the stimulation details on the right widget are displayed.



Modify Loan	Modify Loan						Screen(1/3
Schedule		N24 D57100000250					
Fees		INZAB35160690259	KONTINOMAS				All amounts in GBP
				Reset			
	Value Date	March 30, 2018	<b></b>		Principal	Existing 32,750.00	
	Sanctioned	0		32,750.00	Interest	6,451.03	
		32,750.00	163,750.00		Fees	0.00	
	Maturity Date	December 30, 2021	i		Total	39,201.03	
	Current Installment	-0		829.47	Arrears	1,045.29	
		0.00	4,147.35		Outstanding	32,962.40	
	Treat	Modify	Rollover	Modify	Sanctioned	32,750.00	
	Outstanding	Schedule		Interest/Fee	Current Install	lment 829.47	
					Current Interest Rate		Maturity Date

Figure 6-9 Existing Loan Details

# 6.2.2 Modifying Loan Details

The **Modify Loan** tab displays the values as maintained in the host. Here, you can update the values based on the minimum and maximum range based on the parameter maintained in the host.

You can update the values by moving the slider or specifying the value. If you update by moving the slider, then the system updates the **Loan Amount**, **Term**, and **Current Installment** values. If you specify the value, then the system adjusts the slider of the **Loan Amount**, **Term**, and **Current Installment** fields accordingly.

Based on your actions, the values are updated and displayed in the right widget. For more information, refer Viewing Stimulation Details.

### To modify the loan details:

1. Navigate to the screen and fetch the account. For more information, refer Navigating and Fetching Account.



Modify Loan	Modify Loan						Screen(
Schedule							
Fees	Account Number	V2ABS3180890259	C RONY THOMAS				All amounts in C
				Res	et	Existing	Nev
	Value Date	March 30, 2018	i		Principal	32,750.00	
	Sanctioned	0		32,750.00	Interest	6,451.03	3,536.55
		32,750.00	163,750.00		Fees	0.00	
	Maturity Date	December 30, 2021	Ē		Total	39,201.03	36,286.55
	Current Installment	-0		1,389.89	Arrears	1,045.29	
		0.00	6,949.45		Outstanding	32,962.40	32,767.50
	Treat	Modify	Rollover	Modify	Sanctioned	32,750.00	
	Outstanding	Schedule	Renover	Interest/Fee	Current Insta	llment 829.47	1,389.89
					Current Interest Rate		Maturity Date
					FIXED - 9.75%		December 30, 202

Figure 6-10 Modify Loan tab

2. On the Loan Renegotiation Initiation screen, view or modify the values. Based on your action, view the amount stimulated and perform the required actions. For more information on fields, refer to field description table below:

Table 6-6	Modify Loan	Details –	Field	Description
-----------	-------------	-----------	-------	-------------

Field	Description				
Account Number	Click the con and select the account number or specify the account number for modifying the loan details.				
	Note: As you specify the account number, the name of the account holder appears next to the account number.				
Value Date	Select or specify the value date of the transaction.				

Field	Description
Sanctioned Amount	Specify the loan amount for performing the renegotiation. You can increase or decrease the amount by dragging the slider to right or left. If you have specified the amount, then accordingly the slider is adjusted automatically.
	<ul> <li>Note:</li> <li>Only if there is available balance in the facility sanctioned, you can increase the loan amount.</li> <li>You can decrease the loan amount only to the extent of disbursed loan amount.</li> <li>In case the loan is fully disbursed, then no loan decrease will be allowed.</li> <li>You cannot increase or decrease the loan amount, if the account is in IOI, IOA, MOR, or P&amp;I stage.</li> <li>The loan amount cannot be 0 and also exceed 5 times more than the current loan amount.</li> <li>If the loan account which has reached the maturity date and still the loan account status is active due to arrears, then this field is not enabled.</li> </ul>
Maturity Date	Specify the maturity date of the loan account.
	<ul> <li>You can select a maturity date equal or greater than the current system date.</li> <li>You can select a maturity date equal or less than the Max Tenor defined for the Product (of the Selected Loan Account) at the Host.</li> </ul>
Current Installment	Specify the loan installment amount as per current schedule.
	<ul> <li>You can specify the minimum and maximum installment within the specified amount range.</li> <li>If the loan account which has reached the maturity date and still the loan account status is active due to arrears, then this field is not enabled.</li> </ul>

• In the **Modify Loan** tab, you can also modify the following loan details:



- a. Treat Outstanding: For more information, refer Treating Outstanding.
- **b.** Modify Schedule: For more information, refer Modifying Schedule Details.
- c. Rollover: For more information, refer Modifying Rollover Details.
- d. Modify Interest/Fee: For more information, refer Modifying Interest or Fees.
- 3. Click Next.

The **Schedule** tab is displayed.

Note:

If you click **Next**, without doing any changes in the **Modify Loan** tab, the system displays an error message that you need to do atleast one mandatory change.

4. Click Next.

The Fees tab is displayed.

5. Click Submit.

The screen is successfully submitted for authorization.

# 6.2.3 Treating Outstanding

You can allocate the arrears on the loan account. The **Treat Outstanding** section displays the outstanding arrears component wise. Here, you can pay, capitalize, or waive the arrears.

#### To treat the outstanding:

- 1. Navigate to the screen and fetch the account. For more information, refer Navigating and Fetching Account.
- 2. Click the Treat Outstanding link.

The Treat Outstanding section is displayed.

Loan Renegot	iation				Remarks
Modify Loan	Modify Loan				Screen(1/3
Schedule	Account Number 000AM	R5180890005 Q John Gilb	ert Ben		
Fees					All amounts in GBP
	Treat Outstanding				
	Component	Outstanding	Pay	Capitalize	Waive
	Interest	1,109.36	1,000	109.36	0
	Interest Penalty	4.72			
	Principal Penalty	96.12			
	Principal	100,000			
					Cancel Ok
Audit				Cancel	Save & Close Next

### Figure 6-11 Treat Outstanding



**3.** You can specify the amounts in the appropriate fields. For more information on fields, refer to field description table below:

Field	Description	
Components Displays the components of the outstanding.		
Outstanding	Displays the outstanding amount component wise.	
Pay	Specify the amount to be payed.	
Capitalize	Specify the amount to be capitalized.	
Waive	Specify the amount to be waived.	

## Table 6-7 Treat Outstanding – Field Description

4. Click OK.

# 6.2.4 Modifying Schedule Details

You can view the upcoming schedules. If there is any change in the term, the system will fetch and display the schedule structure until maturity considering the term change. You can also add new or edit existing structure or interest rate revision details.

# Note:

- The system will not display the schedules that are already elapsed.
- If the loan account which has reached the maturity date and still the loan account status is active due to arrears, then this field is not enabled.

### To modify the schedule details:

- 1. Navigate to the screen and fetch the account. For more information, refer Navigating and Fetching Account.
- 2. Click the Modify Schedule link.

# Note:

The **Modify Schedule** link will not be enabled, if you have performed any action on the **Rollover** section and committed the changes.

The Modify Schedule section is displayed.



Loan Renegotiatio	n									Remarks	Do	cuments	)::×
• Modify Loan	Modify Loan												Screen(1/3
Schedule	Account Number	LN2AB53180890259 Q	RONY THOM	AS									
• Fees											///////////////////////////////////////	All amou	nts in GBP
	Modify Schedu	le											
	Structure												+
	First Due Date 🗘	Stage	Component		No. of Schedules	Frequ	ency		Amount	Treatment			
	April 7, 2018	Equated Principal Insta	MAIN_IN	⊤ ▼	45	Mor	nthly	Ŧ		Select	Ŧ	P	1
	December 30, 202	21 Equated Principal Insta	MAIN_IN	т •	1	Bulle	et	Ŧ	829.59	Select	Ŧ	P	1
	Interest Rate Re	vision											+
	Revision Date 0	Component		No. of Sc	hedules		Frequenc	y					
	May 3, 2023	MAIN_INT	Ŧ	2			Monthl	y			•		<b>1</b>
												Cancel	Ok
										Cancel	Save	& Close	Next

## Figure 6-12 Modify Schedule

Note:

By default, the existing schedule details are displayed in the **Structure** and **Interest Rate Revision** section.

3. From the **Structure** or **Interest Rate Revision** section, click the icon from the **Action** field. For more information on fields, refer to field description table below:

Table 6-8	Modify Schedule	- Field Description
-----------	-----------------	---------------------

Field	Description				
Structure	This section displays the schedule structure.				
First Due Date	Specify the due date on which the schedule installment is due.				
Stage	<ul> <li>Select the applicable loan stage. For amortized loan account, the following are the options:</li> <li>Equated Principal Installment</li> <li>Interest Only Installment</li> <li>Moratorium</li> <li>For non amortized loan account, the following are the options:</li> <li>Interest and Principal Installment</li> <li>Interest Only Installment</li> </ul>				
	Moratorium				

Field	Description
Component	Select the loan component.
	Note: This field is not editable if you select the Equated Principal Installment option from the Stage field.
No. of Schedules	Specify the number of schedules for the repayment stage.
Frequency	Select the frequency of installment payment. The options are: <ul> <li>Monthly</li> <li>Quarterly</li> <li>Half Yearly</li> <li>Yearly</li> </ul>
Amount	Specify the installment amount to be paid.
Treatment	Select the schedule treatment. The options are: • Capitalize • Waive
<action></action>	<ul> <li>Displays the actions you can perform on the structure details. The following icons are displayed:</li> <li>You can click this icon, to edit the details in a row.</li> <li>: You can click this icon, to delete the row.</li> <li>: You can click this icon, to confirm the details added in the row.</li> </ul>
Interest Rate Revision	This section the revision schedule for interest rates.
Revision Date	Select or specify the date on which the revised interest rate is applied for the account.
Component	Select the loan component on which revised interest rate is applicable.
No. of Schedules	Specify the number of schedules for which revised interest rate is applicable.
Frequency	<ul> <li>Select the frequency of rate revision. The options are:</li> <li>Monthly</li> <li>Quarterly</li> <li>Half Yearly</li> <li>Yearly</li> </ul>
<action></action>	Displays the actions you can perform on the structure details. The following icons are displayed:
	• You can click this icon, to delete the row.
	• You can click this icon, to confirm the details added in the row.

Table 6-8	(Cont.) Mod	ifv Schedule -	Field Descri	ption



- You can add new row by following the steps below:
  - a. From the **Structure** or **Interest Rate Revision** section, click the icon.
  - **b.** Select or specify the details as required.
  - c. From the Action field, click the  $\square$  icon.

The details are added successfully.

4. Click OK.

# 6.2.5 Modifying Rollover Details

You can view the re-draw of schedules considering the rolling over of the loan to new loan schedule starting from current value date until to maturity.

If there is any change in the term, the system will fetch and display the schedule structure until maturity considering the term change. You can also add new or edit existing structure or interest rate revision details.

## Note:

You will not be allowed to perform the rollover on the loan account, if:

- Rollover is not set at the account level.
- You have breached the maximum number of allowed rollovers.

### To modify the rollover details:

- 1. Navigate to the screen and fetch the account. For more information, refer Navigating and Fetching Account.
- 2. Click the Rollover link.

# Note:

The **Rollover** link will not be enabled, if you have performed any action on the **Modify Schedule** section and committed the changes.

The Rollover section is displayed.



Loan Renegotia	ation								Remarks	Doc	uments	:: ×
• Modify Loan	Modify Loan										9	icreen(1/3
Schedule	Account Number	N2AB53180890259 Q	RONY THOM	AS								
Fees										A	All amour	nts in GBP
	Rollover											
	Structure											+
	First Due 🗘 Date 🗘	Stage	Component		No. of Schedules	Frequenc	cy	Amount	Treatment			
	April 1, 2018	Equated Principal Inst: 👻	MAIN_INT	•	1	Month	ly -		Select	Ŧ	P	₫
	May 7, 2018	Equated Principal Insta	MAIN_INT	•	45	Month	ly -		Select	v	P	Ū
	January 24, 2022	Equated Principal Inst; 👻	MAIN_INT	•	1	Bullet	Ŧ	829.59	Select	v	P	
	Interest Rate Rev	ision										+
	Revision Date 🗘	Component		No. of S	Schedules		Frequency					
	May 10, 2023	MAIN_INT	Ŧ	2			Monthly			-	1 t	đ
											Cancel	Ok

Figure 6-13 Rollover

Note:

By default, the existing schedule details are displayed in the **Structure** and **Interest Rate Revision** section.

3. From the **Structure** or **Interest Rate Revision** section, click the *i*con from the **Action** field. For more information on fields, refer to field description table below:

Table 6-9	Rollover –	Field	Description
-----------	------------	-------	-------------

Field	Description				
Structure	This section displays the schedule structure.				
First Due Date	Specify the due date on which the schedule installment is due.				
Stage	Select the applicable loan stage. For amortized loan account, the following are the options: Equated Principal Installment Interest Only Installment Moratorium For non amortized loan account, the following are the options: Interest and Principal Installment Moratorium				



Field	Description
Component	Select the loan component.
	Note: This field is not editable if you select the Equated Principal Installment option from the Stage field.
No. of Schedules	Specify the number of schedules for the repayment stage.
Frequency	Select the frequency of installment payment. The options are: <ul> <li>Monthly</li> <li>Quarterly</li> <li>Half Yearly</li> <li>Yearly</li> </ul>
Amount	Specify the installment amount to be paid.
Treatment	Select the schedule treatment. The options are: <ul> <li>Capitalize</li> <li>Waive</li> </ul>
<action></action>	<ul> <li>Displays the actions you can perform on the structure details. The following icons are displayed:</li> <li>You can click this icon, to edit the details in a row.</li> <li>: You can click this icon, to delete the row.</li> <li>: You can click this icon, to confirm the details added in the row.</li> </ul>
Interest Rate Revision	This section the revision schedule for interest rates.
Revision Date	Select or specify the date on which the revised interest rate is applied for the account.
Component	Select the loan component on which revised interest rate is applicable.
No. of Schedules	Specify the number of schedules for which revised interest rate is applicable.
Frequency	<ul> <li>Select the frequency of rate revision. The options are:</li> <li>Monthly</li> <li>Quarterly</li> <li>Half Yearly</li> <li>Yearly</li> </ul>
<pre><action></action></pre>	<ul> <li>Displays the actions you can perform on the structure details. The following icons are displayed:</li> <li>You can click this icon, to edit the details in a row.</li> <li>: You can click this icon, to delete the row.</li> <li>: You can click this icon, to confirm the details added in the row.</li> </ul>

Table 6-9	(Cont.)	) Rollover -	- Field	Descriptio	n



- You can add new row by following the steps below:
  - From the Structure or Interest Rate Revision section, click the icon. a.
  - Select or specify the details as required. b.
  - c. From the Action field, click the  $\square$  icon.

The details are added successfully.

4. Click OK.

# 6.2.6 Modifying Interest or Fees

You can view the interest and fees components configured for the loan account. You can also add new or edit existing interest or fees detail.

#### To modify the interest or fees detail:

- 1. Navigate to the screen and fetch the account. For more information, refer Navigating and Fetching Account.
- 2. Click the Modify Interest/Fees link.

The Modify Interest/Fees section is displayed.

Loan Renegoti	ation					Remarks	Documents
Modify Loan	Modify Loan						Screen(1/3)
Schedule	Account Number	LN2AB53180890259	Q. RONY THOM	IAS			
Fees							All amounts in GBP
	Modify Intere	st/Fee					
							+
	Effective Date	Component	Rate Type	Rate Code	Code Usage	Final Value	Action
	March 5, 2018	Collection interest rate	Fixed			0%	1
	March 5, 2018	Handling Charge				0	1
	March 5, 2018	Interest Rate	Fixed			9.75%	1
	March 5, 2018	Maximum Processing				0	1
	March 5, 2018	Processing interest ra	Fixed			0%	1
	March 5, 2018	Overdue Penalty Rate	Fixed			0%	1
							Cancel Ok
						Cancel	Save & Close Next

#### Figure 6-14 Modify Interest/Fee

### Note:

By default, the existing interest or fees details of the account is displayed.

3. From the **Modify Interest/Fees** section, click the *icon* from the **Action** field.



Х

The Modify Interest/Fees section is displayed.

est/Fees - Edit

Modify Interest/F	ees			
Effective Date	March 5, 20	018	i	
Component	Service Ta	ax Rate	~	
Rate Type	Fixed	Variable		
Rate Code	Floating rate 🔹			
Code Usage	Automatio	Periodic		
Value	0			
Variance	200			
Final Value	200			



4. You can maintain the details in this section as required. For more information on fields, refer to field description table below:

## Table 6-10 Modify Interest/Fees – Edit - Field Description

Field	Description
Effective Date	Select or specify the effective date of the component value.
	Note: You cannot specify the date less than the date specified in the Value Date field in the Modify Loan tab.



Field	Description			
Component	<ul> <li>Displays the loan component.</li> <li>Note: <ul> <li>The component user defined element is of following type:</li> <li>Rate</li> <li>Rate</li> <li>Rate Code</li> <li>Number</li> </ul> </li> </ul>			
Rate Type	<ul> <li>Select the rate type associated for the component. The options are:</li> <li>Fixed</li> <li>Variable</li> <li>Note: <ul> <li>This field is displayed if:</li> <li>The Component User Defined Element type is Rate or Rate Code, and you have select the Fixed option from the Rate Type field.</li> <li>The Component User Defined Element type is Rate or Rate Code, and you have select the Fixed option from the Rate Type field.</li> <li>The Component User Defined Element type is Rate or Rate Code, and you have selected the Variable option from the Rate Type field.</li> </ul> </li> </ul>			
Rate Code	Select the rate code associated for the component.  Note:  This field is displayed if, the Component User Defined Element type is Rate or Rate Code, and you have selected the Variable option from the Rate Type field.			

# Table 6-10 (Cont.) Modify Interest/Fees – Edit - Field Description



Field	Description				
Code Usage	<ul> <li>Select the code usage for the component. The options are:</li> <li>Automatic</li> <li>Periodic</li> </ul>				
	Note: This field is displayed if, the Component User Defined Element type is Rate or Rate Code, and you have selected the Variable option from the Rate Type field.				
Value	Specify the value for the loan account.				
	<ul> <li>Note:</li> <li>This field is displayed after you click the icon from the Action field, only if the Component User Defined Element type is Rate or Rate Code, and you have select the Fixed option from the Rate Type field.</li> <li>By default, this field displays a value and it is not editable if Component User Defined Element type is Rate or Rate Code, and you have select the Variable option from the Rate Type field.</li> <li>By default, this field displays a value and it is not editable if Component User Defined Element type is Rate or Rate Code, and you have select the Variable option from the Rate Type field.</li> <li>By default, this field displays a value and currency, and it is not editable if Component User Defined Element type is Number.</li> </ul>				
Variance	Specify the variance for the loan account.				
	Note: This field is displayed after you click the from the Action field, only if the Component User Defined Element type is Rate or Rate Code, and you have selected the Variable option from the Rate Type field.				

# Table 6-10 (Cont.) Modify Interest/Fees – Edit - Field Description



Field	Description			
Final Value	<ul> <li>Displays the final amount.</li> <li>Note: <ul> <li>The sum of the amount you entered in the Value and Variance field is displayed in this field.</li> <li>This field is displayed if, the Component User Defined Element type is Rate or Rate Code, and you have selected the Variable option from the Rate Type field.</li> </ul> </li> </ul>			
Action	<ul> <li>Displays the actions you can perform on the structure details. The following icons are displayed:</li> <li>You can click this icon, to edit the details in a row.</li> <li>You can click this icon, to delete the row.</li> </ul>			

Table 6-10 (Cont.) Modify Interest/Fees – Edit - Field Description

- You can add a new row by following the steps below:
  - a. From the Modify Interest/Fess section, click the + icon.

The Add Interest/Fees section is displayed.



Effective Date	March 30, 2018	Ē
Component	Interest Rate	•
Rate Type	Fixed Variable	
Rate Code	GBP Rate	•
Code Usage	Automatic Periodic	
Value	0	
Variance	20	
Final Value	20	

Cancel Ok

For field description, refer Modify Interest/Fees – Edit - Field Description.

b. Select or specify the details as required.

Figure 6-16 Add Interest and Fees

c. Click OK.

The details are added successfully.

• You can also delete a entry from the **Modify Interest/Fees** section, by clicking

the  $\blacksquare$  icon, from the **Action** field.

5. Click OK.

# 6.2.7 Viewing Simulation Details

Based on your actions performed on Value Date, Sanctioned, Term, and Current Installment fields from the Modify Loan tab, the system updates and displays the value on the right widget.

If there is an increase in the value compared to earlier value, then the <sup>1</sup> icon is displayed next to the field. If there is a decrease in the value compared to earlier

value, then the  $\checkmark$  icon is displayed. Also for quick reference, the fields having a new or updated value is highlighted with a different color compared to the values that are not changed. A Pie Chart representing the Principal, Interest, and Fees values also appears for a graphical representation. Each time you move the slider or specify the value, the amount and terms are recomputed and displayed. Here, accordingly you



can decide whether the new amounts and term can meet your requirements and take appropriate actions. In addition, to understand the widget better, a legend is displayed at the bottom of the widget.

## To view the stimulation details:

- 1. Navigate to the screen and fetch the account. For more information, refer Navigating and Fetching Account.
- 2. From the **Modify Loan** tab, update the values as required. For more information, refer Modifying Loan Details.

The values are updated and displayed with an upward or downward indicator in the right widget.

			All amounts in GBP
		Existing	New
	Principal	32,750.00	
	Interest	6,451.03	2,601.32 🗸
	Fees	0.00	
	Total	39,201.03	35,351.32 ↓
	Arrears	1,045.29	
	Outstanding	32,962.40	32,767.50 🗸
	Sanctioned	32,750.00	
	Current Installme	nt 829.47	1,853.40 1
Currer FIXED	nt Interest Rate - 9.75%		Maturity Date December 30, 2021

# Figure 6-17 Right widget with Indicator

3. You can view the updates values. For more information on fields, refer to field description table below:



Field	Description				
Principal	Displays the current and new principal amount with an increase or decrease indicator.				
	<ul> <li>Increase or decrease the loan installment amount.</li> <li>Perform a combined transaction by changing the loan amount and term.</li> <li>Perform rollover on the account.</li> <li>Perform a combined transaction by changing the loan amount and installment amount.</li> <li>Increase the amount and change the repayment or rate type.</li> </ul>				
Interest	Displays the current and new interest amount with an increase or decrease indicator.				
	<ul> <li>Note:</li> <li>The new principal amount appears adjacent to the field, only if the following actions are performed in the Modify Loan tab:         <ul> <li>Increase or decrease the loan amount.</li> <li>Increase or decrease the loan term.</li> <li>Increase or decrease the loan installment amount.</li> <li>Perform a combined transaction by changing the loan amount and term.</li> <li>Perform rollover on the account.</li> </ul> </li> </ul>				

# Table 6-11 Right Widget - Field Description



Field	Description				
Total	Displays the current and new total of all the components, that is, <b>Principal</b> , <b>Interest</b> , and <b>Fees</b> with an increase or decrease indicator.				
	Note: The new total amount is displayed, if the Principal, Interest, or Fees amount is updated.				
Total Term	Displays the current and new total term with an increase or decrease indicator.				
	Note: The new total term appears below the field, only if there is increase or decrease of the Term or Current Instalment from the Modify Loan tab.				
Current Instalment	Displays the current and new instalment amount with an increase or decrease indicator.				
	<ul> <li>Note:</li> <li>The new principal amount appears adjacent to the field, only if the following actions are performed in the Modify Loan tab:</li> <li>Increase or decrease of loan amount.</li> <li>Increase or decrease the loan term.</li> <li>Increase or decrease the loan installment amount.</li> <li>Perform a combined transaction by changing the loan amount and term.</li> <li>Perform rollover on the account.</li> </ul>				
Maturity Date	Displays the current or new maturity date.				
Current Interest Rate	Displays the current or new interest type and rate.				

# Table 6-11 (Cont.) Right Widget - Field Description



Field	Description		
Outstanding	Displays the current and new outstanding amount with an increase or decrease indicator.		
	Note: The new outstanding amount is displayed only after there is increase or decrease in the Sanctioned field from the Modify Loan tab.		
Arrears	Displays the arrears on the account after there is an increase or decrease of loan amount.		
Sanctioned Amount	Displays the current or new sanctioned amount.		

## Table 6-11 (Cont.) Right Widget - Field Description

# 6.2.8 Viewing Revised Schedule

You can view the revised schedule details based on the actions performed on the **Modify Loan** tab.

The revised schedule details are displayed year wise. To view schedule details for a

```
particular year, you need to click the icon. To view revised schedule details:
```

- 1. Navigate to the screen and fetch the account. For more information, refer Navigating and Fetching Account.
- 2. From the **Modify Loan** tab, perform the required action. For more information, refer Modifying Loan Details.
- 3. Click Next.

The Revised Schedule section is displayed in the Schedule tab.

Loan Renegoti	ation								Remarks	Documents
O Modify Loan	Schedule	Schedule								Screen(2/
<ul> <li>Schedule</li> </ul>	Account Number LN2A	BS3180890259	RONY TH	OMAS						
• Fees										All amounts in GB
	Revised Schedul	e							Existing	New
	Date	Rate	Principal	Interest	Fee	Due	Balance	Principal	32,750.00	
	EPI - Fixed ( March S	5, 2018 to Dece	mber 30, 20	021)				Interest	6,451.03	2,722.81 ↓
	▶ 2018	9.75	15,116.67	1,894.98	0.00	17,011.65	32,750.00	Fees	0.00	
	. 2010	0.75	47 / 77 77	007.07				Total	39,201.03	35,472.81 🗸
	▶ 2019	9.75	17,000.00	827.85	0.00	18,461.16	17,055.55	Arrears	1,045.29	
	▶ 2020	9.75	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	Outstanding	32,962.40	32,767.50 🗸
	▶ 2021	9.75	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	Sanctioned	32,750.00	
								Current Install	ment 829.47	1,774.04 1
								Current Interest Rate FIXED - 9.75%		Maturity Date December 30, 2021

Figure 6-18 Schedule tab



4. You can view the revised schedule for amortized or non-amortized accounts. For more information on fields, refer to field description table below:

Field	Description			
Date	Displays the year and the dates in a year when the arrear is raised. This column lists the years for which the schedule is generated. If			
	monthly date schedule list for a year displays.			
Rate	Displays the rate of interest.			
Principal	Displays the amount of principal arrears.			
Interest	Displays the amount of interest.			
Fees	Displays the amount of fees.			
Due	Displays the amount due.			
Balance	Displays the balance amount after every installment.			

Table 6-12 Revised Schedule - Field Description

5. Click Submit.

The screen is successfully submitted for authorization.

# 6.2.9 Viewing Fee Charged

You can view the fees charged on the account.

#### To view the fees:

- 1. Navigate to the screen and fetch the account. For more information, refer Navigating and Fetching Account.
- 2. Click Next.

The Revised Schedule section is displayed in the Schedule tab.

3. Click Next.

The Fees tab is displayed.



Loan Renegotiation					Documents
🖉 Modify Loan	Fees				Screen(3/3
Schedule	Account Number	LN2ABS3180890259 RONY THOMAS			
• Fees					All amounts in GBP
	Total Fees	27.00 View Details/Modify		Existing	New
	Waive Fees		Principal	32,750.00	41,679.17 1
			Interest	6,451.03	8,196.50 1
			Fees	0.00	
			Total	39,201.03	49,875.67 1
			Arrears	1,045.29	
			Outstanding	32,962.40	41,696.67 1
			Sanctioned	32,750.00	41,679.17 1
			Current Insta	lment 829.47	1,061.53 1
			Current Interest Rate FIXED - 9.75%		Maturity Date December 30, 2021

Figure 6-19 Fees tab

4. You can view the fees charged on the account.



Waiving and modification of fees are not applicable for this release.

5. Click Save & Close.

# 6.3 Loan Schedule Inquiry

You can view the loan schedule of an account using the **Loan Schedule Inquiry** screen.

The application generates the loan schedule for the account based on the loan amount and displays the same only after the disbursement of loan.

#### To inquire on the loan schedule:

### Note:

The fields marked as **Required** are mandatory.

1. On the Homepage, from Loan Service mega menu, under Schedule, click Loan Schedule Inquiry. You can also open the screen by specifying Loan Schedule Inquiry in the search icon bar and selecting the screen.

The Loan Schedule Inquiry screen is displayed.



## Figure 6-20 Loan Schedule Inquiry

Loan Schedule Inc	luiry	:: ×
Account Number	Q Required	

2. On the Loan Schedule Inquiry screen, specify the account number in theAccount Number field, and press Tab or Enter.

The schedule details of the account is displayed. By default, application displays the current period of the schedule highlighting the current month for the particular year.

## Figure 6-21 Loan Schedule Inquiry – Schedule Details of Account

Loan Sche	dule Inquiry					:: ×
ccount Number	LN2ABS3180890259 Q	RONY THOMAS				
						All amounts in GB
Date	Rate	Principal	Interest	Fee	Due	Balance
EPI - Fixed ( Ma	rch 5, 2018 to December 30, 2	021)				
▶ 2018	9.75	6,333.16	2,177.36	0.00	8,510.52	32,750.00
▶ 2019	9.75	7,717.40	2,236.24	0.00	9,953.64	26,416.84
▶ 2020	9.75	8,503.20	1,450.44	0.00	9,953.64	18,699.44
▶ 2021	9.75	10,196.24	586.99	0.00	10,783.23	10,196.24
Total			6,451.03	0.00	39,201.03	

3. On the Loan Schedule Inquiry screen, view the required details. For more information on fields, refer to field description table below:

 Table 6-13
 Loan Schedule Inquiry – Field Description

Field	Description				
Account Number	Specify the account number.				
	Note: The upper right corner mentions the currency of the amounts displayed on the screen.				



Field	Description				
Date	Displays the year and the dates in a year when the arrear is raised.				
	<ul> <li>Note:</li> <li>This column lists the years for which the schedule is generated. For each calendar year, the sum total of Principal, Interest, Fees, and Due amount is displayed in the respective columns.</li> <li>If you click &lt;<i>Closed drop-down icon</i>&gt; corresponding to a particular year, the monthly date schedule list for a year appears.</li> </ul>				
Rate	Displays the rate of interest.				
Principal	Displays the amount of principal arrears.				
Interest	Displays the amount of interest.				
Fees	Displays the amount of fees.				
Due	Displays the amount due.				
Balance	Displays the balance amount after every installment.				
Total	Displays the total amount for the Interest, Fees, and Due columns.				
Loan modified <number of times modified&gt; times. Last Modified on <date- Month-Year&gt;</date- </number 	Displays the number of modifications done to the loan account and the last modification date, if any.				
Loan extended <number of times extended&gt; times in lifecycle. Last Modified on <date-month-year></date-month-year></number 	Displays the number of extensions done on the loan account and the last modification date, if any.				

Table 6-13 (Cont.) Loan Schedule Inquiry – Field Description

4. View the details of the schedule.

Click the icon corresponding to the required year to view monthly dates of scheduled installments in a particular year.

# 6.4 Repayment Date Change

You can view the repayment date details and if required change the repayment date of a loan account for which repayment frequency is monthly using the **Repayment Date Change** screen.

The account can be either an amortized or non-amortized loan account. You cannot perform repayment change date for accounts in Closed, Matured, Written-off, or Charged off status.

To view or update the repayment date:



Note: The fields marked as Required are mandatory.

1. On the Homepage, from Loan Service mega menu, under Schedule, click Repayment Date Change. You can also open the screen by specifying Repayment Date Change in the search icon bar and selecting the screen.

The Repayment Date Change screen is displayed.

Figure 6-22	Repayment Date Change
-------------	-----------------------

Repayment Date (	Change		Remarks JL X
Account Number	Required		
Audit			Cancel Submit

2. On the **Repayment Date Change** screen, specify the account number in the **Account Number** field, and press **Tab** or **Enter**.





ccount Number LN2LCT	1180890002	Q Jacob					
Principal							
Current	New						
21st of every month	End	of every month Specific	Date				
Current	New						
21st of every month	End o	of every month Specific	Date 2nd	•	of every month		
					Show Re	vised Schedule	
Revised Schedule					,	All amounts in GBP	
Date	Rate	Principal	Interest	Fee	Due	Balance	
IPI - Fixed ( March 7, 201	8 to January 21, 2	021)					
▶ 2018	7.50	2,100.00	983.84	0.00	3,083.84	21,000.00	
▶ 2019	7.50	8,400.00	1,181.03	0.00	9,581.03	18,900.00	
▶ 2020	7.50	8,400.00	551.68	0.00	8,951.68	10,500.00	
▶ 2021	7.50	2,100.00	39.61	0.00	2,139.61	2,100.00	
Total			2,756.16	0.00	23,756.16		
Narrative							

## Figure 6-23 Repayment Date Change - Non Amortized Account

3. On the **Repayment Date Change** screen, for non amortized accounts, perform the required action. For more information on fields, refer to field description table below:

# Table 6-14Repayment Date Change: Non-Amortized Account - FieldDescription

Field	Description				
Account Number	Specify the account number.				
Principal	This section displays the current and new date for repaying the principal amount.				
Current	Displays the current repayment date of principal amount.				
New	Select the new repayment option for repaying the principal amount.				
Interest	This section displays the current and new date for repaying the interest amount.				
Current	Displays the current repayment date of interest amount.				
New	Select the new repayment date of interest amount.				
Revised Schedule	This section is displayed as you click <b>Show Revised</b> <b>Schedule</b> .				
	Note: To the right of this section, the currency of the amounts displayed.				



Field	Description
Date	Displays the year and the dates in a year when the arrear is raised. This column lists the years for which the schedule is generated. If you click the icon corresponding to a particular year, the monthly date schedule list for a year displays.
Rate	Displays the rate of interest.
Principal	Displays the amount of principal arrears.
Interest	Displays the amount of interest.
Fees	Displays the amount of fees.
Due	Displays the amount due.
Balance	Displays the balance amount after every installment.
Total	Displays the total amount for the <b>Interest</b> , <b>Fees</b> , and <b>Due</b> columns.
Narrative	Specify comments if required for performing the repayment.

# Table 6-14 (Cont.) Repayment Date Change: Non-Amortized Account - FieldDescription

# Note:

If you specify an amortized loan account number, then the following screen is displayed.

## Figure 6-24 Repayment Date Change - Amortized Account

Repayment D	ate Change						Remarks	1.
ccount Number LN	2ABS3180890259	Q RONY THOMAS						
Repayment Date	1							
Current 7th of every month	New End c	f every month Specifi	c Date		Show Re	vised Schedule		
Revised Schedule					A	ll amounts in GBP		
Date	Rate	Principal	Interest	Fee	Due	Balance		
EPI - Fixed ( March	5, 2018 to December 30	0, 2021 )						
▶ 2018	9.75	6,307.56	2,387.37	0.00	8,694.93	32,750.00		
> 2019	9.75	7,973.62	2,225.90	0.00	10,199.52	26,442.44		
▶ 2020	9.75	8,785.66	1,413.86	0.00	10,199.52	18,468.82		
▶ 2021	9.75	9,683.16	516.60	0.00	10,199.76	9,683.16		
Total			6,543.73	0.00	39,293.73			
Varrative								
	1.							


4. On the **Repayment Date Change** screen, for amortized accounts, perform the required action. For more information on fields, refer to field description table below:

Field	Description
Account Number	Specify the account number.
Repayment Date	This section displays the current date and gives you an option to select the new date.
Current	Displays the current repayment date.
New	<ul> <li>Select the repayment option for repaying the principal amount.</li> <li>The options are:</li> <li>End of every month</li> <li>Specific Day</li> </ul>
	Note: If you select Specific Day option, then you need to select date from the list displayed adjacent to this field.
	Schedule.  Note:  To the right of this section, the currency of the amounts displayed.
Date	Displays the year and the dates in a year when the arrear is raised. This column lists the years for which the schedule is generated. If you click the icon corresponding to a particular year, the monthly date schedule list for a year displays
Rate	Displays the rate of interest.
Principal	Displays the amount of principal arrears.
Interest	Displays the amount of interest.
Fees	Displays the amount of fees.
Due	Displays the amount due.
Balance	Displays the balance amount after every installment.
Total	Displays the total amount for the <b>Interest</b> , <b>Fees</b> , and <b>Due</b> columns.
Narrative	Specify narration if any.

Table 6-15	<b>Repayment Date Change - Amortized Account</b>
------------	--

5. Click Submit.

A confirmation message is displayed, click **Confirm** to proceed.

# A Functional Activity Codes

This topic contains the functional activity codes available in the Loan Services.

Screen Name/API Name	Functional Activity Code	Action Description	
Consolidate Rollover	LSR_FA_FETCH_ACCOUNT S_FOR_CONSOLIDATION	INQUIRY	Fetch the accounts for consolidation.
Consolidate Rollover	LSR_FA_SAVE_CONSOLID ATED_ROLLOVER_DRAFT	SAVE	Save the consolidated rollover draft.
Consolidate Rollover	LSR_FA_FETCH_CONSOLI DATED_ROLLOVER_DRAFT	T Fetch the consolidated rollover draft.	
Consolidate Rollover	LSR_FA_SIMULATE_ROLLO VER_SETUP	SIMULATE	Simulate the rollover setup.
Consolidate Rollover	LSR_FA_CONSOLIDATION_ INITIATION	INITIATION	Consolidate the rollover initiation.
Consolidate Rollover	LSR_FA_DELETE_CONSOL IDATED_ROLLOVER_DRAF T	DELETE	Delete the consolidated rollover draft.
Consolidate Rollover	LSR_FA_SIMULATE_PROD_ SCHEDULE_SETUP	SIMULATE	Simulate the product schedule setup.
Consolidate Rollover	LSR_FA_SIMULATE_PRICE _DETAILS	SIMULATE	Simulate the price details.
Consolidate Rollover	LSR_FA_SIMULATE_PROD_ PRICE_DETAILS	SIMULATE	Simulate the product price details.
Consolidate Rollover	LSR_FA_LOV_MANAGER	INQUIRY	It is required for LOV manager.
Consolidate Rollover	LSR_FA_CONSOLIDATION_ APPROVAL	APPROVAL	Consolidate the rollover approval.
Consolidate Rollover	LSR_FA_CONSOLIDATION_ RETRY	RETRY	Consolidate the rollover retry.
Consolidate Rollover	LSR_FA_RETRV_CONSOLR OLL_HANDOFF	INQUIRY	Retrieve the consolidated rollover handoff data.
Consolidate Rollover	LSR_FA_HANDOFF_CONS OLIDATED_ROLLOVER_DR AFT	HANDOFF	Handoff consolidated rollover draft.
Loan Activation	LSR_FA_FETCH_ACTIVATI ON_ACCTS	INQUIRY	Fetch the activation accounts.
Loan Activation	LSR_FA_ACTIVATE_ACCTS	SAVE	Activate the accounts.
Loan Activation	LSR_FA_FETCH_ACTIVATI ON_DRAFT	INQUIRY	Fetch the activation draft.
Loan Activation	LSR_FA_LOAN_ACTIVATIO	INITIATION	Loan activation initiation.
Loan Activation	LSR_FA_DELETE_ACTIVATI	DELETE	Delete the activation draft.

Table A-1 Functional Activity Codes



Screen Name/API Name	Functional Activity Code	Action Description		
Loan Activation	LSR_FA_HANDOFF_ACTIV HANDOFF ATION		Handoff activation.	
Loan Activation	LSR_FA_LOAN_ACTIVATIO N_APPROVAL	APPROVAL	Loan activation approval.	
Loan Activation	LSR_FA_LOAN_ACTIVATIO N_RETRY	RETRY	Loan activation retry.	
Loan Adhoc Charges	LSR_FA_LNADHC_INIT	INITIATION	Loan adhoc charges initiation.	
Loan Adhoc Charges	LSR_FA_SAVE_ADHOC_CH ARGE_DRAFT	SAVE	Save the adhoc charge draft.	
Loan Adhoc Charges	LSR_FA_FETCH_ADHOC_C HARGE_DRAFT	INQUIRY	Fetch the adhoc charge draf	
Loan Adhoc Charges	LSR_FA_FETCH_ADHOC_C HARGES	INQUIRY	Fetch the adhoc charges.	
Loan Adhoc Charges	LSR_FA_CONVERT_AMOU NT_TO_CCY	INQUIRY	Convert the amount from one currency to another.	
Loan Adhoc Charges	LSR_FA_DELETE_ADHOC_ CHARGE	DELETE	Delete the adhoc charge draft.	
Loan Adhoc Charges	LSR_FA_LNADHC_APPROV AL	APPROVAL	Loan adhoc charges approval.	
Loan Adhoc Charges	LSR_FA_LNADHC_HANDO FF_RETRY	RETRY	Loan adhoc charges handoff retry.	
Loan Adhoc Charges	LSR_FA_HANDOFF_ADHO C_CHARGE	HANDOFF	Handoff adhoc charge.	
Loan Adhoc Refund	LSR_FA_SAVE_ADHOC_RE FUND_DRAFT	SAVE	Save the adhoc refund draft.	
Loan Adhoc Refund	LSR_FA_FETCH_ADHOC_R EFUND	INQUIRY	Fetch the adhoc refund details.	
Loan Adhoc Refund	LSR_FA_FETCH_ADHOC_R EFUND_DRAFT	INQUIRY	Fetch the adhoc refund draft.	
Loan Adhoc Refund	LSR_FA_LOAN_ADHOC_RE FUND_INIT	INITIATION	Loan adhoc refund initiation.	
Loan Adhoc Refund	LSR_FA_CONVERT_AMOU NT_TO_CCY	INQUIRY	Convert the amount from one currency to another.	
Loan Adhoc Refund	LSR_FA_DELETE_ADHOC_ REFUND	DELETE	Delete the adhoc refund draft.	
Loan Adhoc Refund	LSR_FA_HANDOFF_ADHO C_REFUND	HANDOFF	Handoff adhoc refund.	
Loan Adhoc Refund	LSR_FA_LOAN_ADHOC_RE FUND_HANDOFF_RETRY	E RETRY Loan adhoc refund har retry.		
Loan Adhoc Refund	LSR_FA_LOAN_ADHOC_RE FUND_APPROVAL	APPROVAL	Loan adhoc refund approval.	
Loan Disbursement	LSR_FA_ACCOUNT_DETAIL S_INQUIRY	INQUIRY	Account detail inquiry.	
Loan Disbursement	LSR_FA_FETCH_DISBURS EMENT_HISTORY	INQUIRY Fetch the disbursement history.		

 Table A-1 (Cont.) Functional Activity Codes



Screen Name/API Name	Functional Activity Code	e Action Description			
Loan Disbursement	LSR_FA_SIMULATE_DISBU RSEMENT	SIMULATE	Simulate the disbursement.		
Loan Disbursement	LSR_FA_SAVE_DISBURSE MENT_DRAFT	SAVE	Save the disbursement draft.		
Loan Disbursement	LSR_FA_FETCH_DISBURS EMENT_DRAFT	INQUIRY	Fetch the disbursement draft.		
Loan Disbursement	LSR_FA_DISBURSEMENT_I NITIATION	INITIATION	Loan disbursement initiation.		
Loan Disbursement	LSR_FA_CONVERT_AMOU NT_TO_CCY	INQUIRY	Convert the amount from one currency to another.		
Loan Disbursement	LSR_FA_DELETE_DISBUR SEMENT_DATA	DELETE	Delete the disbursement data.		
Loan Disbursement	LSR_FA_DISBURSEMENT_ ADVICE	CREATE	Disbursement advice servic		
Loan Disbursement	LSR_FA_HANDOFF_DISBU RSEMENT_DATA	HANDOFF	Handoff disbursement data.		
Loan Disbursement	LSR_FA_DISBURSEMENT_ APPROVAL	APPROVAL	Loan disbursement approval.		
Loan Disbursement	LSR_FA_DISBURSEMENT_ RETRY	RETRY	Loan disbursement retry.		
Loan WriteOff	LSR_FA_SAVE_WRITEOFF _DRAFT	SAVE	Save the write off draft.		
Loan WriteOff	LSR_FA_FETCH_WRITEOF F_DRAFT	INQUIRY	Fetch the write off draft.		
Loan WriteOff	LSR_FA_HEALTH_DETAILS _INQUIRY	INQUIRY	Account health details inquiry.		
Loan WriteOff	LSR_FA_SIMULATE_WRITE OFF	SIMULATE	Simulate the write off.		
Loan WriteOff	LSR_FA_LOAN_WRITEOFF _INIT	INITIATION	Loan write off initiation.		
Loan WriteOff	LSR_FA_DELETE_WRITEO	DELETE	Delete the write off draft.		
Loan WriteOff	LSR_FA_HANDOFF_WRITE OFF	HANDOFF	Handoff the write off.		
Loan WriteOff	LSR_FA_LOAN_WRITEOFF _RETRY	RETRY	Loan write off retry.		
Loan WriteOff	LSR_FA_LOAN_WRITEOFF _APPROVAL	APPROVAL	Loan write off approval.		
Loan 360	LSR_FA_LOAN_DASHBOAR D_INQUIRY	INQUIRY Loan dashboard inquiry.			
Transaction Inquiry	LSR_FA_FETCH_TRANSAC TION_DETAILS	INQUIRY	Fetch the transaction details.		
Transaction Inquiry	LSR_FA_FETCH_TRANSAC TION_ITEMS	INQUIRY	Fetch the transaction items.		
Transaction View and Reversal	LSR_FA_FETCH_EVENT_T RANSACTION_DETAIL	INQUIRY	Fetch the event transaction details.		

 Table A-1 (Cont.) Functional Activity Codes



Screen Name/API Name	Functional Activity Code	Action Description		
Transaction View and Reversal	LSR_FA_TRANSACTION_R EVERSAL_INITIATION	INITIATION	Loan transaction reversal initiation.	
Transaction View and Reversal	LSR_FA_DELETE_REVERS	DELETE	Delete the reversal draft.	
Transaction View and Reversal	LSR_FA_FETCH_EVENT_T RANSACTIONS	INQUIRY	Fetch the event transactions.	
Transaction View and Reversal	LSR_FA_REVERSE_TRANS ACTION	SAVE Reverse the transaction.		
Transaction View and Reversal	LSR_FA_FETCH_REVERSA L_DRAFT	INQUIRY	Fetch the reversal draft.	
Transaction View and Reversal	LSR_FA_TRANSACTION_R EVERSAL_APPROVAL	APPROVAL Loan transaction reversal approval.		
Transaction View and Reversal	LSR_FA_HANDOFF_REVER SAL	HANDOFF Handoff the reversal.		
Transaction View and Reversal	LSR_FA_TRANSACTION_R EVERSAL_RETRY	RETRY	Loan transaction reversal retry.	
Account Statement	LSR_FA_LOAN_STATEMEN T_DSN_INQUIRY	INQUIRY	Loan statement DSN inquiry.	
Account Statement	LSR_FA_LOAN_STATEMEN T_GENERATE	CREATE	Generate the loan statement.	
Account Statement	LSR_FA_LOAN_STATEMEN T_INQUIRY	INQUIRY	Loan statement inquiry.	
Outstanding Balance Inquiry	LSR_FA_BALANCE_DETAIL S_INQUIRY	INQUIRY	Balance details inquiry.	
Payment Preference	LSR_FA_PAYMENT_PREFE RENCE_INQUIRY	INQUIRY	Payment preference inquiry.	
Payment Preference	LSR_FA_PAYMENT_PREFE RENCE_SAVE	SAVE Save the payment prefer draft.		
Payment Preference	LSR_FA_PAYMENT_PREFE RENCE_DOMAIN_DATA_IN QUIRY	INQUIRY	Payment preference domain data inquiry.	
Payment Preference	LSR_FA_PAYMENT_PREFE RENCE_INITIATION	INITIATION	Payment preferences initiation.	
Payment Preference	LSR_FA_DELETE_PAYMEN T_PREFERENCE_DETAILS	DELETE	Delete the payment preference draft.	
Payment Preference	LSR_FA_PAYMENT_PREFE RENCE_HANDOFF	E HANDOFF Payment preferences handoff.		
Payment Preference	LSR_FA_PAYMENT_PREFE RENCE_APPROVAL	E APPROVAL Payment preferences approval.		
Loan Preference	LSR_FA_ACCOUNT_PREFE RENCES_INQUIRY	INQUIRY	Account preferences inquiry.	
Loan Preference	LSR_FA_ACCOUNT_PREFE RENCES_DRAFT	SAVE	Save the account preference draft.	
Loan Preference	LSR_FA_ACCOUNT_PREFE RENCES_DRAFT_INQUIRY	INQUIRY	Fetch the account preference draft.	
Loan Preference	LSR_FA_DELETE_ACCOUN	DELETE	Delete the account preferences data.	

Table A-1 (	(Cont.)	Functional	Activity	Codes



Screen Name/API Name	Functional Activity Code	de Action Description		
Loan Preference	LSR_FA_ACCOUNT_PREFE RENCES_HANDOFF	HANDOFF	Account preferences handoff.	
Loan Preference	LSR_FA_ACCOUNT_PREFE RENCES_APPROVAL	APPROVAL	Account preferences approval.	
Loan Payment and Closure	LSR_FA_FETCH_PAYMENT _BALANCES	INQUIRY	Fetch the payment balances.	
Loan Payment and Closure	LSR_FA_FETCH_PAYMENT _DRAFT	INQUIRY	Fetch the payment draft.	
Loan Payment and Closure	LSR_FA_DELETE_MAKE_P AYMENT	DELETE	Delete the payment draft.	
Loan Payment and Closure	LSR_FA_CONVERT_AMOU NT_TO_CCY	INQUIRY	Convert the amount from one currency to another.	
Loan Payment and Closure	LSR_FA_SIMULATE_ADVAN CE_INSTALLMENT_PAYME NT	SIMULATE	Simulate the advance installment payment.	
Loan Payment and Closure	LSR_FA_SIMULATE_DUES_ ARREAR_ALLOCATION	SIMULATE	Simulate the payment due arrear allocation.	
Loan Payment and Closure	LSR_FA_SIMULATE_DUES_ INSTALMENT_PAYMENT	SIMULATE	Simuate the dues installment payment.	
Loan Payment and Closure	LSR_FA_SIMULATE_PARTI AL_PAY_OFF	SIMULATE	Simulate the payment partial pay off.	
Loan Payment and Closure	LSR_FA_LOAN_PAYMENT_I NIT	INITIATION	Loan payment and closure initiation.	
Loan Payment and Closure	LSR_FA_PAYMENT_DRAFT	INQUIRY	Fetch the payment draft.	
Loan Payment and Closure	LSR_FA_SIMULATE_ACCO UNT_CLOSURE	SIMULATE	Simulate the payment account closure.	
Loan Payment and Closure	LSR_FA_LOAN_PAYMENT_ APPROVAL	APPROVAL	Loan payment and closure approval.	
Loan Payment and Closure	LSR_FA_LOAN_PAYMENT_ HANDOFF	RETRY	Payment and closure handoff retry task.	
Loan Payment and Closure	LSR_FA_MAKE_PAYMENT	HANDOFF	Handoff the payment.	
Loan Payment Holiday	LSR_FA_SIMULATE_ADVAN CE_PAYMENT_FOR_HOLID AY_PERIOD	SIMULATE	Simulate the advance payment for holiday period.	
Loan Payment Holiday	LSR_FA_FETCH_DUES_PA YMENT_HOLIDAY	INQUIRY	Fetch the dues for payment holiday.	
Loan Payment Holiday	LSR_FA_FETCH_FEES_PAY MENT_HOLIDAY	INQUIRY	Fetch the fees payment holiday.	
Loan Payment Holiday	LSR_FA_FETCH_PERIOD_ PAYMENT_HOLIDAY	INQUIRY	Fetch the period for payment holiday.	
Loan Payment Holiday	LSR_FA_FETCH_DRAFT_P AYMENT_HOLIDAY	INQUIRY	Fetch the payment holiday draft.	
Loan Payment Holiday	LSR_FA_FETCH_SCHEDUL E_PAYMENT_HOLIDAY	INQUIRY Fetch the schedule payn holiday.		

|--|



Screen Name/API Name	Functional Activity Code	Action Description		
Loan Payment Holiday	LSR_FA_SAVE_DRAFT_PAY MENT_HOLIDAY	SAVE	Save the payment holiday draft.	
Loan Payment Holiday	LSR_FA_PAYMNT_HOLIDAY _INITIATION	INITIATION Loan payment holiday initiation.		
Loan Payment Holiday	LSR_FA_DELETE_PAYMEN T_HOLIDAY_DATA	DELETE	Delete the payment holiday data.	
Loan Payment Holiday	LSR_FA_HANDOFF_PAYME NT_HOLIDAY_DATA	HANDOFF	Handoff payment holiday.	
Loan Payment Holiday	LSR_FA_PAYMNT_HOLIDAY _APPROVAL	APPROVAL Loan payment holiday approval.		
Loan Payment Holiday	LSR_FA_PAYMNT_HOLIDAY _RETRY	RETRY Loan payment holiday re		
Loan Renegotiation	LSR_FA_ACCOUNT_DETAIL S_INQUIRY	INQUIRY	Account detail inquiry.	
Loan Renegotiation	LSR_FA_ARREAR_DETAILS	INQUIRY	Fetch the arrear details.	
Loan Renegotiation	LSR_FA_RENEGOTIATION_ INITIATION	INITIATION	Loan renegotiation initiation.	
Loan Renegotiation	LSR_FA_SAVE_RENEGOTI ATED_DRAFT	SAVE	Save the renegotiated draft.	
Loan Renegotiation	LSR_FA_FETCH_RENEGOT IATED_DRAFT	INQUIRY	Fetch the renegotiated draft.	
Loan Renegotiation	LSR_FA_SIMULATE_ACCO UNT_DETAILS	SIMULATE	Simulate the account details.	
Loan Renegotiation	LSR_FA_FETCH_RATE_VAL UE	INQUIRY	Fetch the rate value.	
Loan Renegotiation	LSR_FA_DELETE_RENEGO TIATED_DATA	DELETE	Delete the renegotiation draft.	
Loan Renegotiation	LSR_FA_SIMULATE_SCHE DULE_SETUP	SIMULATE	Simulate schedule setup.	
Loan Renegotiation	LSR_FA_SIMULATE_PRICE _DETAILS	SIMULATE	Simulate the price details.	
Loan Renegotiation	LSR_FA_RENEGOTIATION_ APPROVAL	APPROVAL	Loan renegotiation approval.	
Loan Renegotiation	LSR_FA_RENEGOTIATION_ RETRY	RETRY	Loan renegotiation retry.	
Loan Renegotiation	LSR_FA_HANDOFF_RENE GOTIATED_DATA	HANDOFF	Handoff renegotiated data.	
Loan Schedule Inquiry	LSR_FA_SCHEDULE_DETAI LS_INQUIRY	INQUIRY	Schedule the details inquiry.	
Repayment Date Change	LSR_FA_REPAYMENT_DAT E_CHANGE_INITIATION	INITIATION	Repayment date change inititation.	
Repayment Date Change	LSR_FA_REPAYMENT_DAT E_CHANGE_INQUIRY	INQUIRY	Repayment date change inquiry.	
Repayment Date Change	LSR_FA_REPAYMENT_DAT E_CHANGE_DETAILS_SAV E	SAVE Save the repayment date change draft.		

 Table A-1 (Cont.) Functional Activity Codes



Screen Name/API	Functional Activity Code	Action	Description
Name			
Repayment Date Change	LSR_FA_REPAYMENT_DO MAIN_DATA_INQUIRY	INQUIRY	Repayment domain data inquiry.
Repayment Date Change	LSR_FA_SIMULATE_REPAY MENT_DATE_CHANGE	SIMULATE	Simulate the repayment date change.
Repayment Date Change	LSR_FA_DELETE_REPAYM ENT	DELETE	Delete the repayment draft.
Repayment Date Change	LSR_FA_REPAYMENT_DAT E_CHANGE_APPROVAL	APPROVAL	Repayment date change approval.
Repayment Date Change	LSR_FA_REPAYMENT_DAT E_CHANGE_RETRY	RETRY	Repayment date change retry.
Repayment Date Change	LSR_FA_REPAYMENT_DAT E_CHANGE_HANDOFF	HANDOFF	Handoff repayment date change.

Table A-1 (	Cont.)	Functional	Activity	Codes
	/			



# Index

#### Α

Account Statement, 3-1

## С

Consolidated Rollover, 2-1

#### F

Functional Activity Codes, A-1

#### L

Loan 360, 2-57 Loan Activation, 2-18 Loan Adhoc Charges, 2-21 Loan Adhoc Refund, 2-31 Loan Disbursement, 2-38 Loan Payment and Closure, 5-1 Loan Payment Holiday, 6-1 Loan Preferences, 4-7 Loan Renegotiation, 6-15 Loan Schedule Inquiry, 6-38 Loan Write-Off, 2-52

#### 0

Outstanding Balance Inquiry, 3-3

#### Ρ

Payment Preferences, 4-1

#### R

Repayment Date Change, 6-40

## Т

Transaction Inquiry, 2-62 Transaction View & Reversal, 2-66

